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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW

With the mission of “a healthy life building Hing Yip Holdings”, the
Group is dedicated to providing meticulous, caring and humanized
healthcare services to the society, in a bid to become a top-
tier healthcare solution provider with technology. In line with our
strategy planning, operating income of our wellness and elderly care
business surged by approximately HK$34,983,000 compared with
the same period last year, after we took over several public elderly
care institutions sponsored by towns or sub-districts this year. In
the meantime, the civil explosives business not only accelerated the
expansion of the blasting operation, but also effectively coordinated
among stakeholders and procured the strict adoption of a balanced
and first-to-neighborhood sales by conglomerates within the
province, and opened up the Eastern Guangdong market, resulting
in an increase in operating income of approximately HK$70,612,000
compared with the same period last year. In addition, as our financial
leasing business continued to develop with a lean and efficient
expansion strategy, operating income increased by approximately
HK$22,151,000. For the year ended 31 December 2023, taking
into account other factors, total income of the Group surged to
approximately HK$917,133,000, representing a significant increase
of 19.5% over the previous year.

Performance of major segments improved progressively with our
dedication and devotion. The operating profit of all continuing
operations increased by approximately HK$19,755,000 to
approximately HK$144,002,000, an increase of approximately
15.9%. Profit from investments in associates rose by
HK$46,673,000. In addition, following the completion and delivery
of phase | and Il of the new energy industrial park in Danzao Town,
Nanhai District, Foshan City, the PRC (the “Danzao Industrial Park”),
we recorded a net increase in the fair value of the Group’s properties
of approximately HK$178,054,000, as fair value of investment
properties rose sharply upon evaluation. On another note, while
we recorded a special gain of approximately HK$39,907,000 due
to an increase in the fair value of financial assets recognised at
fair value through profit or loss last year, we had a special loss
of approximately HK$88,006,000, as the fair value of buyback
contract in relation to the 72% stake in Guangdong Sino Rock
Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.* (“Sino Rock Tyco”), a subsidiary of the
Company, was affected after the signing of an agreement pursuant
to which we disposed of the 72% equity interest in Sino Rock
Tyco during the year. Taking into account other factors, the Group
recorded a significant increase in profit of HK$113,112,000 and a
net profit of approximately HK$155,936,000 for the year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continuea)

ELDERLY CARE AND WELLNESS BUSINESS

The Group adheres to the goal of developing a three-tier elderly
care system comprising institutions, communities and households in
Nanhai District. While securing its position as the largest institutional
pension brand in Foshan City, the Group continued to expand and
transform in a move to promote high-quality development. As at
31 December 2023, there were a total of 2,708 institutional nursing
beds with an occupancy rate of 80%, up by approximately 29.1%
and slightly down by 3%, respectively, compared to 31 December
2022. There are 1,200 beds are under construction. With a total of
3,908 beds, it is the enterprise with the largest number of operating
beds in Foshan City. In addition, the Group has a total of 300
rehabilitation and nursing beds, with an average usage rate of 94%,
up by 10% compared to last year.

While steadily advancing the upgrading and expansion of elderly
care facilities, the Group continued to strengthen all aspects of
elderly rehabilitation medical services and elderly apartments. With
the relocation of the rehabilitation hospital to the medical and
care building completed and its operation commenced, we saw
an optimized and integrated business model. In addition, we have
further improved the quality of our operation and management,
promoted cost reduction and higher efficiency, constantly adjusted
and optimized the organizational structure and reshaped the
Company’s corporate culture, improved our capabilities through
star rating review work, and raised our brand value through
continued efforts in bringing medical and care together. In June
2023, the rehabilitation hospital and Nanhai District People’s
Hospital established a precedent-setting care services consortium.
In November 2023, the rehabilitation hospital was named a “Model
Medical and Care Institution in Guangdong Province”. With strong
brand recognition and the market-oriented mixed ownership reform,
we have expanded our presence in community-based and home-
based care services to further create values. Furthermore, the Group
has established a strategic partnership with leading care training
institutions in Hong Kong, laying a solid foundation for the exchange
of health care business both at home and abroad.

A substantial increase was recorded in the operating income of
wellness and elderly care business. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the segment recorded an operating income of approximately
HK$157,441,000, representing a continuous increase of 28.6% over
last year. Our elderly care and wellness business is still undergoing
reform and upgrading. For the year ended 31 December 2023, we
recorded a year-on-year decrease of 25.8% in operating losses to
approximately HK$10,854,000. We expect a further improvement in
performance in 2024 by enhancing the brand effect of integrating
medical and care services, introducing new fee standards for
reasonable price adjustments and optimizing organizational structure.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continuea)

FINANCIAL LEASING BUSINESS

With the strategic goal to become a leading eco-friendly and
professional financial leasing company in China, the Group’s main
target clients are players in environmental sectors such as sewage
treatment, waste incineration, new energy power generation,
cogeneration, kitchen waste disposal, biogas power generation,
solid waste treatment, water supply, hazardous waste, leachate
treatment and waste soil, etc. The Group is deeply engaged in
the subsectors of the municipal environmental protection industry,
mainly targets enterprises that provide municipal environmental
services, and plans to focus on developing municipal environmental
projects of stateowned enterprises (SOEs) in Foshan and quality
SOEs in the Greater Bay Area. The Group vigorously solicits clients
through the E20 forum, local environmental associations and other
platforms, referrals from existing clients, referrals from banks and
business partners in the industry, and the management and business
personnel’s online marketing. For the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group had transacted with approximately 73 SOEs and
other quality enterprises including 29 in the Greater Bay Area and
44 in other areas. Many of these enterprises are subsidiaries of
listed companies. Of these 73 enterprises, approximately 55 are in
the environmental industry, including about 32 mainly engaged in
sewage treatment and 23 involved in multiple sectors such as waste
incineration, water supply, cogeneration, hazardous waste treatment,
biogas power generation, and sludge and soil treatment. The other
18 enterprises are mainly engaged in other industries such as public
utilities, electromechanical equipment and real estate. The segment’s
operating income for the year increased by approximately 6.7% to
approximately HK$352,636,000, 62% of which was contributed by
clients in the environmental industry.

In response to internal and external challenges, the Group sought
to focus on environmental protection and progress in stability. In
the selection of customers, we continued to cultivate sub-segments
under our principal business of municipal environmental services
in hopes to upsize it in a cost effective manner by selecting the
best from the good. In terms of risk control, measures such as
the adoption of strict and enhanced risk control review, continued
improvements in risk control systems, and establishment of a
clean culture were in place. In terms of cost control, a multi-
pronged approach was taken to raise and use proceeds, enhance
the independent financing ability of entities in a bid to lower cost
with increased flexibility. In spite of all these new achievements,
the increase of approximately HK$13,948,000 in the allowance
for expected credit losses on finance lease receivables compared
with last year resulted in the decrease of 7.2% in the operating
profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
HK$118,311,000.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continuea)

BIG DATA BUSINESS

Weighed by the government’s financial constraints and market
volatility, demand for the Group’s big data business shrank in
general. Nonetheless, with concerted efforts around the Group’s
strategy and action plan, to stay in the game and identify further
opportunities, we have navigated and explored various investment
and mergers opportunities for breakthroughs and new development
through initiatives such as business structure modification,
accelerated market expansion, optimized enterprise management
structure and improved management efficiency.

The Group continued to vigorously develop big data business to
expand its business coverage and extend its industry chain. During
the period, we actively sought mergers and acquisitions with
industrial synergistic effects, and improved the industrial Internet
segment to achieve full industry chain development, with the aiming
of becoming a first-class industrial Internet full-chain service provider
in the Greater Bay Area. During the year, we acquired a 51% equity
interest in Guangdong XRIS Technology Co., Ltd. (BRI IHE %
R ABR/AT), which, in combination with the experience in lean
management and lean digital consulting services for enterprises,
can generate synergies. Despite the overall decline in demand from
enterprises due to the current economic downturn and changes in
digital transformation policies, the Group remained committed to
consolidating the development of its principal business, expanding its
business segments and optimizing the structure of its product offering.

Through in-depth research on technology, business and related
policies, we have achieved a diversified portfolio of scientific and
technological results, and honor and recognition at the corporate
level. During the year, there are a total of 2,462 registered enterprises,
with the number of identifiers registered and the number of identifier
decoding exceeding 8 billion and 1.3 billion, respectively. The
Company has submitted a total a 4 invention patent applications, of
which 3 has been granted. At the same time, we were recognized
and ranked in a number of regional industry awards and annual
technology SMEs list such as Foshan Data Services Providers
and Foshan High-tech Enterprises. We were also among the
grantees of three regional policy subsidies. On another note, we
have set up a professional team, which won the national award
in the inaugural Industrial Internet Identifier Application Innovation
Competition. Leveraging the technical capabilities and practical
experience accumulated over the years in the industrial Internet
industry, the Company was listed on the “Top 500 Industrial Internet
Enterprises 2023”, ranking 132, and was invited to assist the relevant
departments in the formulation of district-level industry policies. With
our effort in expanding new project business, carrying out mergers
and acquisition, optimizing the products and improving management
efficiency, operating income for the year has a significant
year-on-year growth of 60.8% compared with the previous year
to approximately HK$20,981,000. However, due to the significant
reduction in project subsidy income and government subsidies,
operating profit decreased significantly by 85.9% from last year to
approximately HK$1,092,000.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continuea)

CIVIL EXPLOSIVES BUSINESS

During the year, against the backdrop of the macroeconomic
downturn, subdued real estate and infrastructure investment, and
lower-than-expected upstream mining activities, we managed to
achieve a meaningful growth in production and sales of our civil
explosives business, thanks to the concerted effort both internally
and externally. Internally, based on our work plan and theme
of the year, we have reinforced our standard of services with a
multi-pronged approach and with precision, by setting goals for
departments including production, supply, sales and logistics in light
of the notion of “service-led sales and innovation-driven growth”.
Externally, we effectively coordinated among stakeholders and
procured the strict adoption of a balanced and first-to-neighborhood
sales by conglomerates within the province. For the year ended 31
December 2023, operating income increased substantially by 36.2%
to approximately HK$265,750,000, with operating profit increased
by 226.1% to approximately HK$38,744,000.

INVESTMENTS IN PROPERTIES AND
INDUSTRIAL PARKS

Upon the completion and joint acceptance inspection of the Dan
Qing Garden rental housing project, the Danzao New Energy
Industrial Park project, together with the first and second phases
of the industrial park in operation, covered a total of approximately
398,700 m?. However, the lease market was adversely affected
given slower GDP growth, more prudent government expenditure,
less subsidies to innovative enterprises, with the average leased
area of the first and second phases of the industrial park dropped
to approximately 153,800 m? and 46,800 m?, respectively (2022:
approximately 171,700 m? and 58,500 m?), representing an
occupancy rate of approximately 83% and 42%, down by 10% and
11%, respectively. However, it is believed that with the leasing of
supporting rental apartments of the Dan Qing Garden commencing
in 2024, the overall occupancy rate of the Industrial Park will rise
steadily. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the industrial
park and property development segment recorded an increase
of approximately 16.3% in operating income to approximately
HK$95,710,000 over the same period last year. In spite of a
decrease in subsidy income of approximately HK$17,525,000, after
the completion and delivery of phase | and Il of Danzao Industrial
Park, we recorded a significant net increase in the fair value of the
relevant properties of approximately HK$178,404,000 rose sharply
upon evaluation. For the year ended 31 December 2023, operating
profit surged to approximately HK$179,187,000, representing a
significant increase of 63.6 times over the previous year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continuea)

The Group has entered into a disposal agreement on 6 December
2023 to dispose of the 72% equity interest held by the Group in
Sino Rock, which was approved at the first special general meeting
on 18 January 2024. Upon completion of the disposal, members of
the Sino Rock group has ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company,
and the financial results of Sino Rock group will no longer be
consolidated into the Group’s.

As for other properties, due to the bearish market sentiment, the
average rent per square metre of new tenants fell compared with that
of previous tenants who had moved out, with the total rental income
decreased by 6.6% compared with last year to approximately
HK$9,617,000. Specifically, the occupancy rate of the China
Holdings Building decreased slightly from 93.0% to approximately
92.4%. We recorded a rental income of HK$50,000 from properties
in Hong Kong after it was leased towards the end of 2023 after non-
renewal by the previous tenant upon completion of the term back in
November 2022.

HOTEL BUSINESS

The tourism market began to pick up during the year. Guilin Plaza
Hotel (“Guilin Plaza”) focused on attracting tourists, in order to
rapidly increase its reception volume and occupancy rate, hopefully
to pre-Covid-19 level. For the nine months ended 30 September
2023, through refined management of internal operations, strict
cost control, and successful reduction of costs and expenses, the
occupancy rate rebounded substantially from approximately 24.67%
last year to approximately 67.2% for the first three quarters this year,
while the average room rate for the first three quarters increased by
approximately 5.4% compared with that of last year. Commencing
from October 2023, we have adopted a different leasing strategy
with the hotel leased to a hotel management company as a whole
and since obtained a more stable flow of rental income. The
segment’s operating income soared by 54.1% to approximately
HK$14,998,000 compared with that of the same period of last
year, and operating loss was narrowed by 76.9% to approximately
HK$1,734,000 compared with that of the same period last year.

PROFIT FROM INVESTMENTS IN AN
ASSOCIATE

The cost pressure on Nanhai Changhai Power Co., Ltd. was
lessened by the lower costs of raw coal and gas as compared
to those at the end of last year and during the same period of
last year. In addition, the increase in customer demand and sales
volume after the epidemic resulted in a significant year-on-year
increase in operating results. Accordingly, it recorded an operating
profit of approximately HK$172,753,000 and contributed profit of
approximately HK$51,400,000, representing a significant year-on-
year increase of approximately 9.9 times.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continuea)

FINANCIAL POSITION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had total
assets of approximately HK$9,755,709,000 (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$9,069,585,000), total liabilities of approximately
HK$7,636,412,000 (31 December 2022: HK$6,976,800,000),
a gearing ratio (being total liabilities divided by total assets) of
78.3% (31 December 2022: 76.9%), net assets of approximately
HK$2,119,297,000 (31 December 2022: HK$2,092,785,000), and
equity per share attributable to owners of the Company of HK57.23
cents (31 December 2022: approximately HK59.16 cents).

The Group had net current assets of approximately HK$645,022,000
(31 December 2022:
HK$46,216,000),
by current liabilities) of approximately 1.15 (31 December 2022:
1.02). The Group had bank balance and cash of HK$592,181,000
(81 December 2022: approximately HK$999,250,000),
for capital requirements for future operation and new projects or

net current assets of approximately
a current ratio (being current assets divided

sufficient

business development of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, properties of the Group for own use and
investment, bank deposits, beneficial interest in a subsidiary and
26.794% interest in an associate held by the Group and the carrying
value of finance lease receivables amounted to approximately
HK$4,548,702,000, with approximately HK$3,580,931,000 of
finance lease receivables pledged to banks as the security for
bank borrowings granted to the Group (831 December 2022:
properties of the Group for own use and investment, bank deposits,
beneficial interest in a subsidiary held by the Group and the carrying
value of finance lease receivables amounted to approximately
HK$3,803,355,000, with approximately HK$2,782,574,000 of
finance lease receivables pledged to banks).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s main operating income and costs are denominated
in RMB. In the business operation of the Group, foreign exchange
fluctuation in income and costs would be mutually offset. However,
as the Hong Kong-based Group has injected a substantial amount
of current borrowings into domestic wholly-owned subsidiaries in
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Chairman’s Statement (Continuea)

Mainland China and held a huge amount of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in RMB, an exchange gain or loss would arise
from the appreciation or depreciation of RMB. It is expected that
an increase or a decrease of approximately HK$7,875,000 in the
Group’s profit for the year would arise if the exchange rate of RMB
to HKD appreciates or depreciates by 5%. Over the few past years,
RMB constantly showed an upward trend and gradually became
stable in the second half of 2008, starting to fluctuate upward and
downward repeatedly. Due to the impact of the Sino-US trade war,
deteriorating Sino-US relations and fluid epidemic dynamics in
recent years, the outbreak of the war between Russia and Ukraine
in the previous years led to higher prices in fuel and food, etc. and
aggravated inflation across the globe. The United States formally
began its rate hike cycle to contain escalating inflation, boosting the
appeal and relative strength of USD compared with other currencies.
Although the adoption of pegged exchange rate by Hong Kong
would alleviate the pressure of exchange loss in respect of HKD
against USD, it would increase the risk of exchange loss arising
from depreciation of RMB against HKD, resulting in an exchange
loss of approximately HK$6,295,000 for last year. Although inflation
alleviated to some extend in the first half of the year, the interest
rates of HKD and USD remained high. In addition, the recovery of
China’s economy fell short of expectations, necessitating a cut in the
RMB interest rate to stimulate economy growth. This underscored
the difference in interest rate policies between China and the US,
and detracted from the appeal of RMB. As a result, the depreciation
pressure of RMB against USD and HKD persisted, representing
an exchange loss of approximately HK$1,510,000. Therefore, the
Board believes that RMB will be immensely affected by Sino-US
relations, fluid epidemic dynamics, USD rate hike cycle and domestic
economic recovery in the short term, the path of which is hard to
predict, but in the long run, it is expected that RMB will remain
stable and will not expose the Group to significant and long term
adverse foreign exchange risk. Accordingly, it is not necessary for
the Group to hedge against foreign exchange risk at the moment.

OUTLOOK

The global economy remains unstable, and economic growth
remains slow, while rate hikes dampened consumer spending and
corporate investment, and threatened the stability of the financial
system. With more economic uncertainties as a result of the war in
Ukraine and Israeli-Gaza area, the insufficient total demand in China,
swamped Chinese real estate issuers, slower economic restructuring
and upgrading, subdued consumer confidence and consumption,
and the unsatisfactory operation of enterprises in various industries,
the Group is still committed to its strategic orientation, striving
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Chairman’s Statement (Continuea)

to become a first-class technology-based health care services
provider in the Greater Bay Area, building a “1+X” ecosystem, taking
the wellness and elderly care business as the principal direction,
and technology, financial leasing, civil explosives business as the
strategic support, and firmly establishing the standpoint of the Group
as a whole.

For our wellness and elderly care business, Guangdong Taoyuan
Comprehensive Health Operation Company Limited (“Taoyuan
Comprehensive Health”) will continue to consolidate its elderly
care business and strengthen its principal business. The Group
will continue to expand the construction of elderly care facilities,
increase the number of institutional nursing beds, improve the quality
of services, and strengthen the standard operation and branding of
its elderly care business, asset-light trustee operation, rehabilitation
hospital qualification and facilities upgrade. In addition, the Company
will accelerate to replicate the successful experience and model
to other regions, expand asset-light trustee operations, and march
into the Greater Bay Area from Nanhai to become the first echelon
in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. At the
same time, the Group is anticipating to promote high-end business,
deepen business cooperation at home and abroad, and extend
the development of high-end elderly care and high-quality projects
related to aging population, medical care, biomedicine and other
areas. The Group is committed to serving the community while
enabling our elderly care and wellness business to continue to grow
and become an important contributor to the Company’s profitability
by further improving management, reducing costs, increasing
efficiency, enhancing the quality and strengthening service quality.

For our big data business, the Group will continue to meet the needs
arising from the latest development of the industry, continue its
efforts to expand its market scale and accelerate the implementation
of investments and acquisitions, provide guidance to local
enterprises in the application of industrial Internet technologies such
as identification analysis for digital transformation, form a cluster of
digital economy at the industry level, and comprehensively promote
the high-quality development of local manufacturing industry. Our
goal remains to accelerate the establishment of a quality service
system for manufacturing enterprises, and strive to become a first-
class full-chain industrial Internet platform service provider in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continuea)

For our financial leasing business, with the philosophy of
“marketization, specialization and differentiation” in mind, we
are committed to turning ourselves into a leading domestic
environmental professional financial leasing company, focusing
on municipal environmental protection. We aim to establish a
standardized evaluation system for industrial projects and launch
off-the-shelf products in each segment with precise marketing and
sales strategy. We are also looking to promote the high-quality
development of environmental protection industry with a green
finance focus on the domestic environmental protection industry, to
provide professional, efficient, high-quality financial leasing products
and services, in order to win quality customers as our objective. In
terms of enhanced fund management, we will deepen cooperation
with credit granting banks to improve our credit worthiness and
optimize financing conditions, to meet the requirements of large and
private enterprise projects from outside the province. In addition, we
will exploit bank facilities with lower cost by introducing bank bidding
and building a closer tie with banks to optimize the cost of capital;
complete the rating of entities and strive to attain an AA rating after
the completion of industrial and commercial changes. The Group
will further strengthen its risk control management, financial and
integrated management to mitigate the risk of doubtful debts and
strive to attain an A rating for the annual classified supervisory rating.

For our civil explosives business, the Group will further pursue
key reforms, actively carry out the technological transformation of
clean energy to achieve energy conservation, emission reduction
and cost reduction, and carry out reforms in operation and human
resources management to continuously enhance the vitality of the
Group’s development. The Group has made every effort to complete
creating conditions for the release of mixed assembly capacity and
to establish cooperation in the operation of mixed assembly capacity,
so as to substantially improve its future performance and contribute
steady revenue streams to the Group in the future.

In addition, the Group will aggressively explore opportunities to carry
out investment and merger and acquisition of biopharmaceutical and
high-tech enterprises or projects to seek leapfrog development of
the business of the Company, thereby delivering good returns to the
shareholders of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Hing Yip Holdings Limited (the “Company”) puts great emphasis
on corporate governance and is committed to maintaining the
high standard of corporate governance which is reviewed and
strengthened on a continued basis. The board of directors (the
“Board”) and the management of the Company maintains and
enhances the policies and practices of the Company in a timely,
transparent, effective and responsible manner, so as to maintain
good, solid and reasonable corporate governance structure. The
Board believes that the Company and shareholders as a whole can
derive maximum benefits from good corporate governance.

The Company has adopted all the code provisions under the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as its own code on corporate governance.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied
with all code provisions under the CG Code.

CORPORATE MISSION, VALUES, VISION AND
CULTURE

As an enterprise committed to wellness and elderly care business
as its strategic focus, the Group’s vision is to become a top-tier
healthcare solution provider with technology by improving the level of
healthcare services through technology empowerment and creating
a leading healthcare service benchmark in the Bay Area. The
Group lives up to its core values by gathering the love and strength
of the Company, fostering a positive atmosphere and providing
broad space for growth for its staff, and providing the society with
meticulous, caring and humanized services, thereby achieving the
mission of “a healthy life building Hing Yip Holdings”. Guided by
the Group’s core values mission, shape the Group’s strategy and
direction so as to achieve the aim of sustainable development and
creation of values for the shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes the
Board and four committees under the Board, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and
strategy committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference
of all committees in writing and specifies clearly the power and
responsibilities of the committees.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board comprised seven directors, including three executive
directors who have extensive business experience, one non-
executive director and three independent non-executive directors
who possess appropriate professional qualifications. Throughout the
year 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, the composition
of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman)

Mr. Fu Weigiang (President)

Mr. You Guang Wu

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy President)
(resigned on 1 April 2023)

Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy President)
(resigned on 1 April 2023)

Mr. Cheng Weidong (Deputy President)
(resigned on 1 April 2023)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Shi Xuguang
(appointed on 28 June 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Peng Xinyu
Ms. Lin Junxian
(appointed on 28 June 2023)
Mr. Deng Hong Ping
(retired on 28 June 2023)

With effect from 1 April 2023, Mr. Huang Zhihe, Ms. Wang Xin and
Mr. Cheng Weidong resigned as executive directors of the Company
due to job allocation and they remain as the deputy presidents of the
Company. With effect from 1 February 2024, Ms. Wang Xin resigned
as the deputy president of the Company.

Mr. Deng Hong Ping (“Mr. Deng”) retired as an independent non-
executive director with effect from the conclusion of the 2023 annual
general meeting held on 28 June 2023. At the same time, Mr. Deng
ceased to act as the chairman of remuneration committee and a
member of each of audit committee and nomination committee.

On the same date, Mr. Peng Xinyu was appointed by the Board as
the chairman of the remuneration committee after Mr. Deng ceased
to act as the chairman of the remuneration committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continuec)

The ordinary resolutions regarding the election of Mr. Shi Xuguang
(“Mr. Shi”) as a non-executive director and the election of Ms. Lin
Junxian (“Ms. Lin") as an independent non-executive director were
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the 2023 annual
general meeting on 28 June 2023. Mr. Shi was also appointed
by the Board as a member of strategy committee and Ms. Lin
was also appointed by the Board as a member of each of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee.

Every director has sufficient time and attention to deal with the
affairs of the Group. Each director discloses to the Company for
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments every year. The
Board considers the composition of executive and non-executive
directors complies with the Listing Rules requirements and provides
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors provide the Group with
diversified experience and expertise. Their suggestions, opinions
and participation in the meetings of the Board and each committee
bring independent opinions, suggestions and judgements on
issues relating to the Group’s strategy, development, operations,
performance, risk control and conflicts of interest, to ensure that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, subject to
the manner of retirement by rotation of directors as from time to
time prescribed under the Listing Rules and notwithstanding any
contractual or other terms on which any director may be appointed
or engaged, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

Individual information and responsibilities of all directors are
contained in this annual report on pages 36 to 38.

There are no business, financial, family and other relevant interests
among directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continuec)

THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements and
matters, monitoring the performance of senior management and
is responsible for corporate governance with a view to increasing
shareholders’ value. Led by the president, the management is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans developed by
the Board. The Board authorizes the management to manage the
day-to-day business operations of the Group. Each committee under
the Board has its own specified terms of reference which clearly
define their powers and responsibilities.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters reserved to the
Board for its decision and has separately identified those functions
reserved to the Board. The Board will review those arrangements on
a regular basis to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of
the Company.

The Board performs the obligations regarding corporate governance,
including :

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance including the board diversity policy,
mechanisms to ensure independent views of the Board and
shareholders communication policy;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4, develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each year
(approximately once each quarter) and will convene meetings
when necessary. When a regular board meeting is convened, the
Board papers will be sent to directors for review before the meeting
pursuant to the deadline as required by the Listing Rules and the
code provisions so that directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

All members of the Board have actively participated in the
Company’s Board meetings to discuss the overall strategy and
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business of the Group. The Board convened eight meetings in 2023 R_E_=FHBE \XRTH EELEE
and the attendance of directors is as follows: A
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Directors EEHH BITRH HEE
Executive Directors HITER
Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman) AIEBLE (£/F) 8/8 100%
Mr. Fu Weigiang (President) HEBIE () 8/8 100%
Mr. You Guang Wu BEERfTE 8/8 100%
Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy President) BEMAcE (BIAEE) 4/4 100%
(resigned on 1 April 2023) MZZE2Z=FmMA—H
B 1)
Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy President) Tkt (5/4E#) 4/4 100%
(resigned on 1 April 2023) MZZE2Z=FmMA—H
B ()
Mr. Cheng Weidong (Deputy President) RRESE (FIEZ) 4/4 100%
(resigned on 1 April 2023) MZZE2Z=FmMA—H
B ()
Non-Executive Director FEHITEE
Mr. Shi Xuguang (appointed on SPRALE (RZE = 3/3 100%
28 June 2023) NAZTNBEZD)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIFPITESE
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai ek [ 122 5 4 8/8 100%
Mr. Peng Xinyu EZ b 8/8 100%
Ms. Lin Junxian (appointed on 28 June 2023) MEEZ L+ (KT =_= 3/3 100%
NEZ+N\BEZD)
Mr. Deng Hong Ping WREFELE (RZE_= 5/5 100%

(retired on 28 June 2023)

NAZ+HN\BEMD

MECHANISMS TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT
VIEWS

The Board has adopted effective mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. Subject to approval of
the chairman of the Board, directors may seek, at the Company’s
expense, independent legal, financial or other professional advices
from advisors independent to those advising the Company as and
when necessary in appropriate circumstances to enable them to
discharge their responsibilities effectively. To ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board, the selection criteria
and process of independent non-executive directors set out in
the Company’s Nomination Policy and all any requirements on
independent non-executive directors set out in the Listing Rules
(as amended from time to time) shall form an integral part of this
mechanism.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanisms on an annual basis. The Board considers that the above
mechanisms are effective in ensuring that independent views and
input are provided to the Board.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
PRESIDENT

The chairman is responsible for the operation of the Board and the
president is responsible for managing the operations of the Group.
Their functions have been clearly divided to ensure a balanced
distribution of power and authority so that they will not concentrate
on a single individual. During the year, the chairman of the Board
is Mr. He Xiangming and the president of the Company is Mr. Fu
Weigiang.

The chairman of the Board is principally responsible for leading
the Board and ensures the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The chairman shall ensure the Board operates effectively
and performs its proper duties and discusses all important and
proper matters in a timely manner. The chairman is responsible for
convening board meetings, consulting, determining and approving
the agenda of each board meeting, and ensuring that directors are
provided sufficient information on current matters in a timely manner.
The chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Company
formulates good corporate governance practice and procedure.

The president is principally responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Group’s overall operations and implementing
the Board’s operating strategy and policy and delegating tasks
to all departments for implementation so as to realize the
Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, the president is
also responsible for coordinating close cooperation among all
departments, uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative
of staff so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of the
Company’s operations and systems.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed directors are provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations. The
company secretary and representative of auditor update directors
on the latest development and changes regarding the Listing Rules,
accounting standards and other relevant regulatory requirements
from time to time.

In addition, the directors are provided with monthly updates on
the Company’s performance and position to enable the Board as a
whole and each director to discharge their duties.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the directors, all directors have
participated in continuous professional development for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

During the year under review, all directors participated in continuous
professional development to update their knowledge and skills by
reading materials relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
and/or their relevant professional and by attending the training
programs arranged by the Company and/or talks and seminars
organised by different professional institutions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model Code”) set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. After making specific
enquiries, all directors have confirmed that, in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023, they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors with extensive experience in accounting or legal aspects.
The audit committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the financial
statements, annual reports and accounts and risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, providing advice to
the Board, and making recommendations on the appointment,
remuneration and any matters related to the termination of the
auditor of the Company. Mr. Chan Kwok Wai is the chairman of the
audit committee and is responsible for reporting the meeting results
and recommendations of the audit committee to the Board after
each meeting.
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In 2023, the audit committee convened two meetings. Members and WM _E_=F - BEREETHEHEM R E
their attendance are as follows: FOMBRHEBERUOT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HEXRE
Name of Members REHH BITRH HEE
Chan Kwok Wali IR [ 12 2/2 100%
(chairman of the audit committee) (BRZEET/E)
Peng Xinyu EZGie] 2/2 100%
Lin Junxian (appointed on 28 June 2023) Wﬁ%ﬁ MZ2Z= 1/1 100%
NBZ+ N\ B éﬁt_)
Deng Hong Ping (retired on 28 June 2023) BEF RE_= 1/1 100%

NAZ+NA\HEMD
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

During the year, Mr. Deng Hong Ping retired as an independent
non-executive director and ceased to be a member of the audit
committee of the Company with effect from 28 June 2023. On
the same date, Ms. Lin Junxian was appointed by the Board as
an independent non-executive director and member of the audit
committee of the Company.

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year included
reviewing the 2022 audited financial statements and the annual
results announcement, reviewing the interim report and the interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2023,
considering the accounting standards adopted, reviewing the
financial reporting, internal control and risk management systems,
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal audit function,
reviewing the management letter about audit work of the auditor
submitted to the management and the basis of opinion made by the
auditor in their report, etc.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and two executive directors. The remuneration
committee is principally responsible for reviewing remuneration plans
for directors and senior management, making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration package of executive directors and
senior management, including benefits, pension rights and payment
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of compensation. Mr. Peng Xinyu is the chairman of the remuneration HEZEZHREHFNESE TN T ZERRIEE
committee and is responsible for reporting the meeting results and =E &
recommendations of the remuneration committee to the Board after
each meeting.
In 2023, the remuneration committee convened three meetings. MW _E_=F  HFMESESGHEET=Xg
Members and their attendance are as follows: FONEBRHEEERUT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Directors EEN4 BITRE HE=R
Peng Xinyu EZ = (%ﬁﬁ%//éﬁ 2E/E) 3/3 100%
(chairman of the remuneration committee) MZEZ=%F"A
(appointed as chairman of the remuneration “+NHEZEA
committee on 28 June 2023) FNEEEEE)
He Xiangming GIEEE 3/3 100%
Fu Weigiang 2R 3/3 100%
Chan Kwok Wali Ik [ 12 3/3 100%
Lin Junxian (appointed on 28 June 2023) MEE (W= 2/2 100%
NAZ+HN\BEZMD)
Deng Hong Ping (retired on 28 June 2023) BRF (RZZEZ=FAH 11 100%
Z+NBEMD
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

During the year, Mr. Deng Hong Ping retired as an independent
non-executive director and ceased to be the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 28 June
2023. Mr. Peng Xinyu, an independent non-executive director,
was appointed by the Board as the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company after Mr. Deng ceased to act as the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company. On
the same date, Ms. Lin Junxian was appointed by the Board
as an independent non-executive director and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee during the year
included reviewing the remuneration of Mr. Shi Xuguang and Ms.
Lin Junxian, the new directors, considering the incentive payment,
considering revise of remuneration and performance assessment
code of directors and senior management, fixing position coefficient
of an executive director and making recommendations to the Board.
The remuneration committee also ensures that no director or senior
management member determines his/her own remuneration.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration based on the responsibilities, qualifications and
working performance of staff (including directors). The Group
adopted the share option scheme for a term of 10 years on 26 April
2013, and such share option scheme was expired on 26 April 2023.

The remuneration of directors is determined with reference to their
functions and responsibilities and the results of the Company in
accordance with the remuneration and performance management
code of directors and senior management which was approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the second special general
meeting held on 18 January 2024. Any director is not allowed
to participate in determining his/her own remuneration. The
remuneration received by directors from the Group during the year is
set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises two executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors. The nomination
committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. It shall consider
the suitability of a candidate to act as a director on the basis of
the candidate’s qualification, experience, integrity and potential
contribution to the Company, and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors under the requirements set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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In 2023, the nomination committee convened two meetings. R _ZE - =ZF > L LZETSRITMA I
Members and their attendance are as follows: FEoOMBRHFEERUT
Number of
Attendance/
Number of Attendance
Meetings Rate
HERE
Name of Directors EEN4 BITRE HE=R
He Xiangming GBS 2/2 100%
(chairman of the nomination committee) (ELZEEEE)
Fu Weigiang TR 2/2 100%
Chan Kwok Wai ek B {22 2/2 100%
Peng Xinyu EZ N 2/2 100%
Lin Junxian (appointed on 28 June 2023) MWEE RN_E_=F 0/0 N/A
NAZTNBEZD)
Deng Hong Ping (retired on 28 June 2023) WMERFE (RZE2EZ=F 2/2 100%

NAZ+NBEME

During the year, Mr. Deng Hong Ping retired as an independent non-
executive director and ceased to be a member of the nomination
committee of the Company with effect from 28 June 2023. On the
same date, Ms. Lin Junxian was appointed by the Board as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company.

The work carried out by the nomination committee during the
year included considering and nominating Mr. Shi Xuguang and
Ms. Lin Junxian, based on their education, skills, knowledge and
experience, as the new directors of the Company, reviewing the
Board structure of the Company, reviewing and recommending the
re-election of the retiring directors at the annual general meeting,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors,
considering and reviewing the Board diversity policy and making
recommendations to the Board.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company have
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules and have
presented annual confirmations of independence issued pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company. The nomination
committee has assessed their independence and confirms that all
independent non-executive directors are independent parties as
defined in the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the letters of appointment,
the term of office of Mr. Chan Kwok Wai, Mr. Peng Xinyu and Ms.
Lin Junxian are until 30 June 2025, 30 June 2024 and 30 June
2025 respectively. They are subject to the retirement by rotation and
re-election requirements of the bye-laws of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a director. The selection criteria used
in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc. The
procedure of appointing and re-appointing a director is summarised
as follows:—

1. The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

2. When it is necessary to appoint an additional director or fill a
casual vacancy, the nomination committee identifies, selects
and recommends candidates to the Board pursuant to post
nature and the criteria set out in the Nomination Policy.

3. The nomination committee shall submit the candidate’s resume
and recommendation, including terms of appointment, to the
Board for consideration. If the process yields one or more
desirable candidates, the nomination committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the assessment result
and presents the same together with its recommendation to the
Board for consideration.

4.  Based on the recommendation from the nomination committee,
the Board will consider and approve the appointment of new
director(s).

5.  Each director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election at
the annual general meeting of the year.

6. The nomination committee shall review overall contribution,
performance, professional knowledge and qualifications of the
retiring directors and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration for their re-election.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. With a view to maintaining competitive advantage, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element. Therefore, the Company adopted the Board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) in 2013 and revised on 1 January 2023.
The policy set out that the nomination committee of the Company
reviews and assesses the composition of the Board, makes
recommendations to the Board on appointment of new directors
of the Company, oversees the conduct of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Board in order to achieve the objective of Board
diversity and ensure there is no single gender board. In addition,
mechanisms including supervising, reporting and policy reviewing
etc. ensure that the Board Diversity Policy will be implemented
effectively.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The nomination committee has reviewed from time to time the
diversity of the Board of the Company to ensure that the policy
will be implemented effectively and considered that there is no
immediate need for setting up the measurable objectives.

The nomination committee monitors the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy to ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy. The nomination committee reviewed the Nomination Policy
and the Board Diversity Policy, and considered that the said policies
were appropriate and effective.

As at 31 December 2023, the members of the Board consist of six
male members and one female member. The Company will consider
to enhance gender diversity in the Board in terms of gender ratio
from time to time. The nomination committee reviews annually the
need for achieving higher gender diversity in the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has 1,302 employees in
total comprising of 740 females and 562 males (a female-to-male
ratio of approximately 1.32:1). The Group when hiring employees
considers a number of factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and education background, qualification, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service,
and the Group will make sure achieving gender diversity across the
workforce.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
In considering dividend payment, the Board will take into account
factors such as the Group’s expected financial performance,
business conditions and strategies, expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans, business cycles and other
internal or external factors that may affect the Company’s business
or financial performance and financial position, return and interest
of the shareholders and other factors which the Board considers to
be relevant. The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and the Dividend Policy does not constitute any commitment or
obligation of the Company to declare dividends.

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The strategy committee was set up on 30 March 2023 and
comprises of three executive directors, namely Mr. He Xiangming
(chairman of the strategy committee), Mr. Fu Weigiang and Mr. You
Guangwu, one non-executive director namely Mr. Shi Xuguang and
one independent non-executive director namely Mr. Peng Xinyu. The
strategy committee is principally responsible for planning the Group’s
overall medium and long-term development strategies and goals,
annual business plans and budgets. In 2023, no meeting was held
by the strategy committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate
the Group to manage it risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the audit committee and the senior
management of the Company. The Board determines the nature
and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
design, implementation and control of the risk management and
internal control systems, so as to ensure the Group has set up and
maintained a suitable and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has formulated and adopted corporate risk management
policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the senior management
identifies risks that would affect the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners
are then established for those risks considered to be significant.

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy to govern
acceptance of advantages by employees and a whistleblowing policy
to provide guidance to employees and external stakeholders to
report concerns about any suspected or actual improprieties relating
to the Group.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit function to
assist the Board and the audit committee in ongoing monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
identify deficiencies in the design and implementation of risk
management and internal controls and recommend proposal for
improvement. Significant risk management and internal control
deficiencies have been reported to the audit committee and the
Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are
taken.

Risk management report and internal control report are submitted to
the audit committee and the Board at least once a year. The Board
has performed annual review on the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
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Corporate Governance Report (Continuec)

internal control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s
ability to cope with its business transformation and changing external
environment; the scope and quality of management’s review on risk
management and internal control systems; result of internal audit
work; the extent and frequency of communication with the Board in
relation to result of risk and internal control review; significant failures
or weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside
information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information.
The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
safe harbours as provided in the Securities Future Ordinance. The
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, if the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would
immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading, or false or misleading through omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and
negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is Mr. Lo Tai On, who is engaged and
appointed by the Company from an external secretarial services
provider. The primary contact persons with the company secretary
of the Company are Mr. He Xiangming (executive director and
chairman) and Ms. Ella Chong (assistant to the chairman). During the
year, the company secretary of the Company duly complied with the
relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, in order to bring the bye-Laws of
the Company in line with certain amendments to the Listing Rules
particularly Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules covering the core
shareholder protection standards which came into effect on 1
January 2022 and relevant requirements of the applicable laws of
Bermuda, to enable the Company to convene and hold electronic
or hybrid general meetings of members and provide flexibility to
the Company in relation to the conduct of general meetings, and
to make other consequential and housekeeping changes in relation
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thereto, the Company adopted new bye-laws of the Company at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2023
to replace the existing bye-laws of the Company with effect from 28
June 2023. Save for mentioned above, there were no other changes
in the constitutional documents of the Company during the year.
The new memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company
has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Subsequent to the passing of the special resolution approving the
proposed change of company name by the shareholders of the
Company at the second special general meeting of the Company
held on 18 January 2024, the certificate of change of name and
the certificate of secondary name were issued by the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda certifying that the name of the Company has
been changed from “China Investments Holdings Limited” to “Hing
Yip Holdings Limited”, and the secondary name in Chinese “E 24
R BEBR/AE)" has been adopted in place of the unregistered Chinese
name of “HEIEEITRER/AT", and the new names have been
entered into the register maintained by the Registrar of Companies in
Bermuda with effect from 18 January 2024.

The certificate of registration of alteration of name of registered non-
Hong Kong company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in
Hong Kong on 31 January 2024 confirming the registration of the
Company’s new English and Chinese names of “Hing Yip Holdings
Limited” and “BE 2B R/AE)” respectively in Hong Kong under
Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

With effect from 9:00 a.m. on 9 February 2024, the stock short
name changed to “HING YIP HLDGS” in English and “BZ3%8”
in Chinese for the purpose of trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange. The stock code of the Company on the Stock Exchange
remained unchanged as “00132”. The corporate website address of
the Company changed from “http://chinainvestments.tonghaiir.com”
to “http://hingyiphk.quamhkir.com” with effect from 6 February 2024.

Details of the change of name of the Company were set out in
the circular of the Company dated 29 December 2023 and the
announcements of the Company dated 20 December 2023 and 6
February 2024, respectively.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing financial
statements of the Group.
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The financial department of the Company is managed by a qualified
accountant. With the assistance of the financial department, the
Board will ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group complies with relevant regulations and applicable accounting
standards.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the audit fee was
approximately HK$1,900,000 and the non-audit services fee
mainly included services provided as reporting accountants was
approximately HK$1,205,000.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by HLM CPA
Limited, the auditor of the Company, in respect of the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 87 to 99.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of good communication
with shareholders and investors, and recognizes the value of
providing current and relevant information to shareholders and
investors. The Board has established a shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation to
shareholders’ communication, with the objective of ensuring that
both shareholders and investors can obtain the complete, identical
and current information of the Company in a timely manner.

The Company has maintained communication with shareholders
through the annual general meeting or other general meetings and
encourages them to participate in general meetings. Registered
shareholders receive notices of general meetings by post. The notice
of general meeting contains the agenda, the proposed resolutions
and the voting form. Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend
the annual general meeting and special general meetings provided
that their shares must be registered in the register of members.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the general meeting can
fill in the proxy form attached with the notice of general meeting
and return the same to the Company so as to appoint their
representatives or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies.

At the annual general meeting held on 28 June 2023, all the
directors were present to answer questions from the shareholders
and separate resolution in respect of each separate issue was
proposed for shareholders to vote thereon. The Company appointed
branch share registrar of the Company to act as scrutineers and
to ensure votes cast are properly counted and recorded, and
announced the results of the poll on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company and the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a shareholders communication policy
in 2012 which sets out the Group’s commitment of maintaining
an effective ongoing dialogue with shareholders. In summary,
the Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and stakeholders including: (i) provision of printed
or electronic copies of corporate communications; (ii) provision of
timely corporate information on the company website; (i) holding of
annual general meetings to provide platform for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; and (iv) arrangement
in serving the shareholders in respect of all share registration
matters. The Board reviewed the validity of implementation of the
Shareholder’s Communication Policy during the year and considered
that it remained effective in enhancing timely, transparent,
accurate and open communication between the Company and the
shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require
a special general meeting to be called and propose any matter
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company. The
Requisitionists may deposit the written requisition for special general
meeting (which shall specify the full name of the Requisitionists,
the business and proposal to be considered at the general meeting
of the Company, and shall be signed by the Requisitionists) to the
principal place of business of the Company for the attention of
the Board. If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting in specified days as
provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules,
the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director

In accordance with the provision 86 of the Company’s bye-laws,
no person other than a director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election as
a director at any general meeting unless not less than seven (7)
days before the date appointed for the general meeting there shall
have been lodged at the office or at the head office notice in writing
signed by a member (other than the person to be proposed) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given of his intention to propose such person for election and
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also notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected provided that the period for lodgment
of the aforesaid notice shall commence no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to
the date of such general meeting. For further information, please
refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director” published on the Company’s website at
http://hingyiphk.quamhkir.com.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company (“Proposers”), or not less than one
hundred of such registered shareholders can request the Company
in writing to: (a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and (b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Proposers may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Proposers; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
name, address, telephone number and email address etc.) by the
following means:

Address: Unit 501, Wing On Plaza, 62 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax No.: 852-23013878

Email: general@hingyip-hk.com
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Directors’ Report

The directors present the annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
41 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s fair review of the business during the year and
discussion on the future business development of the Group are
set out in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 13 of this
annual report. In addition, the discussion on the principal risks
and uncertainties which the Group is exposed to the relationships
with the Group’s suppliers, customers and other stakeholders, the
Group’s environmental policies and performance and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out in below paragraphs and the section on
employees under page 33 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year with financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Chairman’s Statement on
pages 4 to 13 of this annual report.

The events significantly affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report are set out in Note 42 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks, operational risks and financial
management risks.

Details of financial risk management policies and practices of the
Group is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate
and long-term goals. The Group continuously enhance relationships
with individual and corporate customers, which enjoys good
relationship with suppliers and customers. During the year of 2023,
there were no material and significant dispute between the Group
and its suppliers and/or customers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting in an
environmentally responsible manner, the Group endeavours to
comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources,
energy saving and waste reduction. Relevant environmental
management policies and procedures have been formulated in
different segments by the Group to manage the use of resources
like water, electricity and various fuel. An environmental, social and
governance report is set out on pages 46 to 86 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland China while the Company
itself is incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”). Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in Bermuda, mainland China and Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this report, the Group have complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the mainland China, Hong Kong and the Bermuda that
have a significant impact on the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 100 to 101 of this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group revalued all of its investment properties at the year end
date. There was a revaluation surplus of HK$209,212,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: deficit of HK$711,000).
Details of such revaluation are set out in Note 17 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

Particulars regarding the Group’s major properties are set out on
pages 256 to 260 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 104 and 105 and Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, except that under
the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of approximately HK$725,199,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Xiangming (Chairman)

Mr. Fu Weigiang (President)

Mr. You Guang Wu

Mr. Huang Zhihe (Deputy President)
(resigned on 1 April 2023)

Ms. Wang Xin (Deputy President)
(resigned on 1 April 2023)

Mr. Cheng Weidong (Deputy President)
(resigned on 1 April 2023)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Shi Xuguang
(appointed on 28 June 2023)
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai
Mr. Peng Xinyu
Ms. Lin Junxian
(appointed on 28 June 2023)
Mr. Deng Hong Ping
(retired on 28 June 2023)

With effect from 1 April 2023, Mr. Huang Zhihe, Ms. Wang Xin and
Mr. Cheng Weidong resigned as executive directors of the Company
due to job allocation and they remain as the deputy presidents of the
Company. With effect from 1 February 2024, Ms. Wang Xin resigned
as the deputy president of the Company.

Mr. Deng Hong Ping (“Mr. Deng”) retired as an independent non-
executive director with effect from the conclusion of the 2023 annual
general meeting held on 28 June 2023. At the same time, Mr. Deng
ceased to act as the chairman of remuneration committee and a
member of each of audit committee and nomination committee of
the Company.

On the same date, Mr. Peng Xinyu was appointed by the Board as
the chairman of the remuneration committee after Mr. Deng ceased
to act as the chairman of the remuneration committee.

The ordinary resolutions regarding the election of Mr. Shi Xuguang
(“Mr. Shi”) as a non-executive director and the election of Ms. Lin
Junxian (“Ms. Lin") as an independent non-executive director were
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the 2023 annual
general meeting on 28 June 2023. Mr. Shi was also appointed
by the Board as a member of strategy committee and Ms. Lin
was also appointed by the Board as a member of each of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. You Guang Wu (“Mr.
You”), Mr. Chan Kwok Wai and Mr. Peng Xinyu, being the directors
longest in office since their last re-election, will retire by rotation
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Chan
Kwok Wai and Mr. Peng Xinyu (except Mr. You Guang Wu due to his
retirement as mentioned below), being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.

Mr. You, an executive director of the Company, who will reach the
retirement age at the end of the year, will retire as an executive
director by rotation from office in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company and he will not offer himself for re-election.
Accordingly, he will cease to act as an executive director and
a member of the strategy committee of the Company after
the conclusion of the 2024 annual general meeting but will be
redesignated as the consultant of the Company.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Pursuant to the letters of appointment, the terms of office of Mr. Shi
Xuguang, Mr. Chan Kwok Wai, Mr. Peng Xinyu and Ms. Lin Junxian
are until 30 June 2025, 30 June 2025, 30 June 2024 and 30 June
2025, respectively.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

He Xiangming, aged 57, was appointed as an executive director
and chairman of the Board of the Company on 23 July 2014. Mr.
He is the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of
each of the remuneration committee and strategy committee of the
Company, the chairman of the board of directors of Guilin Plaza*,
Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Ltd.* and Guangdong Taoyuan
Comprehensive Health Operation Co., Ltd.* and a director in a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. He holds a master
degree in Geography from South China Normal University. He has
extensive experience in business management and environmental
public utilities. Mr. He is also a director of Nanhai Listing Promotion
Association*. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. He was the chairman
of Grandblue Environment Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange).

Fu Weiqgiang, aged 45, was appointed as an executive director
and the president of the Company on 1 October 2021. Mr. Fu is a
member of each of the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the strategy committee of the Company and the
chairman of the board of directors of Guangdong Sinsing Technology
Ltd.*, Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Ltd.*, the managing
director of Guangdong Taoyuan Comprehensive Health Operation
Co., Ltd.* and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He holds a master degree in public administration from Wuhan
University and a bachelor of science degree in economic geography
and urban and rural planning from Sun Yat-sen University. He has
extensive experience in industrial planning, resource development
and integration, organization reform and corporate operation and
management. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Fu worked in several
government departments in Nanhai District Foshan City, including
the deputy officer of Land Reserve Centre of Nanhai* (F/&8&+
£ L) and the deputy director of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administrative Bureau of Nanhai District, Foshan
City* (LT M EEREEEREEIRR).
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

You Guang Wu, aged 59, was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 until 6
April 2006 when he was redesignated as vice chairman of the Board
and executive director of the Company. On 26 February 2009, Mr.
You was appointed as the chairman of the Board and on 23 July
2014 resigned as the chairman of the Board. Mr. You is now an
executive director of the Company and a member of the strategy
committee of the Company. Mr. You is a senior accountant in the
PRC. He holds a master degree in economics. He has accumulated
extensive experience in investment, financing and financial
management.

Non-Executive Director

Shi Xuguang, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 28 June 2023 and is a member of the strategy
committee of the Company. Mr. Shi holds a master degree in
Automation from Harbin Institute of Technology and a doctorate
degree in Engineering from South China University of Technology in
Control Theory and Control Engineering, and holds the professional
qualifications of a senior economist and a senior engineer. He is
currently the deputy general manager of Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Group Co., Ltd.* which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Shi has many years of work foundation and extensive practical
experience in industrial research, equity investment and business
management.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Kwok Wai, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 September 2004 and
is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each of
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree in Accounting and
Commerce, and is a member of the CPA Australia and a member of
Hong Kong Securities Institute. He has over 30 years of experience
in the finance and accounting industry. Mr. Chan is also currently
an independent non-executive director of 3 other listed public
companies in Hong Kong, namely Chinese Estates Holdings Limited,
Tern Properties Company Limited, National Electronics Holdings
Limited, and was an independent non-executive director of Far East
Consortium International Limited for the period from 18 November
2005 to 30 August 2022.
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Peng Xinyu, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 23 June 2022 and is a
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a
member of each of the audit committee, the nomination committee
and the strategy committee of the Company. Mr. Peng holds a
doctoral degree in Science from Sun Yat-sen University and is a
professor at the School of Business Administration of South China
University of Technology. He has a solid theoretical foundation and
rich practical experience in economics, investment and financing,
financial management and enterprise management. He had served
as the person in charge of investment and financial management,
chief economist, general manager and independent director of
several companies, and has rich experience in corporate mergers
and acquisitions and investment.

Lin Junxian, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 28 June 2023 and a member
of each of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Company. She holds a bachelor
degree in Law from Sun Yat-sen University and a master degree in
Economics from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. She
had worked for a number of law firms and currently serves as a
vice director and senior partner of Guangdong Truth Leading Law
Firm*. In 2019, she was admitted as a criminal and administrative
lawyer by the Guangdong Provincial Department of Justice and the
Guangdong Lawyers Association. Ms. Lin has a solid theoretical
foundation in the fields of law and economic law, and has
extensive practical experience in handling various cases including
administrative, civil and commercial affairs, state-owned assets,
company equity and equity of collective economic organizations.

Senior Management

Huang Zhihe, aged 55, is the deputy president of the Company and
a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Huang
holds a bachelor degree in industrial management and engineering
and a master of business administration from South China University
of Technology. He has extensive experience of investment and
development in real estate and management in hotel industry.

Cheng Weidong, aged 53, is the deputy president of the Company
and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He holds
a degree in economic management from the Party School of the
Guangdong Provincial Committee of Communist Party of China. He
has extensive experience in corporate investment and development
planning. Prior to joining the Company, he worked as the chief officer
of the Planning and Development Division of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administrative Bureau of Nanhai District, Foshan
City*.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interest of the Company’s directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
C8 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares or interest in debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interest or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, according to the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO, the persons who were interested in 5% or more in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company are as follows:
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Glories Holdings (HK) Limited 1,441,439,842 Beneficial owner 84.18%
BERE (FR) BRAR (Note) E@mEEA
(By5E)
Prize Rich Inc. 1,441,439,842 Corporate interest 84.18%
(Note) AR
(B 5E)
Guangdong Nanhai Holding Group Co., Ltd.* 1,441,439,842  Corporate interest 84.18%
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Note: These 1,441,439,842 shares/underlying shares are held by Prize
Rich Inc., which is wholly-owned by Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Group Co., Ltd.*. On 25 July 2022, Prize Rich Inc. agreed to transfer
1,222,718,527 shares and HK$166,232,000 convertible bonds (with
underlying shares of 218,726,315) to its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Glories Holdings (HK) Limited, pursuant to the equity and convertible
bonds transfer agreement.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the
register as having an interest in 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed below, there were no connected transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.

On 6 December 2023, CIH Finance Investments Holdings Limited
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (the “Vendor”) and
Guangdong Nanhai Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (the “Purchaser”)
entered into a disposal agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor
agreed to sell and the Purchaser agreed to acquire 72% equity
interest in Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.* (a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) at a consideration of
RMB972,000,000 (the “Disposal”).

*

For identification purpose only
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

The Purchaser is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
interested in 71.41% of all issued shares of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the
Disposal constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and
is subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and Independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of the transactions are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 6 December 2023, circular dated
29 December 2023 and announcement dated 18 January 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 40 to the
financial statements. Those related party transactions constituted
exempt connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme was for a term
of 10 years from the date of adoption and has expired on 26 April
2023. No option has been granted during the effective period of the
Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to provide the Group
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants for their
contribution or future contribution to the Group and to strengthen
the long-term relationships that the participants may have with the
Group.

For details of terms of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
Note 33 to the financial statements.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL LEASING BUSINESS

The financial leasing business mainly provides financial leasing and
related consulting services in China, and its business model is as
follows:

The Group usually enters into a (sale-and-leaseback) financial lease
agreement with clients having assets suitable for financial leasing,
with the client (as the lessee) retaining control over the assets and
the Group (as the lessor) will be secured by having title over the
assets and security interests for the duration of the lease. However,
the Group (as lessor) can also enter into a supply agreement with a
third-party supplier pursuant to which the Group pays the supplier
for the purchase of certain assets selected by the client (as lessee),
in addition to a finance lease agreement pursuant to which the lessor
directly leases the assets to the lessee in return for lease payments
by the lessee (direct leases).
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

In addition, the Group used finance lease receivables as collateral
to raise funds by various means including bank financing and bond
issuance to meet most capital needs of the financial leasing business
(while the remaining needs were met with its own funds), and
continuously diversified financing channels, including but not limited
to equity and debt financing, to enhance the financial strength of the
financial leasing business.

Despite the challenges facing the financial leasing business arising
from intensifying market competition and COVID-19, the Group
upheld the established strategic positioning and business objectives,
sought progress in stability, carried out risk management, and
remained focused on the environmental industry to develop financial
leasing business. We have set up a professional financial leasing
team familiar with the environmental industry to more effectively
conduct risk assessment on environmental clients, control business
risks in line with the Group’s risk appetite, carry out stringent pre-
lease review of financial leasing projects to select the best from
the good, and implement post-lease management and supervision
to reduce the risk of bad debts. Furthermore, we have developed
the following credit risk assessment policy and internal control
measures:

A) Credit risk assessment policy

The Group adopts a hierarchical approach to risk assessment
and strictly reviews potential financial leasing projects to
ensure that the risks involved are in line with the Group’s risk
appetite. The whole process for a project covers (i) the project
establishment and approval process where the project manager
conducts a preliminary risk assessment of the project; (ii) the
investigation and evaluation process where the risk control
manager evaluates the risks of the project and issues a risk
report; (iii) the review and decision-making process, including
a preliminary assessment meeting and a review meeting,
where members of the risk review committee conduct an
overall assessment of the project risks and vote on the project;
(iv) the project implementation process where relevant risk
control personnel participate in project implementation to
prevent operational risks; (v) the loan issuance process where
strict loan approval procedures are adopted to ensure that
suitable conditions for loan issuance are met; (vi) the post-
lease supervision process where project risks are continuously
monitored and assessed; and (vii) the risk warning process
where project alerts with risk signals are flagged and monitored
and response plans are developed in advance.

During credit risk assessment, the Group will review the
relevant documents of the target client, including but not
limited to its business permit, credit reports, bank statements,
tax payment receipts, financial statements, build-operate-
transfer contracts, environmental impact assessment reports,
subsidy income certificates, project asset evaluation report,
contracts and invoices relating to project assets, and proof of
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

B)

ownership of the assets mortgaged or pledged for the project.
The factors considered by the Group before entering into a
finance lease include whether the lessee’s cash flow can cover
the credit amount, the future cash flow of the project, the form
and value of security and the amount covered by the collateral,
the lessee’s cost of default, the lessee’s gearing ratio, etc.

Key internal controls and ongoing monitoring of loans

In order to minimize the risk of default on loans, the Group
has developed internal control measures to determine credit
limits, conduct credit review, and monitor the recoverability and
collection of finance lease receivables.

A credit limit is usually determined with reference to, among
others, (a) the value of the leased assets and their current
price; (b) the current price of the client’s pledged assets and
the guarantor’s ability to perform guarantee obligations; and (c)
the lessee’s cash flow and ability to meet its debt obligations.

In terms of credit approval, the risk review committee will
conclude the overall credit arrangement after taking into
account the opinions of the project manager and the risk
control manager at the review meeting.

In terms of ongoing monitoring procedures, the relevant
business manager of the financial leasing department will
conduct off-site and on-site post-lease inspections on the
lessee and the leased assets from the lease commencement
date to the date of recovering all rents and receivables, then
issue an inspection report to the department head and the
chief risk officer for approval. Once approved, such report
will be forwarded to the post-lease management team of the
risk control department for evaluation. The Group will carry
out: (i) monthly off-site post-lease inspections, including
searching for litigation proceedings involving the lessee or its
controlling shareholders and guarantors, monitoring changes
in its pledged assets, and issuing warnings about any major
risks that may affect the lessee’s ability to make repayments
to the Group; and (ii) quarterly on-site post-lease inspections,
including collecting the latest financial statements, credit
reports, environmental inspection reports, bank statements,
invoices and recent photos of the leased assets from the
lessee, and monitoring the changes in the asset-liability
structure of the lessee. The frequency of post-lease inspections
will vary depending on, among others, the risk level determined
during each inspection.

As to the risk warning process, risk signals are divided
into three levels: general, medium and high risks. Upon the
identification of risk signals in a project, the relevant business
manager will propose preliminary actions and measures in the
inspection report after investigating and evaluating the risk
level. The relevant project manager and risk control personnel
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

will then determine the risk level and action plan for approval by
the chief risk officer. In addition, the Group will set up a working
group to monitor and follow up on projects with high risk levels.
Depending on the actual situation of the relevant project, the
procedures or measures taken by the Group to address the
risks identified, including the recovery and collection of finance
lease receivables, include but are not limited to: (i) adjusting the
internal quality rating of finance lease receivables; (i) adjusting
the overall credit arrangement; (iii) expediting the lease
arrangement and demanding payment of rent; and (iv) taking
legal action and disposing of pledged or mortgaged assets in
accordance with the law. Risk alerts issued against a client
may subsequently be cancelled if the risk signals identified
are found to be inaccurate or there is no longer a risk to the
Group’s credit assets after further investigation and evaluation.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, charitable donation amounting to approximately
HK$134,627 was made within the Group (2022: approximately
HK$292,079).

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the largest supplier accounted for 6% of the Group’s
purchases and the five largest suppliers accounted for 20% of the
Group’s total purchases. The largest customer accounted for 21%
of the Group’s turnover and the five largest customers accounted for
30% of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has an interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group is approximately
1,302 (2022: 1,189). The remuneration of the employees of the
Group is determined on the basis of performance and responsibility
of the employees. The Group provides education allowances to
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

the employees. The Group also provides internal training to its
employees to enable them to achieve self-improvement and to
enhance their job related skills.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s bye-laws provided that the directors for the time
being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except
such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against directors of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible notes and share option scheme as disclosed
in notes 30 and 33 to the financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 were audited by HLM CPA Limited who will retire
and seek for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Hing Yip Holdings Limited

He Xiangming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE GROUP

Aiming to promote the long-term sustainable development of
its business, Hing Yip Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”) have been striving
to continuously optimize various businesses of the Group and
actively invest in high-growth industries in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) to gradually achieve the goal of enhancing
and maintaining stable shareholder returns. The Group’s diversified

businesses cover:

()  Wellness elderly care business: The Group will continue to
head toward the direction of developing a three-tier elderly care
system comprising institutions, communities and households
in Nanhai District, advance the premium elderly care services
“integrating medical and care services” and endeavour to forge
the “Taoyuan” elderly care brand into an industry model;

(i)  Big data business: By taking advantages of the opportunities
arising from the new smart city construction plan in Nanhai
District, the Group will continue its research and development
efforts in the big data industry projects, leverage market
forces in technological research and development, strive to
improve corporate qualifications and merits. We will focus on
the business strategic direction of developing the industrial
Internet platform business, and make every effort to become
a first-class industrial Internet platform service provider in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Ares;

(i)  Financial leasing business: By comprehensively building
the core competitiveness of financial leasing in environmental
protection segment, the Group will strive to develop into a first
class environmental-friendly and professional financial leasing
company in the PRC;

(iv) Civil explosives business: The Group is actively
implementing technological upgrade and transformation
projects and cost reduction reform measures, striving to
explore domestic civil explosives manufacturing and distribution
business;

(v) Hotel business: The Group operates the Guilin Plaza
Hotel located in Qixing District, Guilin City, Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region, providing thoughtful accommodation
services for travellers; and
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

(vi) Property and industrial park investment business: The
Group is striving to develop the industrial park in Danzao Town,
Nanhai District, Foshan City, which is designed to house the
main and spare production plants, pilot base, research and
development centre and ancillary facilities for new energy

vehicles.
ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) outlines the Group’s overall environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) performance, risks, strategies, measures and
commitments.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the period from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period” or
“2023”).

Reporting Scope

The ESG Report covers all the Group’s continuing operations
included in the annual report (excluding those with less revenue
share and less environmental impact). This ESG Report covers the
Group’s major businesses and obtains key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) from the operations of the Nanhai headquarters, Hong Kong
office, financial leasing business, wellness elderly care business, big
data business, property and industrial park investment business,
hotel business and civil explosives business. In addition, with
reference to the announcement published on HKEx website, the
Group entered into an agreement with Guangdong Nanhai Holding
Group Co., Ltd.* (BRmEEZEREEBRLE) on 6 December
2023, pursuant to which, the Group agreed to dispose of 72% of the
equity interest in Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.
Upon completion of the Transaction, Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco
Construction Co., Ltd and its member companies (“Sino Rock Tyco”)
would cease to be subsidiaries of the Group. Therefore, the property
and industrial park investment business of Sino Rock Tyco in this
ESG Report only included in the data for the 11 months ended 30
November, 2023, and the data from December 2023 onwards, is not
included in the relevant calculations in this ESG Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Reporting Framework

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). For the corporate governance structure and
other relevant information of the Group, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 14 to 31 of this annual report.

During the preparation of the ESG Report, the Group adopted
the following reporting principles as set out in the aforesaid ESG
Reporting Guide:

Materiality: During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted
materiality assessment to identify material issues, and regarded
the identified material issues as the focus of preparation of its
ESG Report. The materiality of the issues has been reviewed and
confirmed by the board of directors (the “Board”) and the ESG
working group (the “Working Group”). For further details, please refer
to the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment”.

Quantitative: The criteria and methods used to calculate the KPI
data and the applicable assumptions have been supplemented in the
notes.

Consistency.: Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report has been
prepared using the same methods as that for the year ended 31
December 2022 (“2022”") for comparison purpose. If there is any
change in the scope of disclosure, data collection system and
calculation method which may affect the comparison with the
previous reports, the corresponding data will be explained.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the ESG Report
to demonstrate the Group’s commitment to continuously improving
ESG performance in the following five areas: corporate governance,
environmental protection, employment practice, operating practice
and community engagement.

Over the recent years, the PRC government has been committed
to promoting the transformation of the green economy, and has
implemented the goal of “carbon peaking by 2030 and carbon
neutrality by 2060” to promote the development of clean energy. The
Group is committed to following the pace of national development
and moving towards a circular economy business model so as to
help promote sustainable development. The Group will capitalize on
opportunities of developing green bond projects to gain investment
returns, continue to develop its financial leasing business, firmly
follow the path of professional development in green environmental
protection, and always stay focused on municipal environmental
protection fields such as solid waste treatment, sewage treatment,
and biogas power generation. In response to the national energy
transformation and development, we will continue to improve energy
efficiency across various business sectors, such as replacing with
energy saving lighting. The Group will continue to explore and
research its big data business, with a focus on the industrial Internet
of Things (lloT), aiming to expand it business and develop projects
related to the intelligent upgrading of the manufacturing industry.
The goal is to provide manufacturing enterprises with solutions that
improve quality, increase efficiency, and reduce costs.

In recent years, people from all walks of life have been attaching
increasingly great importance to the sustainable development and
social responsibility of enterprises, which should incorporate ESG
factors into their core decisions during their business operations. The
Group also strives to develop sustainable development approach
and a sound governance structure to effectively manage ESG issues
related to the Group. The Board is required to assess the potential
impact of ESG issues on the Group’s overall strategy, formulate ESG
management approach and strategies, and monitor the Group’s ESG
issues. Information on the Group’s ESG governance structure is set
out in the section headed “ESG Governance Structure”.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

In order to identify and prioritize material ESG issues that have
relatively significant impact on our operations and our stakeholders,
we continuously communicate with our internal and external
stakeholders. The Board has appointed the Working Group to
conduct materiality assessment. Information on stakeholder
engagement channels and materiality assessment that has been
conducted by the Group are set out in the sections headed
“Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”
respectively. In order to develop a deeper understanding of
stakeholders’ expectations for the sustainable development of
the Group, the Group will further strengthen communication
with stakeholders, and formulate relevant policies and measures
with reference to their opinions to enhance the Group’s ESG
performance.

As a company that honors its corporate social responsibility,
the Group recognizes the importance of reducing emissions to
minimising its environmental impact. In order to fulfill the Group’s
commitment to corporate social responsibility and to allow the
Group’s stakeholders to better understand the Group’s continuous
improvement in ESG performance, the Group has decided to
formulate quantifiable environmental targets in response to the
national vision of carbon neutrality so as to enhance corporate
reputation. To this end, the Group has proactively implemented
the principles of sustainable development and adopted relevant
measures at the operational level. To ensure the effective
implementation of these measures, the Board has appointed the
Working Group to collect relevant ESG data, track and review our
performance, and assess the Group’s progress in achieving relevant
goals.

Finally, on behalf of the Board and management team of the
Group, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our valued
stakeholders for their continued support and to our employees
for their valuable contributions to the development of the Group.
Looking ahead, the Group will continue to integrate ESG concepts
into its business strategy and management system, stay committed
as a responsible enterprise, operate its business in a more
responsible and sustainable manner, create sustainable value for its
shareholders and pursue a sustainable future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group has developed an ESG governance structure to ensure
that ESG governance is in line with our business strategy and
integrate ESG management into our business operations and
decision-making process.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG issues
and is required to formulate ESG management approach, strategies,
priorities and objectives. In order to better manage the Group’s ESG
performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board discuss
ESG related matter at least annually, and regularly assesses and
determines the Group’s ESG risks and opportunities, and reviews
its performance and progress in relation to ESG-related goals.
The Board is also responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems, and approving the
information to be disclosed in the ESG Report.

In order to systematically manage ESG issues under the
authorization of the Board, the Group has established the Working
Group, which is comprised of core members from different
departments, aiming to assist the Board in oversight of ESG issues.
The Working Group is responsible for collecting and analyzing ESG
data, monitoring and evaluating the Group’s ESG performance,
following up and reviewing the progress of achieving the Group’s
ESG-related goals, ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws and
regulations, assisting in materiality assessment and preparing the
ESG Report. The Working Group regularly schedules meetings at
least annually to assess the effectiveness of existing policies and
procedures, and develop appropriate solutions to improve the overall
performance of ESG policies. The Working Group is required to
report to the Board on a regular basis to assist in the assessment
and identification of the Group’s ESG risks and opportunities, and to
ensure the implementation and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

As a responsible enterprise, while actively developing business and
improving profitability, the Group also attaches great importance
to the relationship with stakeholders and their feedback on
our business and ESG issues, so as to proactively balance the
interests of all parties and promote the sustainable development of
enterprises. To fully understand, respond to and address the core
concerns of different stakeholders, we have been working with key
stakeholders, including but not limited to senior management and
the Board, shareholders and investors, employees, customers,
suppliers, the government and regulators, as well as the public, non
governmental organizations (“NGOs”) and the media to maintain
regular and close communication.

We incorporate stakeholders’ expectations into our operations and
ESG strategies by employing the diverse collaboration approaches
and communication channels as shown in the table below.

Stakeholder Communication channel

B L@ RIS

FHRESH

AEBFA—XBEEENEE ERGERE
X RABANENZG TIEBERER
MNEZENREREHRMAEFRESGER
WREER  UEBFHISMm REDE
EUREER - BEETH BEKEER
BFNENZOR I R —ERXTER
nE BEEFARRNEREEERESFE
RERKREE - BE -ZER HE® B K
EERE URAR  FFBFHERIEEE
RERREYR B

BRERTRATHNZTIEEFEARARER
BE RARFHENHESARMANEE
RESGEREEE o

Expectation

HihE BEER HE
Senior management and the Board ° Board meetings ° Compliance-based operation
SREEErRESS EE2gR BREE
° Daily communication and o Economic performance
reporting B RIA
BHREBSBKRER e To improve risk management and
internal control
TERMREE RN
Shareholders and investors ° Annual general meetings and ° Financial result
BREREKRES other general meetings M EE
REBAEAGREMBKREKRE o  Corporate transparency
o Financial reports, EBHE
announcements, circulars and e To improve risk management and
other public information internal control
MBERE-AE-BEE TERREIERAEEEE
NEER
Employees ° Regular job performance o Career development
BE assessment HEZER
EEAT ERIFFFE e Competitive salary and benefits
e Training and seminars BB F He0ire g F)
B & e Equal opportunity for
advancement
TEERHS
° Healthy and safe working
environment
BREZE2WNIIERIER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Stakeholder
BHihE

Communication channel

BEEE

R e ERES @

Expectation

HE

Customers

=R

Suppliers

4,:_._
/\,\

Government and regulatory bodies

B R B e R

The public, NGOs and the media
R FFBUN B IR RS

Customer hotline and email
R BGFBEE

Supplier performance
assessment
HEmRFTE
Phone and email
BHEREBE

To participate in improvement
plans organized by industry and
local government regulators

2EITHE M A BUNEEEEPI4E
mOI D&t Al

ESG reports

ESG#R &

Charitable activities and
donations

BEEBMIBM

To provide quality products and
services
REEENERRRE

To protect customers’ interests
REE R @

To protect customer privacy
RIERE FBETA

Compliance-based operation
BREE

Fair and open sourcing
REMABRERE

Responsible supply chain
management
BEETNHEREIR
Business ethics and reputation
FEERAGE

Fair and open competition
AFABRTF

Compliance-based operation
EREE

Risk management

R EE

Tax payment

5 GAL TR

To implement green
management
BB E

To provide employment
opportunities
REMERS

To support public welfare
RSN

Open and transparent
information

NHZEHER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To better understand the opinions and expectations of stakeholders
on the Group’s ESG performance, we have adopted a systematic
approach to conduct annual materiality assessment. With reference
to the Group’s business development strategies and industry
practices, the Group has identified and confirmed a list of materia
ESG issues, which covers the following five major areas: corporate
governance, environmental protection, employment practice,
operational practice and community investment. The Group
prepared a questionnaire according to the list, and invited relevant
stakeholders to rate potential material issues based on the influence
of ESG issues on the stakeholders and the significance of impact on
the economy, environment and society. We analyzed the results of
the questionnaire and formulated a materiality matrix. The materiality
matrix and identified material issues are reviewed and confirmed by
the Board and Working Group and disclosed in the ESG Report.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s materiality matrix is as
follows:

High Materiality Matrix
B EEHERE

i

Corporate social
responsibility
N EEE

Carbon emission management and
countermeasures to climate change
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e
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and rights
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

Al.

Emissions

The Group has always attached great importance
to environmental protection, with particular focus on
reducing exhaust gas and greenhouse gas (“GHG”")
emissions, improving resource utilization efficiency and
waste management. For the hotel business, the Group
has formulated policies including the Environmental
Quality Management System ((IRIZEEZBEFIE)), the
Detailed Implementation Rules for Energy Conservation
and Environmental Protection ((ENSEIRREHRATE))
and the Code of Practice for Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection ({EI#YAEREAIRIZERESTRI))
to standardize the implementation of our environmental
protection-related work. The Group will continue to
improve the environmental protection management
system for each business segment, aiming to minimize
the pollution and environmental damage caused by our
daily business operations.

The Group strictly abides by environmental protection
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((FEAREMHIRIZEREL)), the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((FZEARZEMEKSEEAEZE)D)
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste ((FZE AR HEMEEFEEEY S RIREH A
7£)) in the PRC, and the Air Pollution Control Ordinance
and the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong.
During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of
non-compliance with the relevant local environmental
laws and regulations relating to exhaust gas and GHG
emissions, discharges of pollutants into water and land
and generation of hazardous or non-hazardous wastes
that have a significant impact on the Group.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group’s exhaust gas emissions are mainly derived
from diesel and unleaded petrol consumed by vehicles,
and liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) consumed for heating
and insulation purposes in Civil Explosive business.
The nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matter (PM)
generated in 2023 were mainly due to the increase in
the civil explosives business, the increased volume of
raw materials and finished products in transit, which led
to increase in mileage of medium-duty and heavy-duty
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

56

vehicles, coupled with the high fuel consumption of long
aged vehicles. In addition, the production of emulsion
explosives in 2023 increased by about 27.00% compared
with 2022, led the increased energy consumption of
LNG. As a result of the increase in the business volume
of the above-mentioned business, the Group’s total GHG
emission intensity also increased accordingly. In order to
reduce the impact on the environment, the Group will,
taking 2021 as the base year, reduce the total exhaust
gas emission intensity by 5% in the next five years, the
current status is ongoing. The Group will actively take the
following emission reduction measures:

° The boiler has been installed with a flue gas
purification device which has been tested and
certified by the environmental protection department
to minimize the emission of harmful gases;

° The fuel used in boilers has been changed from
diesel to cleaner LNG to reduce exhaust gas
emissions;

° The exhaust gas emissions from the boiler has
also been tested by the environmental protection
department, and the emission index conforms to the
requirements of the applicable laws and regulations;

° All vehicles in the hotel business use high-efficiency
fuel detergents to save fuel consumption; and

° Vehicles are maintained and repaired on a regular
basis to prevent excessive exhaust gas emissions
due to damaged parts and other reasons, and
substandard trucks are phased out according to
regional emission policies.

The Group’s exhaust gas emissions performance is
summarized as follows:
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Type of exhaust gas' Unit 2023 2022
R B —EZ= g
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) tonnes 400.58 362.16
KA1 (NOX) i

Sulphur oxides (SOx) tonnes 0.01 0.02
w64 (SOx) i

Particulate matter (PM) tonnes 0.76 0.67
Fhi (PM) i
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Note:

1. The calculation method of exhaust gas emissions and the
related emission factors were based on, including but not
limited to, “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued
by the Stock Exchange and the “4430 Industrial Boiler
(Heat Supply) Industry Coefficients Handbook” {4430
EBNE G IMAE) TTEREFM)issued by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of
China.

GHG Emissions

The Group’s GHG emissions are mainly derived from
the direct GHG emissions (scope 1) caused by the
consumption of diesel and unleaded petrol consumption
by vehicles and LNG consumed for heating and insulation
purposes and natural gas consumption by boilers,
and the indirect GHG emissions caused by purchased
electricity (scope 2). In response to the national carbon
neutrality goal, the Group will, taking 2021 as the base
year, reduce the total GHG emission intensity by 5% in
the next five years, the current status is ongoing. For the
aforesaid emission sources, we will strive to reduce our
carbon footprint through the following measures:

o Adopting emission reduction measures on vehicles
and LNG consumed for heating and insulation
purposes and relevant emission reduction measures
on boilers, the relevant measures of which are
described in the section headed “Exhaust Gas
Emissions” of this aspect;

° Adopting electricity-saving measures, the relevant
measures of which are described in the section
headed “Energy Management” section of Aspect
A2; and

o Staying committed to educating and training
employees on the aforesaid environmental policies,
and encouraging them to put forward feasible
suggestions to continuously improve energy
conservation and emission reduction.

The Group’s total GHG emissions decreased significantly
from approximately 8,173.76 tCOz2e in 2022 to
approximately 10,306.59 tCOze in 2023. This was mainly
attributable to the increase in hotel occupancy rate in
2023 due to the relaxation of epidemic control measures
and the resumption of tourism industry, as well as the
opening of Taoyuan Rehabilitation Hospital and Taoyuan
Nursing Home for the wellness elderly care business,
leading to the increased consumption of purchased
electricity.
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The Group’s GHG emissions performance is summarized

BREE | A R EIR

)

FEENBEREFHERERL

as follows: e
Indicator? Unit 2023 2022
5 1R? B —EZ= g
Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions tCO2e 2,248.23 2,164.41
HE——BERAEREIK WE_EEREE
e Diesel consumption tCO2e 1,275.22 1,242.80
o SHUHFE W —EERE 2
e Petrol consumption tCO2e 78.09 112.58
o SSUHIHFE m—ESEkEE
e | NG and natural gas consumption  tCOze 894.92 809.03
o RIERARKRIARIEFE WE_EEREE
Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG tCO2e 8,058.36 6,009.36
emissions

HE_ -fEREFERERBBIN M —EERE =
e Purchased Electricity tCO2e 8,058.36 6,009.36
° SNEET WE_EEREE
Total GHG emissions (Scopes 1 and 2) tCO:ze 10,306.59 8,173.76
RERBHREE BE—KI) Wi —FAERE 2
Total GHG emission intensity tCO2e/HKS$ million

revenue® 11.24 10.65
BRERBHNEERE W —EEREE

BEEEEIWAS
Notes
2. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon RERBHRERTLEZ A1

dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to,
the “2006 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(“IPCC”) Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories”, the “Global Warming Potential Values” from
the “IPCC Fifth Assessment Report” in 2014, “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the
“2022 Sustainability Report” published by the CLP Power
Hong Kong Limited and 2019 baseline emission factors for
the regional power grid in the PRC for emission reduction
project issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of the People’s Republic of China.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s revenue of
approximately HK$917.13 million (2022: HK$767.63
million). This data is also used to calculate other intensity
data.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Waste Water Discharges

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s property and
industrial park investment business, wellness elderly
care business, hotel business, and civil explosives
business, in aggregate discharged approximately
230,318.00 m® (2022: approximately 185,030 m?®) of
wastewater, wastewater treatment included recycled by
the municipality in a centralised manner and discharged
processed waste water through the sewage treatment
system. To ensure compliance with discharge standards,
industrial waste water discharged by its industrial tenants
shall pass an environmental impact assessment before
being discharged and recycled. Industrial waste water
generated by the civil explosives business is also required
to be filtered by biological substances before being
discharged to the organic composite soil ecological water
purification system. Waste water discharged from other
business segments is directly discharged to the public
sewage pipe network and piped to the waste water
treatment plant for treatment. Water consumption of
these segments represents the waste water discharged.
Water consumption data and related water targets and
measures are described in the section headed “Water
Management” Aspect A2.

Waste Management
Hazardous waste

The Group’s wellness elderly care business produces
medical waste, which will be temporarily stored in
government hospitals or directly disposed by qualified
medical waste disposal companies. Hazardous wastes
are inevitably produced during the operation of Nanhai
headquarters, such as waste batteries, waste ink
cartridges, waste fluorescent tubes, etc. Business
development of Taoyuan Welfare Center and Taoyuan
Rehabilitation Hospital under the wellness elderly care
business segment were limited under the influence of
the Covid-19 epidemic in 2022. In 2023, following the
relaxation of epidemic control and the opening of the
new hospital buildings, Taoyuan Rehabilitation Hospital
and Taoyuan Nursing Home, the discharge of medical
waste increased as a result of the expansion of medical
services under the wellness elderly care business. In
order to reduce hazardous waste discharge, the Group
will, taking 2021 as the base year, reduce the emission
intensity of hazardous wastes by 5% in the next five
years, the current status is ongoing. The Group is
committed to waste management implementation and
stipulates that the hazardous waste produced shall not be
discharged, disposed or transferred at will, and disposal
arrangements should be arranged by government-
approved and qualified waste recyclers to comply with
relevant environmental laws and regulations.
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The Group’s hazardous waste discharge performance is
summarized as follows:

BEE g REIRWS &

FEBNESERMIFBRER
Y0

Type of waste Unit 2023 2022
BEZE YR B = —g_C
Total hazardous waste tonnes 16.11 11.61
BEEBEEYES U
e Medical waste tonnes 16.09 10.74
o BIRREY) U
e Others, include (waste ink cartridges, tonnes

waste motor oil, waste fluorescent

tubes and waste batteries, etc.) 0.02 0.87
o Hith B1F (2= ERREM M M

BEIEEREEME)
Total hazardous waste intensity tonnes/HK$ million

revenue 0.02 0.02

BEREEMBEERE M, BB BEWA
Non-hazardous wastes HEEEY

The non-hazardous wastes produced during the
operation of each business segment of the Group are
mainly general domestic waste, kitchen waste and paper.
Kitchen waste is derived from restaurants and canteens
operated by our property and industrial park investment
business, wellness elderly care business, Science and
Technology Park under Nanhai headquarters, etc. In
addition, the transport fleet for the civil explosives
business also produces a small amount of used vehicle
tires.

For the Taoyuan Welfare Center under the wellness
elderly care business, due to the transformation project
of the green plaza on the southern plot into the “Foshan
Nanhai District Elderly Care Facilities Upgrading and
Expansion Phase | (Elderly Care Apartment) “in 2023,
there are a large plot of trees and greenery on the original
plot that need to be relocated and cleared. In addition,
in the same year, Taoyuan Welfare Center participated
in the evaluation of “Five-star” elderly care institutions in
Guangdong Province, a large number of waste wooden
beds, mattresses, tables and chairs and other furniture
garbage were cleaned up, and a large amount of garbage
and debris were generated to be removed. In 2023, the
number of employees and business volume increased
as a result of the opening of Taoyuan Rehabilitation
Hospital in Nanhai District, and generated a significant
increase in general waste and kitchen waste in 2023
as compared with that of 2022. In 2023, in accordance
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

with the requirements of 7S lean management, the civil
explosives business cleaned up a large number of waste
and discarded items, including waste wooden tables,
wooden chairs, waste wooden cabinets in production
lines, shower rooms and dormitories, etc., and therefore
a large amount of garbage and debris were generated
during the Reporting Period. In addition, due to the
participation in the evaluation of “Five-star” elderly care
institutions in Guangdong Province as abovementioned,
as well as the opening of Taoyuan Rehabilitation Hospital
in Nanhai District and Taoyuan Nursing Home in Nanhai
District, the paper consumption also increased along with
the continuous business development.

In order to reduce non-hazardous waste discharge, the
Group will, taking 2021 as the base year, reduce the
emission intensity of non hazardous wastes by 5% in the
next five years, the current status is ongoing.

The Group has formulated the Implementation Plan for
Domestic Waste Diversion, Classification and Reduction
(EBMRD R BREER S X)), which refines the
implementation measures for domestic waste diversion,
classification and reduction, regulates, improves, and
urges and guides various business segments to carry out
domestic waste classification and recycling. The Group
has also been committed to developing paperless office
and endeavouring to save paper by encouraging double
sided printing. Waste paper is delivered to environmental
recycling companies for disposal.

For the non-hazardous waste produced in the operation
process, we also maintain a garbage chamber for our
hotel business that meets the National Standard of the
People’s Republic of China on the Classification and
Accreditation for Star-rated Tourism Hotels ({FFZE A
REMBIBEREERBREZROE DETED). All
non-hazardous wastes are recycled and disposed of
by government-designated environmental and health
administrative authorities. The kitchen waste produced
is mainly used as animal feed and compost to reduce
the impact on the surrounding environment. For the
hotel business, we have actively implemented various
measures including reducing consumables for guests,
reducing the amount of packaging materials and not
providing disposable tableware. By internally adopting
hierarchical utilisation of food raw materials and providing
takeout service for dining customers with packaging
and wine storage services, the hotel also minimized
the consumption of food raw materials and significantly
reduced the production of kitchen waste and other
wastes. In addition, the canteen of the group centrally
collects kitchen waste and provides to the local kitchen
waste treatment department for resource utilization such
as garbage-to-hydrogen conversion.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report Continved) B38| #L & B IRHE 3@

The main non-hazardous waste discharge performance of KREBNFTERSEEMHME

the Group is summarized as follows: WP -

Type of waste* Unit 2023 2022

EEEY R B == T

Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 853.32 99.61

BEBRREYEE iz

e General waste tonnes 767.08 45.86

o —ASHIIR ]

e Kitchen waste tonnes 7217 45.04

o EIER iz

e Paper tonnes 6.87 4.21

o ARIR i

e Used vehicle tires tonnes 7.20 4.50

o BEFiEEE®RMS v

Total non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/HK$ million

revenue 0.93 0.13

EEERYRETE ME, B E S IR A

Note: BaE

4.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic in 2022, the tourism 4. RAIZZTEBB REXEX
industry has not fully recovered, the disclosed figures TEER Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’ﬁﬁ
do not include non-hazardous waste from the hotel WEZHFABEIBIEERS
business due to lack of confirmed data and the non- BEBREY BAESNEZTER
hazardous waste generated was estimated based on the MHERIE A FEESOREHR
hotel occupancy rate reach 50%. As the tourism industry SToFRBEEE BUILR
recovered in 2023, actual operational records from hotels BBEENHEBERERBEREE
was adopted for data calculation. BT EC £ o

Use of Resources A2. ERERA

Environmental protection and resource conservation RERBNHNE R AEERS

are important responsibilities of the Group. The Group ERE -AERENEBEHE N

actively promotes the effective use of resources, and T@ﬂ ERATRE WRERER

62

monitors the potential impact that its business operations
brought to the environment. As stated in Aspect A1,
the Group has formulated relevant environmental
management policies and procedures to manage the use
of water, electricity, diesel, petrol, LNG and natural gas.

Energy Management

In daily production and operation, the Group’s energy
consumption mainly includes diesel and unleaded petrol
consumption by vehicles, LNG consumed for heating and
insulation purposes, as well as natural gas consumption
by boilers, and electricity consumption in our operations.
Following the recovery of the tourism industry in 2023,
hotel occupancy rate and the number of guest for some
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

tenants significantly increased compared to the time
when epidemic control in place during 2022, leading to
significantly increased the consumption of purchased
electricity. In addition to the energy-saving measures for
vehicles and boilers mentioned in the section headed
“Exhaust Gas Emissions” in Aspect A1, the Group has
also made efforts to reduce electricity usage. The Group
will, using 2021 as the base year, reduce the total energy
consumption intensity by 5% in the next five years, and
plan to promote the replacement of natural gas boiler fuel
with electricity in the civil explosives business, and the
construction of photovoltaic power generation system
on roof for the wellness elderly care business in the next
seven years, the current status is ongoing. To reduce
energy consumption, the Group has taken energy-saving
measures in each business segment:

° Actively carrying out renewable energy projects.
Specifically, the property and industrial park
investment business has installed photovoltaic
power generation system in its industrial parks and
during the year totally generated electricity 1,928.71
MWh (2022: 2,213.09 MWh), in which 90.27% is
for the usage of industrial parks and the excess
was sold to China Southern Power Grid. We have
installed solar street lights at suitable locations for
our wellness elderly care business, and established
a solar hot water function system to reduce power
consumption for the hotel business;

° Increasing the use of new energy-saving lighting
sources such as LED lights to extend the service life
of equipment and reduce resource consumption;

° Employing computer monitoring technology to
automatically track major energy-consuming
equipment, and intelligently adjusting settings
according to seasons and changes in indoor and
outdoor temperatures; and

° Endeavouring to strengthen energy-saving
promotion and training, and post energy-saving
signs in conspicuous places to enhance the
environmental protection awareness of our hotel
guests, property tenants and employees.
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For the Reporting Period, the Group’s indirect energy
consumption increased significantly from approximately
7,476.97 MWh?® in 2022 to approximately 10,025.56 MWh
in 2023. Apart from the purchased electricity, the Group
also utilises self-generated electricity from renewable
energy sources for its operating projects. For the 11
months ended 30 November 2023, the amount of self-
generated electricity renewable energy sources from the
Group’s operations was approximately 1,928.71 MWh.

The Group’s energy consumption performance is
summarized as follows:

BB | ALE RIS

=

REHERESHE > AEBHRE
EBEBRHEER _E_-__F4
7476 97 KRR EAE—_ZT "=
F#910,025.56 I8 KL BF o fr— g 5h
BB AEEBNEZEBIN
EEROIBEREEREREE N B
FE2023F11H30H  mEEME
SHEEMNBEEREEENN
21,928 71K ELEE o

7~ & B B9 BE R OH #E R IR B At 1
T

Type of energy Unit 2023 2022
AEIR LA R B = g
Direct energy consumption® MWh 9,885.08 9,451.35
B RHFES JKELBF
e Diesel MWh 5,174.24 5,039.67
o SH JKFU B
e Petrol MWh 284.58 410.28
o M JEFLEF
e | NG and natural gas MWh 4,426.26 4,001.40
o RIERARKRRAR JK R B
Indirect energy consumption MWh 10,025.56 7,476.97
1EE TR M FE JK R EF
e Purchased electricity MWh 10,025.56 7,476.97
° SNEEET JK LB
Total energy consumption MWh 19,910.64 16,928.32
HEETRAESE JK LB
Total energy consumption intensity MWh/HK$ million

revenue 21.71 22.05
REEREERE KEEFBEBEERA
Note st
5. The unit conversion method of energy consumption data 5 BERHEBEBENBAMBRESE

is based on the “Energy Statistic Manual” issued by the
International Energy Agency.

Water Management

Based on the geographical location of the Group’s
operating premises, we have not encountered any issues
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. Due to the
expansion of wellness elderly care business, the overall
water consumption increased due to the transformation
project of the green plaza on the southern plot into the
“Foshan Nanhai District Elderly Care Facilities Upgrading
and Expansion Phase | (Elderly Care Apartment) Project”
in 2023 and the opening of Taoyuan Rehabilitation
Hospital and Taoyuan Nursing Home in Nanhai District.
To reduce water consumption, the Group will, using 2021
as the base year, reduce the total water consumption
intensity by 5% in the next five years, the current status
is ongoing. In addition to the waste water recycling
measures described in the section headed “Waste Water
Discharge” at Aspect A1, the Group has also actively
adopted water control measures in various business

segments:
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

o All guest rooms in our hotel business use water-
saving toilets that meet the water efficiency level 1
standard to guide guests to reduce waste;

° Cotton fabrics are changed only as requested by
hotel guests to reduce the number of washes;

° Hotel employees are encouraged to save water in
their daily lives and install smart sensor water-saving
systems in employee bathrooms;

° A large amount of water mist from the cooling tower
of the hotel building is recycled to greatly reduce the
loss of water mist;

° Water leak inspection is carried out on a regular
basis, and water consumption is controlled by
installing separate water meters and establishing
a water consumption ledger for measurement and
assessment; and

° We endeavor to strengthen energy-saving
promotion and training, and post water-saving signs
in conspicuous places to enhance the environmental
protection awareness of our hotel guests, property
tenants, and employees.

The Group’s total water consumption for the Reporting
Period is approximately 484,428.12 m® (2022: to
approximately 421,152.00 m3).

The Group’s water consumption performance is
summarized as follows:

R e ERES @

o HAEEBRERRHUEAE
Bl 3 7K 3% =1 4R A2 2 B9 &1 oK
BIAEER S| EAERRLVR
=g

o (BRBEEEREREHRBE
am > BUR DO RE

s HBBEEIAHELED
MBI EETAERE
BRERENEIKARL

o RUBEREY LB
S/ KFRI > RKREEK
BRI

o  TEHRETRAKIER T
BREKEMEIIAKEERIU
BETTE R TE > e
HIEKE ; &

o RNIMBEIKEBEREZ
RERBERMEIKESE 1R
FEEEEZE -YMEBRR RE
BERIRFEER -

REBR _E - =FENEIEK
B4484,428 121 L F K (B
F 1 #9421,152.0037 75 3K) ©

AEBRBKBERBALT

Water consumption Unit 2023 2022
Rk B —EZ= —EZC
Total water consumption m?3 484,428.12 421,152.00
HFEIKE RV

Total water consumption intensity m3/HK$ million revenue 528.20 548.64
MIEKERE TFHKBEEBEWA
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A3.

Use of Packaging Materials

The Group’s civil explosives business uses packaging
materials to seal and protect products, which are mainly
composite membranes and cartons. The Group will
strive to optimize the packaging method and select the
most suitable and efficient packaging materials, aiming
to reduce the use of packaging materials. No packaging
materials are used for our other businesses as they
are non-production in nature. The increase in carton
consumption in 2023 compared to 2022 was due to
increase of approximately 27.00% in the production of
emulsified explosives under the civil explosives business.
Despite the aforementioned increment led to an increase
in the carton consumption, the Group has placed effort to
minimise the use of composite films, resulting in an overall
decreased packaging materials consumption compared
to 2022.

The Group’s packaging materials consumption
performance is summarized as follows:

BB | ALE RIS
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Packaging materials Unit 2023 2022
BERME B i —T”= —T-C
Total packaging materials consumption tonnes 828.87 978.48
BEMMEERE U
e Composite membrane tonnes 238.79 517.08
s BEIR NiA
e Cartons tonnes 595.08 461.40
o #X7E MA
Total packaging materials consumption tonnes/HK$ million

intensity revenue 0.90 1.27
BEMNRERERE Mg A E E WA
The Environment and Natural Resources A3. IRIERXAER

The Group is committed to the practice of corporate
social responsibility and sustainable development,
and strives to mitigate the potential impact on the
environment. The Group has implemented the relevant
environmental protection policies mentioned in the
aforesaid sections, and is committed to reducing
consumption of natural resources and implementing
effective environmental management in pursuit of best
industry practices, so as to ensure that it strictly complies
with all relevant laws and regulations.
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Corporate Green Development

As the PRC government continues to strengthen
its support for green finance, big data and other
businesses, the Group has also made great efforts
to formulate strategic plans for related businesses
to help promote sustainable development. In terms
of its financial leasing business, the Group will firmly
follow the path of professional development in green
environmental protection, and always stay focused on
municipal environmental protection fields such as solid
waste treatment, sewage treatment, and biogas power
generation and obtains a green rating. The Group’s big
data business will also continue to explore and research
the open Internet of Things platform as the core, targeting
at smart medical, smart energy and other fields for
business expansion and development of related project
products, thereby offering solutions to improve energy
efficiency.

Strengthened Environmental Awareness

The Group is committed to building an “energy-saving
enterprise”, putting the concepts of cleaner production
and green operation into practice in various business
segments to sharpen its survival and competitive edges.
The Group has effectively strengthened its environmental
protection efforts internally. In addition to strictly requiring
employees to implement the environmental protection
measures set by the Group, it also actively enhances
employees’ environmental protection awareness by
distributing relevant environmental protection information
such as green office and operation to employees,
thereby effectively improving its environmental protection
standard. In addition, the Group is also committed to
promoting the concept of environmental protection and
plans to carry out diversified environmental protection
promotion activities to encourage hotel guests, property
and industrial park tenants and suppliers to participate in
environmental protection work and reduce the impact on
the environment and natural resources.
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A4. Climate Change

The escalating risks and challenges posed by climate
change to the global economy may also have a negative
impact on the Group’s business. Therefore, the Group
recognizes the importance of identifying and mitigating
any significant impacts of climate change. The Group
has initially incorporated climate risk into its Enterprise
Risk Management System({T2EREESIE)) and
related work procedures, and will hold meetings in various
business segments to discuss relevant issues, so as to
improve climate risk identification and management and
capitalize on relevant opportunities. In accordance with
the international recommendations of the Taskforce on
Climate related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”) established
by the Financial Stability Board, the management of the
Group has assessed and recognized climate-related risks
and corresponding opportunities that have an impact
on the Group’s business. With reference to the risk
classification of TCFD, the Group has identified climate-
related risks and corresponding management measures
as follows:

Physical Risk

The Group’s business is mainly located in Guangdong,
Guangxi and Hong Kong, and may be subject to
extreme weather events such as heavy rain, floods and
typhoons. The increasing frequency and severity of such
events may increase the risk of power outages, supply
chain disruptions, and damage to buildings such as
hotels, factories and properties. This could disrupt the
Group’s operations, resulting in reduced revenue as well
as property damage and increased costs to repair or
restore damaged premises. We are also aware that these
incidents may endanger the safety of our employees.
As a countermeasure, the Group has formulated special
work arrangements for extreme weather in the Corporate
Governance and Staff Code (X EAKETIFE)),
and will closely monitor the latest weather news and
suggestions issued by the local government to formulate
contingency plans to ensure that all personnel are
prepared to deal with such extreme weather conditions,
aiming at reducing or avoiding losses and ensuring the
health and safety of employees when extreme weather
hits the Group’s premises.
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Transition Risk

In order to achieve sustainable development, local
governments have successively enacted climate-related
legislation or tightened regulations to support the global
decarbonization vision. For instance, over the recent
years, the PRC government has been committed to
promoting the transformation of the green economy,
and has implemented the goal of “carbon peaking by
2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060” to promote the
development of clean energy. In response to such policy
changes, we may need to change our operating practices
and move towards a sustainable business model, which
may result in increased operating costs. The Group will
capitalize on opportunities of developing green bond
projects to gain investment returns, continue to develop
its financial leasing business, firmly focus on the field
of green environmental protection, and enhance its
corporate reputation. In response to energy transition, the
Group will also continue to carry out photovoltaic power
generation projects and replace energy-saving lighting in
various business segments to improve energy efficiency
and reduce operating costs.

In addition, the Stock Exchange also requires listed
companies to strengthen climate-related disclosures in
their ESG reports, which may increase related compliance
costs. Failure to meet climate change compliance
requirements may expose the Group to the risk of claims
and litigation, which may result in a possible loss of
corporate reputation. The Group will regularly monitor
existing and emerging climate-related trends, policies and
regulations to avoid reputation risk due to slow response.
The Group will continue to evaluate the effectiveness of
the Group’s actions on climate change and enhance its
ability to address climate-related issues.

B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

The Group has formulated policies including the
Corporate Governance and Staff Code (2B AKET
SFAI), the Administrative Measures for Recruitment and
Employment (3BEEEA%E A EERIL), the Administrative
Measures for Staff Onboarding, Resignation and
Redesignation (8 T ABER & ESHEIRHE) to regulate
employment-related issues to ensure that all terms and
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

procedures for formulation and release comply with
relevant regulatory requirements. The Group has also
established a labour union for its employees and issued
the Employee Handbook to provide employees with clear
guidance on employment issues, respect and safeguard
the legitimate rights and interests of each employee, and
facilitate bilateral communication. We are also committed
to improving our employment system to attract, cultivate
and retain employees while adhering to a people-oriented
governance approach.

The Group has complied with laws and regulations
related to remuneration and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare, including but not limited to the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARHEMESEHEEL) and the Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China {FZE AR
HE% 8 &REE) in the PRC, the Employment Ordinance
in Hong Kong, etc. During the Reporting Period, the
Group did not identify any significant issues in violation of
employment-related laws and regulations.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,302
(2022: 1,189) full-time employees and had no part-time
employees, within the reporting scope. The breakdown is
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as follows: HES mASSWT
2023 2022
—EZ=HF —E"C
Number of Number of
employee Percentage employee Percentage
BEAH BALE BEA¥ Bt
By gender LUt R & 53
Male B 562 43% 513 43%
Female e 740 57% 676 57%
By age group LUERERNE 2
<30 <30 177 13% 204 17%
30-50 30-50 764 59% 709 60%
>50 >50 361 28% 276 23%
By geographical region L& &) 5>
The PRC A [E P 1,295 99% 1,183 99%
Hong Kong 58 7 1% 6 1%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Recruitment, Remuneration, Promotion and
Dismissal

The Group is committed to recruiting outstanding talents
by offering competitive salaries and benefits as well as
promotion opportunities. We adhere to the principle of
fairness, impartiality and openness in equal employment,
recruit sufficient talent reserves for all business segments
of the Group and enhance business competitiveness.
The Group calculates salaries for employees based on
their attendance, overtime, allowances, position levels,
etc., and pay salaries on time every month. Depending
on the performance assessment for employees, the
Group also adjusts their remuneration, pays performance-
based bonus and provides promotion opportunities. The
Group reviews employees’ remuneration packages on
a regular basis to ensure that they receive the rewards
they deserve. In addition, the Group complies with
employment-related laws and regulations. If an employee
needs to be dismissed, we will give a notice periods and
reasonable compensation to the dismissed employee
in accordance with the relevant procedures and ensure
smooth job handover.

During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate®
of the Group was approximately 15% (2022: 12%), with
breakdown as follows:
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2023 2022
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By gender’ LU B E 537
Male s 11% 6%
Female pegis 18% 16%
By age group’ Ve b
<30 <30 16% 19%
30-50 30-50 13% 4%
>50 >50 19% 18%
By geographical region’ LUt & & 537
The PRC FR B P 3t 15% 9%
Hong Kong 5% 15% 31%
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Notes:

6. Total employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the
total number of employees leaving employment during the
Reporting Period by the average number of employees at
the beginning and the end of the Reporting Period.

7. The employee turnover rate for each category is calculated
by dividing the number of employees leaving employment
in the category during the Reporting Period by the average
number of employees in the category at the beginning and
the end of the Reporting Period.

Other Benefits and Welfare

In addition to basic remuneration and bonus, the
Group also provides thoughtful and comprehensive
employee benefits. The Group effectively safeguards the
legitimate rights and interests of workers in accordance
with the requirements of laws and regulations, and
clearly regulates the management of working hours,
attendance and rest. Employees are entitled to paid
annual leave, personal leave, sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave, bereavement leave, etc. The Group
also provides employees with mandatory provident
fund, pension, medical insurance, accident insurance,
education allowance and other benefits. The Group
make contributions to the “five insurances and one
housing fund” for employees in the PRC according to
law, namely retirement insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund and
annuity plan is implemented in qualified departments and
companies in PRC, to ensure that employees enjoy social
insurance benefits. In order to enhance employees’ sense
of belonging to the Group, the Group organizes various
activities for employees every year, including ball games
and outdoor activities. The Group has also established
an employee incentive scheme to motivate employees
and reward employees who have made outstanding
contributions to the Group.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination

The Group recognizes the value of a diverse and
professional workforce and is committed to creating and
maintaining an inclusive and collaborative workplace
culture where everyone can develop their strengths. The
Group is committed to providing equal opportunities for
all employees in all aspects of employment, and to ensure
that employees are free from discrimination or physical
and verbal harassment in the recruitment process and
working environment due to their social status such as
ethnicity, race, nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual
orientation, political affiliation, marital status, etc. To
ensure fair and equal protection for all employees, the
Group does not tolerate any form of workplace sexual
harassment or bullying.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B2. Health and Safety B2. EEH%ZE

The Group is committed to fulfilling its responsibility for
work safety and establishing a long-term mechanism
for work safety to prevent and reduce work-related
accidents and protect the life and property safety of its
employees. We strictly abide by the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Safety Production Law of the
People’s Republic of China (hEARXEMEZ24
%), the Interim Provisions on the Investigation and
Control of Safety Accidents of the People’s Republic
of China (224 EFHWRRBEETREHTHE) and
the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases (H#E AR ZLFER X HHAE
7%) in the PRC, and the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance in Hong Kong. Over the past three years
(including the Reporting Period), the Group recorded a
total of one work-related fatality incident, which occurred
when an employee suddenly die during working hours.
The employee did not report any relevant medical
records to the Group, and the Group was not able to
anticipate or prevent this unfortunate incident. According
to the “Work-Related Injury Determination Certificate”
issued, and with reference to Article 10, Clause 1 of the
“Guangdong Province Work Injury Insurance Regulations,”
which states: “The following circumstances shall be
deemed as work-related injuries: (1) sudden death from
illness during working hours and on the job or death
within 48 hours despite rescue efforts being ineffective.”
Therefore, the incident was identified as a work-related
death. The fatalities rate due to work-related incidents in
2023 is approximately 0.08% (no such case for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022). The company
has extended condolences to the employee’s family and
provided compensation in accordance with the statutory
standards of social security institutions. During the
Reporting Period, the Group recorded 13 working days
lost due to work-related injuries. The Group also did not
identify any material violation of relevant local laws and
regulations in respect of health and safety.
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The Group has always been committed to employee
health and well-being, aiming to improve the safety of
the work environment and effectively prevent and reduce
work-related accidents. The Group has implemented the
following measures, including but not limited to:

1. Make comprehensive and systematic medical
health examinations for newly hired employees to
detect potential and hidden causes of illness to the
greatest extent as possible

2. As part of employee welfare, regular (annual)
physical examinations for employees during their
employment; and

3. If an employee deliberately conceals or fabricates
medical history under the Group’s explicit
requirements, disciplinary actions will be taken as a
violation of employee code of conduct.

Occupational Health and Safety

For the civil explosives business involving high-risk
production, the Group has formulated the Safety
Production Management System ((Z&24EEEH|
E)) and the Administrative Measures for Work Safety
Accident Emergency Response Plan (((EZ2EN
FEZTEZEIEYIE)) in accordance with the aforesaid
laws and regulations, which are used to regulate various
requirements for work safety and emergency rescue of
safety-related accidents, so that emergency rescue are
implemented in a prompt, effective and orderly manner
after an accident occurs. The general management
department of the Group is responsible for the daily
management of production, and has established a work
safety leading group to supervise the daily management
of work safety and govern the Group’s work safety
inspection and rectification of potential accident hazards.
We will also invite professional third-party consultants
to conduct inspections on safety and fire protection
issues, and timely rectify, follow up and supervise hidden
hazards. The office of safety committee supervises,
inspects and assesses the implementation of the
Group’s work safety management system, and collects,
summarizes and archives the safety production inspection
data. The Group has also set up a preparation team to
conduct a comprehensive analysis of the risk factors
faced by the Group, determine the type of accidents
and degree of harm that may occur, and formulate
corresponding preventive and emergency measures
according to the source of danger and the degree of
harm caused by the accident.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

B3.

In order to enhance employees’ safety awareness,
the Group holds fire evacuation drills and organizes
emergency drills for fires, explosions, floods and
production accidents in a regular manner to enhance
employees’ ability to cope with disasters. The Group
has also formulated the Safety Education and Training
System (Z2#FEIHIE)) and holds regular work
safety meetings. By educating employees with safety
technical knowledge and management knowledge and
analyzing accident cases, we enable employees to
master theoretical knowledge of safety and improve their
practical safety operation ability. We also employ various
channels including publicity posters, slogans, educational
videos and organizing safety knowledge contests and
safe operation skill competitions to improve employees’
safety awareness and implement our work safety policy.
The Group’s hotel business also regularly provides
professional health checks for employees to prevent
occupational diseases and protect the health and safety
of employees.

In addition, in view of the end of the Covid-19 epidemic
in 2023, the Group has decided to cancel the existing
epidemic control measures. However, we will continue to
closely monitor the precautionary measures for the public
health crisis and adhere to health and safety guidelines.
If necessary, we will make appropriate adjustments
to ensure the health and safety of our employees and
customers.

Training and Skills Development

The Group invests sufficient resources in staff
training and development, and strives to enhance the
competitiveness, professionalism and ethical standards
of its staff. All new employees must participate in the
training on industry knowledge, health and safety
and work skills. In addition, we continuously conduct
professional knowledge and skills training for employees
under the guidance of the Annual Employee Training
Outline ((FEE T3
employees’ good professionalism and enable them to

IK#4M)) each year to develop

stay competitive in order to fulfil their responsibilities,
striving to achieve the highest standards of service.
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Training Programs

The Group’s training program are designed mainly to
meet the different needs of employees at all levels and
types, and enhance employees’ professional quality,
professional knowledge and competence. The Group will
arrange training plans for each department according
to business needs. For example, in terms of human
resources, our training programs cover courses such as
special training on personnel selection and recruitment,
human resources forums and recruitment skills; in terms
of finance, our training programs cover courses related
to budget management, budget control and application
of tax planning strategies, with a view to strengthening
employees’ knowledge and skills in relevant business
areas. We also strongly encourage the management
to participate in training programs relating to business
and public speaking, so as to continuously improve the
ability of the Group’s management to deliver speeches
in external communication. Meanwhile, they are also
encouraged to participate in training programs on
investment study, financial management, etc. to help
them cope with challenges at work.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of the
Group’s total employees® trained was approximately
99.46% (2022: 98.00%), and the average training hours
completed per employee® was approximately 15.49 hours
(2022: 11.70 hours). The breakdown of the percentage
of employees trained and the average training hours
completed per employee by gender and employee
category is as follows:
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Percentage of
trained employees™

ZilEET DL

Average training hours'"

THRANEE

2023 2022 2023 2022
By gender LR 5
Male B4 43% 43% 12.42 20.02
Female gl 57% 57% 17.82 9.08
By employee category  LU{EEEHIEI 5
Senior management BREERE 2% 2% 24.81 23.75
Mid-level management iR EIEE 4% 5% 17.75 21.97
General staff Z@ET 94% 93% 15.21 13.93
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B4.

Notes:

8. The percentage of total employees trained is calculated by
dividing the total number of employees trained during the
Reporting Period by the total number of employees at the
end of the reporting period.

9. The average training hours completed per employee
is calculated by dividing the total number of training
hours during the reporting period by the total number of
employees at the end of the reporting period.

10. The percentage of employees trained for each category
is calculated by dividing the number of employees trained
for that category during the reporting period by the total
number of employees trained during the reporting Period.

11.  The average training hours completed by each category of
employees is calculated by dividing the total training hours
of that category of employees during the reporting period
by the number of employees in that category at the end of
the reporting Period.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the Labour and Social
Security Inspection Regulation (% B1R[E B EH))
and the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour { (%
IEFAEZETHEED) in the PRC and the Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong to prevent any employment
of child labour and forced labour. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not identify any major violations of
laws and regulations in respect of the prevention of child
labour and forced labour, and has successfully passed
the annual audit of the labour inspection by government
departments over the years.

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group has detailed all recruitment procedures and
requirements in the Corporate Governance and Staff
Code (=B AKXE I FHI) and the Administrative
Measures for Recruitment and Employment (3252 E2E
FAEEHE). New employees are required to provide
the personal information required in the Employment
Notice (BEF#EA1Z) during their onboarding process,
which will be strictly reviewed by recruiters, including ID
cards, household registration, etc. In addition, the Group
has established internal personnel file management
procedures to conduct regular review and inspection
to prevent any employment of child labour. When any
irregularities are identified, the Group will immediately
carry out investigations and impose punishment.
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BS.

In addition, employees of the Group work overtime on
a voluntary basis. Relevant working hours and overtime
regulations have also been specified in the Corporate
Governance and Staff Code ({2 EA8 K8 T5F8I) and
the Employee Handbook in order to avoid violations of
labour standards and effectively safeguard the rights and
interests of employees. The Group prohibits any form of
forced labour, slavery and labour trafficking. If any form
of forced labour is identified, the Group will immediately
carry out investigations and stop the employment of
forced labour. If necessary, the Group will further improve
the labour mechanism for violations.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a series of strict and
standardized supply chain management procedures
with reference to relevant laws and regulations such as
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Tenders
and Bids (FEARIJMEBZRLEE), and has
implemented the following practices regarding supplier
engagement for all suppliers. During the Reporting
Period, the Group had a total of 389 suppliers (2022: 362
suppliers), all of which were located in the PRC.

Procurement Mechanism

Each business segment of the Group is required to
adopt strict procurement control measures to ensure
that the suppliers it employs meet the standards in
terms of quality and safety, environmental protection,
labour practices and business ethics. Specifically, the
bidding procedures for relevant engineering construction
projects shall be implemented in accordance with the
management and control requirements specified in the
Guidelines for Integrity Risk Prevention and Control {B&
BRI IETETES]). The Group is required to conduct
a detailed review of the technical and qualification
documents of the relevant suppliers to ensure the quality
safety and compliance of the all relevant suppliers. The
hotel business has also formulated the Procurement
Department Management Regulations (#¥E& 30 &2
T ) to standardize the procurement process and
standards. The Group’s food suppliers are required to
provide the inspection and quarantine certificate issued
by the government’s health and pandemic prevention
authorities, and the materials and supplies provided by
other suppliers shall also obtain national quality and
safety certification. Our big data business is also required
to select suitable suppliers based on their security level
and reliability to ensure the security and quality of data
systems.
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B6.

The Group is committed to supporting the local economy
by prioritizing the procurement from local suppliers
to reduce its carbon footprint during transportation.
The Group also gives priority to suppliers with
environmental certifications or those who can provide
environmentally friendly products and services during
the selection process. In addition, the Group monitor the
procurement activities that employees are responsible
for in accordance with the Guidelines for Integrity Risk
Prevention and Control (B2 R % TEIES]), and
strictly prohibit suppliers from obtaining procurement
contracts or cooperative relationships through any form
of benefit transfer or gift. If any serious violation of laws
and regulations is identified, the Group will terminate
contract with such supplier. The Group will monitor
the procurement mechanism regularly to ensure its
effectiveness.

Supply Chain Environmental and Social Risk
Management

To manage potential environmental and social risks in the
supply chain and ensure the overall quality of suppliers,
we continuously monitor and assess whether suppliers
can meet the contract and specification requirements.
Such assessment includes qualification certification
review, project site inspection, notification inspection,
rectification review, etc. The Group puts in place a strict
receipt inspection system to ensure the quality and
safety of all raw materials, supplies and services we
purchase. We establish supplier credit files according to
the assessment results and provide rectification opinions
and requirements to suppliers as needed, thus striving to
establish a good working relationship with suppliers and
minimize potential environmental and social risks in the
supply chain.

Product Responsibility

The Group believes that the quality of products and
services is a key factor for an enterprise to maintain its
core competence. In order to effectively improve the
quality of products and services and safeguard the rights
and interests of customers, we have formulated and
implemented standardized management procedures for
the quality of products and services, and actively maintain
communication with customers to understand and meet
customers’ needs and expectations, and to promote the
future development of the Group.
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We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests ((PEARENBEHEE R (REZE)),
the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China
(hEARHXMBEELS L)), the Interim Measures for
the Administration of Internet Advertisement (B Bf#48 =
E£EEETHSEE)) and the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China (FEARAEMEERE S
7&) in the PRC, Trade Descriptions Ordinance in Hong
Kong and other relevant consumer protection laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not identify any material violation of laws and regulations
in respect of product and service quality, nor did it have
any products that needed to be recalled for safety and
health reasons.

The awards received by the Group in 2023 are as follows:

° Taoyuan Welfare Center was awarded the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
2023 Elderly Care Service Brand and Medical
Care Integration Brand issued by the Organizing
Committee of the Guangzhou Expo

° Taoyuan Rehabilitation Hospital was ranged in the
third batch of Guangdong Provincial Demonstration
Institutions for the Integration of Medical Care and
Elderly Care in 2023 awarded by the Guangdong
Provincial Health Commission

. Canton Green Gold Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. was
recognized as a Ge-1 green enterprise by China
Chengxin Green Gold Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd

° Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Limited
recognized as the advanced collective of financial
institutions in Guangdong Financial High-tech Zone
in 2022

o Guangdong Nanhong Ming Bao Co., Limited
recognized as one of the top 100 taxpayers by the
Gaoyao District Committee of Zhaoqging City and
the People’s Government of Gaoyao District of
Zhaoging City
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

o Guangdong Sinsing Technology Limited was rated
as a “pilot service provider” for digital transformation
in Nanhai District and TOP132 of the top 500
industrial Internet companies in 2023

° Guangdong Xinrui Zhian Technology Co., Ltd
was selected as a typical case of “chain” digital
transformation of small and medium-sized
enterprises in China and one of the top ten
innovative service enterprises in Nanhai in 2023

Quality Control

The Group’s civil explosives business has passed the 1ISO
9002 quality management system certification, as well as
GB/T 19001, GB/T 24001 and GB/T 28001 management
system certification in respect of quality, environment,
occupational health and safety, and has prepared a series
of documentation in respect of quality control procedures
for production. The Group is committed to maintaining
quality control of its production processes and finished
products, identifying non-conforming products and any
non-compliance with quality and safety requirements,
in order to eliminate potential risks and ensure product
quality and safety. In addition, the Group also strictly
manages the quality of suppliers of food, medicine and
supplies, requires suppliers to obtain relevant qualification
certificates and provide certification documents to ensure
that the products they provide meet the Group’s quality
and safety requirements and standards.

In order to maintain high service quality, all business
segments of the Group have implemented quality
management measures to track customer needs
so as to improve customer satisfaction. The Group
arranges industry knowledge and job skills training for
newly recruited employees, and sets out employee
responsibilities, conduct requirements and management
procedures relating to customer communication in
the Employee Handbook. For the hotel business, the
Group has also formulated the Environmental Quality
Management System (IRIEHEZEIERF ), which sets
out the written procedures of each department regarding
the operation of guest rooms, catering and front desk
services, so as to maintain the hygiene of guest rooms
and ensure the provision of professional services. In order
to continuously improve its service quality, the Group
has also established a complaint handling mechanism.
If any complaints are received, the Group is required
to conduct detailed investigations, actively supervise
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the complaint handling process, and coordinate and
communicate with all parties involved in a timely manner.
We endeavour to understand the facts of each customer
complaint and review and improve our procedures where
necessary. If there is a loss to the customer, such loss
will be fully compensated in a reasonable manner. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any
major complaints about products and services, and
customer satisfaction has reached its expected target.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s wellness elderly
care business has been certified by the Nanhai District
Office of the Leading Group for the Standardization
of Basic Public Service Standardization for the Elderly
(B EeBEBEARERBRECETEALTFE
E\VEPAZE) as the “National Basic Public Service
Standardization Pilot Project for the Elderly in Nanhai —
Benchmark Demonstration Unit”. The Group will continue
to improve service quality to meet customers’ needs and
expectations.

Customer Privacy Protection

The Group has established a stringent privacy protection
policy in the Corporate Governance and Staff Code
((%EAKRETISTE])) and the Employee Handbook,
and strives to protect the personal data and information
security of all stakeholders in accordance with
internationally recognized standards. In order to protect
the personal data and information of our customers
and business partners, the Group has implemented
high security and confidentiality standards in the
collection, processing, use, disclosure and daily record
management. Employees are required to undertake to
keep all personal information confidential and not disclose
the same to third parties without authorization.

In terms of industrial Internet data security, the Group’s
big data business has passed 1SO27000 information
security management system certification and third-party
testing and auditing, which meet the required security
level of protection. During the Reporting Period, the
public service platform of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area (Nanhai) Intelligent Security
Industrial Park of the Group’s big data business was
successfully selected into the Industrial Internet Pilot
Demonstration Project List for 2021 ({2021 T ¥EH
Bt B RESITEE % 8) by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’'s Republic
of China. The second-level node of Industrial Internet
Identification Resolution (Foshan) (T2 B 5 4842 55 iR Afr
(81L)) constructed and operated by the Group was
also granted the first “Internet Domain Name Registration

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F#}

BB | ALE RIS

=

SNRMERF -MEEMEFE
Ko AERFTUSERE - NRSE
BB AEBRTEZERANER
ERERBHERRS  BRREE
HEINRBER RIS HE
rEBAREREEXBCERS
EEEEAAHRBRELCER
A TERE/NEMAERRR
TERERARA KRB IREESE
BEFEAN BT RBEAL -
FEESEBRARSBLRE XU
mEERPBERREAE

FERERE

FEBCR(EEERBKRETLT
A1) R BT FMERBRENNLE
RERR > TR ERRERA
DIRERFREREET ABAER
HMEREREZE REEZTFRE
BEANEAERNAGEE  &E
ErWE RE-ER -BBENA
FLREESFIABTSER:E
RREBERE BTERLHMA
BAEBHNRE  REREFFH
BE=—ERE-

MIEEHERBELEZFE R
SEEXREEEFDHEBISO27000
EELZEEEERRNERE=A
BB ERLZE2ERRER
KoM EE > NEBAHIEZE
BrEBRALEE (@B S8R
TEXERRAERBEEEMRIIA
BEHhEAREMEATEMEEL
(- - —FTEEHERE
TEHIBELE) MHEREEN
T X O BB (B Z4&
g TEEREREEERE
HErEERTIE0BBEHMBEN
iR En 3 TE B AR A s AR TS
A FT ] o REE KBUIRERF
MR A BEERH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Service Agency” license for the second-level node
industrial Internet identification resolution in the PRC by
the Guangdong Communications Administration. Taking
the pilot demonstration as an opportunity, the Group’s big
data business will continue to maintain data security and
the high level of service to promote the comprehensive
development of industrial Internet security and innovative
applications of the industrial Internet.

Intellectual Property Rights

We believe that intellectual property is critical to our
success. We rely primarily on the laws and regulations
relating to trademark and trade secrets as well as the
contractual commitments made by our employees
and third parties in respect of confidentiality and non-
competition to protect our intellectual property. As of
31 December 2022, the Group’s big data business
registered a total of 6 patents, 13 software copyrights, 3
standards and 4 patents. 15 patents, in aggregate, has
been registered under civil explosives business. During
the Reporting Period, we were not aware that the Group
had infringed any intellectual property rights of any third
party or that any third party had infringed any intellectual
property rights of the Group which could materially and
adversely affect our business operations, nor were we
aware of any disputes concerning intellectual property
rights with third parties. The Group will continue to
monitor to ensure that its intellectual property rights are
not infringed.

Advertising and Labelling

The Group is only engaged in limited advertising
campaigns and therefore does not involve significant
advertising-related risks. Nonetheless, for the marketing
of products and services, we strictly regulate and inspect
the promotion of all products and services to ensure that
relevant work follows applicable laws and regulations
relating to promotion and labelling. Such marketing
and promotion shall accurately reflect the quality and
effectiveness of the Group’s products and services.
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B7.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that an integrity corporate culture is
the key to our continued success. Therefore, we attach
great importance to our anti-corruption efforts and
system construction, and resolutely put an end to any
corrupt behaviour. The Group strictly abides by applicable
laws and regulations including the Company Law of
the People’s Republic of China (FZEAREME AT
7£) and the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China in the PRC as well as the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not identify any material violations
of laws and regulations on the prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, nor did it have any
concluded cases of corruption litigation.

Combating Corruption and Upholding Integrity

The Group adopts a “zero-tolerance” attitude towards
any bribery, fraud and money laundering. The Group
stipulates relevant prevention and control measures and
mechanisms in the Guidelines for Integrity Risk Prevention
and Control (EZEEHZEIIEIRSI), and has
established the Leading Group for Prevention of Integrity
Risk to focus on all-round integrity risk investigation and
control efforts in its key areas, key links and important
positions such as investment decision-making, financial
management, bidding, equipment procurement,
personnel selection and employment, engineering
construction, etc., striving to create an integrity working
environment and build an integrity, open and transparent
corporate culture.

The Group conducts extensive and in-depth promotion
and education through, amongst others, theoretical
seminars and cultural activities, stays committed to
creating a good atmosphere of “advocating integrity
and avoiding corruption” within the enterprise, and
strengthens employees’ ideological and moral standards
and awareness of integrity. During the Reporting
Period, the directors and employees of the Group
received approximately 315 and 1,186 hours (2022:
approximately 272 and 2,222 hours) of anti-corruption
training, respectively. The training content includes
education on the Party Constitution, Party rules and
Party discipline 2 Z iR E 4 # A, and Ethics and Code
of Conduct Eduaction BEEHIE KRB, such as
the implementation of the “Work Tips for Party Conduct
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B8.

and Government Integrity Supervision by the Discipline
Inspection Commission of the Communist Party of
Guangdong Province, China"{hHERELERESR
EgERBESEE T (FE), “‘Bulding a Good Family
Style, Building a Clean Family (Bookbox)” {fi B 4 5% & -
BEZXRE (5)), watching anti-corruption feature
films like “Striking Iron Requires Its Own Hardness (Anti-
corruption and Anti-Corruption Video)” ({T#i2E B S
(RER&E%$E) ), and clean-handed government talks
and family tutoring and family style BEEEEEE R R ER ¥
Z J& aiming at familiarizing them with their corresponding
roles and responsibilities in anti-corruption and business
ethics.

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group attaches great importance to the integrity
and honesty of its employees. The Group has formulated
the Whistleblowing Policy (ZE#REZE) to encourage
employees to report any corruption or fraud incidents.
The Group has set up, amongst others, whistle-blowing
hotlines, whistle-blowing mailboxes and whistle-blowing
emails, and designated personnel are responsible for
regular preliminary review and verification of whistle-
blowing content, collection of relevant materials, and
the final decision as to whether to file a case and report
the same to the leading group. The Group reviews the
effectiveness of this whistle-blowing mechanism on a
regular basis to prevent any corruption within the Group
and prevent the improper infringement of interests, so
as to ensure the sound and stable development of the
Group.

Community Investment

While pursuing business development, the Group is
also committed to serving the community. We have
formulated relevant internal guidelines to arrange for the
Group’s employees to participate in various activities
such as charitable public welfare and social services,
and encourage and support our employees to devote
themselves to volunteering services in their spare time.
We hope that our employees can contribute to the
community in person by participating in community
activities, so as to enhance employees’ caring awareness,
cultivate employees’ sense of social responsibility and
contribute to building a better community.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Adhering to the spirit of good corporate citizenship, the
Group actively participates in various poverty alleviation
fund-raising, volunteering and community activities,
aiming at promoting social harmony. During the Reporting
Period, the Group participated in the following community
activities:

° Fund-raising exercises for poverty alleviation:
The Group has actively responded to the “Nanhai
District Sea Charity Month” organised by Foshan
Nanhai District Charity Association, “the Charity
Donation Event in Liantang Town” organised by
Zhaoging City Gaoyao District Association and
other charitable fund-raising exercises organised by
the Charity Association of Nanhai District, Foshan
City, with an aggregate donation of approximately
HK$134,627.00.

° Elderly care activities: As for its wellness elderly
care business, the Group is also committed to
caring for the elderly in the communities where
it operates. In addition to organising condolence
activities for the disabled during festivals, it also
regularly provides medical and support services
such as free clinics, free hairdressing, and free
health checks for the elderly over the age of 60 in
the district.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

1842 & 3 6 AT A TR 3]
HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Yo N7 AZ R

Rooms 1501-8, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,

181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
AT BOE 181 9 R A K 1541501-8%
Tel & 7fi: (852) 3103 6980

Fax % F(: (852) 3104 0170

E-mail & #: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEERBRAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hing
Yip Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “the Group”) set out on pages 100 to 254, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter: Impairment of finance lease receivables
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Refer to Notes 5 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the impairment of the Group’s finance lease receivables
as a key audit matter due to its significance to the consolidated
financial statements, and the use of judgement by the management
in evaluating the recoverability of finance lease receivables.

The carrying amount of finance lease receivables is
HK$4,616,841,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$3,951,900,000), which contributed to approximately 47% to the
total assets (2022: 44%). In determining the impairment for finance
lease receivables, the management considers the credit worthiness,
past collection history, subsequent settlement of each finance lease
customer, and also relevant deposits received, value of leased
assets pledged and of the guarantees. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group recognised an allowance for expected credit losses (‘ECL”) of
HK$108,153,000 (2022: HK$60,528,000).

As set out in Notes 5 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, management measures ECL for finance lease receivable
by using a provision matrix. In determining the impairment of finance
lease receivable, the management considers internal credit rating
which reflect shared credit risk characteristics, historical past due
information and lessees’ creditworthiness for different groupings of
finance lease receivable as parameters of the ECL models.

How we addressed the key audit matter
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Our procedures in relation to the estimated impairment of finance
lease receivables included:

- understanding of the key controls over the granting of the
finance leases and management’s impairment assessment in
relation to the recoverability of finance lease receivables;

- confirming the finance lease receivables balances by sending
audit confirmations on a sample basis;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How we addressed the key audit matter (Continued)
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- evaluating the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology for finance lease receivables based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information;

- assessing the credit profiles of the related borrowers based
on the external evidence and factors to determine the internal
credit ratings;

- evaluating the reasonableness of management’s determination
of the estimated loss rates based on internal credit ratings;

- checking the mathematical calculation and basis of impairment
loss recognised under the ECL model; and

- evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of finance lease receivables in Notes 5 and 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Based on available evidence, we found the assumptions adopted
in relation to the impairment assessments to be supportable and

reasonable.

Key audit matter: Impairment of trade receivables
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Refer to Notes 5, 11 and 26 to the consolidated financial

statements.

We identified the impairment of the Group’s trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to plenty of different kinds of trade receivables
and the use of a significant management judgement in evaluating the
allowance for ECL assessment of trade receivables under the ECL
model.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter: Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)
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The Group had trade receivables arising from continuing operations
of approximately HK$86,996,000 (2022: HK$79,097,000), including
loss allowance for ECL of approximately HK$1,476,000 (2022:
HK$971,000). The trade receivable arising from discontinued
operations amounted to approximately HK$17,803,000
(2022:HK$17,279,000), including loss allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$1,679,000 (2022: Nil). In determining the
impairment for trade receivables, the management performed
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the trade receivables
and the sufficiency of loss allowance for ECL based on information
including credit profile of different customers, aging of the trade
receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, expected timing and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and ongoing business relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the ECL for the allowance
for ECL assessment.

How we addressed the key audit matter
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Our procedures in relation to the estimated impairment of trade
receivables included:

- obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design and
implementation of management’s key internal controls relating
to credit control, debt collection and estimation of ECL;

- checking, on a sample basis, the age profile of the trade
receivables as at 31 December 2023 to the underlying financial
records and post year end settlements to bank receipts;

- inquiring of management for the status of each of the material
trade receivables past due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with supporting evidence,
such as understanding ongoing business relationship with the
customers based on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How we addressed the key audit matter (Continued)
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- evaluating the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology of trade receivables and evaluating the
reasonableness of management’s assumptions, including both
historical and forward-looking information, used to determine
the ECL;

- checking the mathematical calculation and basis of impairment
loss recognised under the ECL model; and

- evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in Notes 5 and 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Based on available evidence, we found the assumptions adopted
in relation to the impairment assessments to be supportable and
reasonable.

Key audit matter: Valuation of investment properties and
PRC hotel property
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Refer to Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the valuation of the Group’s investment properties
and PRC hotel property are significant to our audit because
the determination of fair value of hotel property and investment
properties is based on several key inputs that require significant
management judgments, assumptions, estimations and other inputs.

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties (including the hotel property) at HK$338,172,000 (2022:
HK$1,066,266,000 for investment properties and HK$100,000,000
for hotel property) as at 31 December 2023.

There was a fair value gain of HK$209,212,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: fair value loss of HK$711,000), which
includes fair value loss of HK$350,000 (2022: Nil) on continuing
operations and fair value gain of HK$209,562,000 (2022: fair value
loss of HK$711,000) on discontinuing operations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How we addressed the key audit matter
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Our procedures in relation to the management’s valuation of
investment properties and PRC hotel property included:

- assessing the valuation methodologies used by the external
valuer;

- assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions based on our knowledge of the business
and industry;

- evaluating the independent external valuer’s competences,
capabilities and objectively; and

- considering the appropriateness of the resale values estimated
by the external valuer based on the recent transaction price in

the PRC and Hong Kong’s property industry.

Based on available evidence, we found management’s assumptions
in relation to the valuation are reasonable.

Key audit matter: Revenue recognition
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Refer to Notes 6 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations amounted to
approximately HK$821,423,000 (2022 (Restated): HK$685,331,000),
of which revenue from contracts with customers recognised at
a point in time amounted to approximately HK$442,528,000
(2022 (Restated): HK$361,016,000) and revenue from contracts
with customers recognised over time amounted to approximately
HK$97,296,000 (2022 (Restated): HK$80,047,000), arising on
big data business, civil explosives business, financial leasing,
hotel business, property investments and wellness elderly care
business. The revenue from discontinued operations amounted to
approximately HK$95,710,000 (2022 (Restated) : HK$82,301,000),
arising on industrial parks and property development business. The
Group adopted HKFRS 15 to consider the revenue recognition.
The management required to make significant judgements and
estimations. The significance of the amount of revenue, the
diversification of the sources of revenue, and the extensive adoption
of HKFRS 15 made us identify revenue recognition as a key audit
matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How we addressed the key audit matter
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Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition included:

- evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the existence,
accuracy and timing of revenue recognition;

- obtaining the ledgers and selecting samples to review
whether the management had made correct judgements
on identifying the contract, identifying single performance
obligation, determining the transaction price and other aspects.
Recalculating the accuracy of the progress of performance of
the contracts; and

- selecting samples of the contracts and inspecting the original
contracts, evaluating whether the management had made
reasonable estimates on transaction price (estimated total
revenues), obtaining evidence to confirm the degree of
completion of related service and comparing with the progress
of performance recorded in the Group’s ledger.

We found that the amount and the timing of the revenue recorded
were supported by the available evidence.

Key audit matter: Accounting for interests in an associate
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Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s associate operates in the PRC. The Group’s share
of profit of an associate for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the Group’s interests in an associate at that date are
HK$51,400,000 (2022: HK$4,727,000) and HK$519,077,000 (2022:
HK$517,219,000) respectively, which are significant in the context of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The financial information of the associate is prepared in accordance
with the prevailing accounting standards in the PRC which may differ
in certain respects from HKFRSs.

Converting the financial information of these entities into HKFRSs
for the purpose of equity accounting involves management making
a number of manual adjustments some of which are complex in
nature.

We identified the accounting for interests in an associate in the
PRC as a key audit matter because of the material impact that
these entities have on the consolidated financial statements and
also because of the complex nature of certain adjustments made by
management which we consider increases the inherent risk of error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How we addressed the key audit matter
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Our procedures to assess the accuracy of the accounting for
interests in an associate included:

- performing an audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the PRC based associate, Nanhai Changhai Power Company
Limited*, in accordance with the requirements of HKSAs;

- evaluating significant manual adjustments made in respect of
the associate to convert their financial information into HKFRSs
by comparing the adjustments to underlying documentation
or by re-performing the calculations on which the adjustments
were based; and

- assessing whether the financial information of the associate
after the adjustments made by management was prepared in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

We found management’s accounting for the associate are
supportable and reasonable based on available evidence.

*

For identification purpose only

Key audit matter: Impairment assessment of goodwill
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Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

In August 2020, the Group had completed acquisition of an
additional 2% equity interest in Guangdong Tiannuo Investments
Co., Limited (“Tiannuo”) in accordance with the terms of acquisition
agreement. Upon completion of the acquisition, the shareholding
of the Group in Tiannuo will be changed from 49% to 51% and the
Group had control over Tiannuo.

In June 2023, the Group had completed acquisition of 51% equity
interest in Guangdong XRIS Technology Co., Ltd. (“XRIS”) in
accordance with the terms of acquisition agreement.

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the cash-generating units (the “CGUs”) of the subsidiary
acquired in the current year for impairment testing. Management is
required to assess at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any indicator that goodwill may be impaired.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How we addressed the key audit matter
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment on goodwill
included:

- assessing management’s determination of the Group’s cash
generating units based on our understanding of the nature of
the business and the economic environment in which the cash
generating units operate; and

- based on our knowledge of the business and industry,
challenging the reasonableness of the underlying key
assumptions and data used in the cash flow forecasts
(including revenue growth rate, operating profit, and discount
rate used).

Based on our procedures described, we found the estimations
of management in relation to goodwill are supported by plausible
evidence.

Key audit matter: Valuation of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
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Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has invested in certain financial assets at FVTPL with fair
value of HK$3,787,000 (2022: HK$91,875,000) as at 31 December
2023.

These investments were all measured at fair value using level 3
inputs which were not based on active market prices, nor based on
observable market data.

Management assessed and measured the fair value of FVTPL using
particular valuation techniques, with assistance from an external
appraisal firm. The valuation process was highly judgmental due
to its reliance on management’s assumptions such as discount
rate, volatility and probability weighting, liquidation and redemption
scenarios, etc.

The determination of the model adopted and key inputs required
management’s significant judgment or estimation. The prescribed
value of the FVTPL is significant to the financial statements. In view
of this we have identified this as a key audit matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How we addressed the key audit matter
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of financial assets at
FVTPL included:

- understanding and evaluating the internal controls relating
to management’s model used, development of significant
assumptions and estimates, and major data inputs related to
the fair value measurement;

- obtaining the calculation of fair value estimation of financial
assets at FVTPL, evaluating the appropriateness of the model
used and testing the accuracy of the calculation;

- evaluating the independent external appraisal firm’s
competence, capability and objectivity; and

- assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies and key
assumptions adopted by management including expected
revenue growth rates, expected profit margins, discounted
rates and volatility and reconciling the input data of expected
revenue growth rates and expected profit margins to
management’s forecast of future profits, strategic plans and
business data.

Based on available evidence, we found management’s assumptions
in relation to the valuation are reasonable.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon
(“Other information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibilities towards or
accept liabilities to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

98

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosure made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Fai Fiona

Practicing Certificate Number PO4986
Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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Consolidated Staternent of Profit or Loss and

. » /\ an m]\
Other Comprehensive Income s AR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHE_Z_=—F+_H=+—HL
2023 2022
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE BETT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations FERE X
Revenue WA 6 821,423 685,331
Cost of sales and services & S AR 75 A A (505,326) (429,179)
Gross profit EH 316,097 256,152
Other operating income H &= WA 8 31,094 51,524
Selling and distribution costs HERDHBES (10,923) (10,872)
Administrative expenses THRHX (171,983) (175,978)
Share of profit of an associate FE(E = A B B F 21 51,400 4,727
Decrease in fair value of investment REYEZ ARERLD
properties (350) -
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of financial &2 & AEBE
assets at fair value through profit or loss £RIE E 2 A DE
ALY BN 22 (86,130) 39,907
Allowance for expected credit losses on  BYEHE B 2 FEHA
finance lease receivables EEREEE 25 (49,617) (35,669)
Finance costs MBI H 9 (65,838) (52,484)
Profit before taxation FRIR Al & A 13,750 77,307
Income tax expenses FriSiRp 10 (37,001) (37,253)
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing  FEKE R FEE
operations (18 /B (23,251) 40,054
Discontinued operations B IERE 2 5
Profit for the year from discontinued BARIERE XK
operations KEERF 11 179,187 2,770
Profit for the year KEERF 12 155,936 42,824
Other comprehensive expense, Hitt2mBAx  BRRE
net of income tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit T & E# 7 IEE 187
or loss: ZIEA
Deficit on revaluation of hotel property BIEYEDLEARY)
classified as property, plant and X BEMRREZ
equipment BAREE (8,221) (4,884)
Items that may be reclassified Ol GEE# 7 EEE 18
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH
Exchange difference arising on MBI EER
translation of foreign operations EAZINEEEE (68,348) (187,623)
Share of exchange difference of an FEAL Bt = A B
associate SN = RB (14,243) (43,534)
Other comprehensive expense for the FEHMEEMAS
year, net of income tax HERFIEM (90,812) (236,041)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FEEZEWE (BI%)
for the year “agE 65,124 (193,217)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income (Continue) AT R HAN SR @)
2023 2022
—FZ= .
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B & BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E%)

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/
(expense) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share

From continuing and discontinued

operations

Basic

Diluted

From continuing operations

Basic

Diluted

FERM (HH)
BB
RABHEE AN
R

FEZENKE X
BB
E/NSIEZZ= DN
FEIERR

sRE# (58
R

=054
B IER

CEET

n” A

REEEZER

26,930 (21,535)
129,006 64,359
155,936 42,824
(32,999) (176,294)
98,123 (16,923)
65,124 (193,217)

16

HK1.57 cents
1.57#41l

(HK1.26 cents)
(1.2678 1l

HK1.57 cents

(HK1.26 cents)

1.577441l (1.26781l)
(HK5.59 cents) (HKO0.80 cents)
(5.597 1l1) (0.807 )

(HK5.59 cents)
(5.593# 1l

(HKO0.80 cents)
(0.807 )
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position  #5-5 AGHR I #%

RN_E_=F+"RB=+—H

As at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
NOTES HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5% BT T BT T
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties KEME 17 338,172 1,066,266
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERZE 18 524,504 1,188,457
Intangible assets BmILEE 20 4,103 -
Goodwill SR 19 125,907 127,284
Interests in an associate REE Bz 21 519,077 517,219
Financial assets at fair value BAREFABRZ
through profit or loss TREE 22 3,787 91,875
Finance lease receivables REMREE W 25 3,191,960 2,884,042
Rental deposits HEERE - 5,668
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 23 65,855 906,186
Deferred tax assets FERIEE = 31 27,038 15,132
4,800,403 6,802,129
Current assets MENEE
Inventories EE 24 6,339 8,769
Finance lease receivables MEHEEEW 25 1,424,881 1,067,858
Trade and other receivables JE U BR =0 R EoAth
FEWFRIE 26 151,899 166,623
Pledged bank deposits BIRRIRITER 27 7,197 24,956
Cash and bank balances R & K IR1TAE B 27 592,181 999,250
2,182,497 2,267,456
Assets classified as held for sale FEoHHEEEE 11 2,772,809 -
4,955,306 2,267,456
Current liabilities REIBEE
Trade and other payables FE 1T BR 3R R EoAth
FEfTRRIB 28 211,211 215,913
Tax payables FEMI & 29,404 27,384
Deposits received from customers S EY =R 12,230 2,715
Lease liabilities HEEE 23 823 51,910
Convertible notes BIEAY =t 30 156,251 -
Borrowings EEN 29 2,092,804 1,923,318
2,502,723 2,221,240
Liabilities classified as held for sale BEHEEaRE 11 1,807,561 -
4,310,284 2,221,240
Net current assets MEEEFE 645,022 46,216
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERRSER 5,445,425 6.848.345
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

aMpsikiiR @

2023 2022
—_E=% =B

NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 ABET T BT 5T

Capital and reserves % 25 e (5 1
Share capital [N 32 171,233 171,233
Reserves =i 808,799 841,798

Equity attributable to owners EATHEE AEGER

of the Company 980,032 1,013,031
Non-controlling interests JEFERGHE RS 35 1,139,265 1,079,754
2,119,297 2,092,785

Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Borrowings EE 29 3,061,105 3,167,523
Convertible notes AR ER 30 - 143,833
Deferred income iR IE U 2 34 15,402 215,049
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIEEMR 31 52,685 53,653
Deposits received from customers BlRER%E 192,736 164,778
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 4,200 1,010,724
3,326,128 4,755,560
5,445,425 6,848,345

The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 254 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

HE XIANGMING
a1 121 B
Director

E

FI00EEF24B 2V HREREN -
TE=ZBAt+tHESEF S EREET

HoWAHAUTEEARES !

FU WEIQIANG
SR

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity — £# 5 FEfn 52 5 %

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHE_Z=F+ZHA=+—HLEHFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREA AR
Hotel Convertible
property notes Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other revaluation  Exchange equity ~ Capital Retained controlling Total
capital premium®  reserve® reserve®  reserve*) reserve® reserve" reserve® earnings Total interests equity
ik
BENE BHRE

k& RipERE AEAR HfbEke EEREGe EREEN  GE E5EE REEN @it rERED  EoRE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ARTn  ERTn BETm RRTn  ARTm  ARTn  ERTn ERTn RRTRm  RARTn  ARTn  ERTn

THE GROUP x|
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=F-A-AH 171,233 725199 178,293 8,927 45,665  (142,017) 56,616 - (30,885) 1,013,031 1,079,754 2,092,785
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - - - - 26,930 26,930 129,006 155,936
Other comprehensive expense EREMEZERR
for the year
- Deficit on revaluation of hotel -BENEERER
property - - - - 82 - - - - B2 - B2
- Release of revaluation reserve of ~ —BIEMEER
hotel property HEER - - - - (167) - - - 1,671 - - -
- Exchange differences arising -REENERREE
on translation of foreign ZHEES
operations - - - - - (37,465) - - - (37,465)  (30,883)  (68,348)
- Share of exchange difference of Hﬁﬁ%@
an associate (Note 21) SNEEE (HiE21) - - - - - (14,243) - - - (14,243 - (14243
Other comprehensive (expense)/ EERMRE B/
income for the year Wi - - - - (9,892  (51,708) - - 1,671 (59,929)  (30,883) (90,812
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EEERE B/
income for the year WaaE - - - - (9,892) (51,708) - - 28,601 (32999) 98,123 65,124
Acquisition of a subsidiary BE-HHEAT - - - - - - - - - - 3,047 3,047
Capital injection from non-controling ~ JEERERTE
interests - - - - - - - - - - 1,089 1,089
Dividend paid to non-controlling BFERERS I ZRE
interests - - - - - - - - - - (42,748)  (42,748)
Transfer e - - 37,302 - - - - - (87,302 - - -
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=
+Z8 :‘\‘*El 171,233 725199 215,595 8,927 35778 (193,725) 56,616 - (39,586) 980,032 1,139,265 2,119,297
* [tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss * TEEMNEEEREE

" For the nature and purposes of reserves, please refer to Note 45 to the A MBEEZEEREN F2RAVBRERWE
financial statements. 450
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued) s

AR EER A

Attributable to owners of the Company

EINSEE PN
Hotel
property Convertible Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other revaluation  Exchange notes equity Capital  Retained controlling Total
capital  premiumA  reserveM  reserve  reserve™  reserve  reserveM  reserve)  earnings Total interests equity
EENE TRRE
Bx  ROEEN EEARN HthEe EREE ERBEN EnfE EREEN REER ot FERER  ERfE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKE000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETr BETn EBTx BMTn AEETx  BETx BETx BE¥Trn BETx E¥Tn EBTx  BETx
THE GROUP FE£A
At 1 January 2022 R-E-"FE-A-H 171,233 725199 175,961 8,927 53,014 5,252 56,616 2,570 (9,483) 1,189,289 1,003,167 2,192,456
(Loss)/proft for the year KEE (BB /B - - - - - - - - 153 (153 64350 42,824
Other comprehensive (expense)/ EEEMEE B/
income for the year Wi
- Surplus on revaluation of hotel —EENEERRS
property : . . -8 . . . S 488 S 488
- Release of revaluation reserve of  —EEMEE(
hotel property EERE - - - - (2469) - - - 2,465 - - -
- Exchange difference arising -REBNERREE
on translation of foreign INEEE
operations - - - - - (106,341) - - - (106,341)  (81,282) (187,623)
- Share of exchange difference of ~EEHENT
an associate (Note 21) SNEEE (HzF21) - - - - - (43534) - - - (4353 - (4353
Other comprehensive expense EEEMPARY
for the year - - - - 7349 (149.875) - - 2465 (154750 (31280 (236,041
Total comprehensive expense EERAEMSLE
for the year - - - - (1349 (149.875) - - (19070, (176204 (16929  (193.217)
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE-EHEAT - - - - - - - - - - 6,922 6,922
Capital njection from non-controling ~ FEERERTE
interests - - - - - - - - - - 115402 115,402
Dividend paid to non-controlling BFEREES MRS
interests - - - - - - - - - - (28814 (28814
Transfer o - - 2,332 - - 2,606 - (2,570) (2,332) 36 - 36
At 31 December 2022 i3
+ZB=1+-H 171,233 725199 178293 8,927 45,665 (142,017) 56,616 - (30,885 1,013,031 1,079,754 2,092,785

*

A

financial statements.

Iltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

For the nature and purposes of reserves, please refer to Note 45 to the

A
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows gES W BGHRIEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 RZE_=F+"F=+—H
2023 2022
—ECZ= BT F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E AT BT
Operating activities RETEH
Profit for the year EEERF 155,936 42,824
Adjustment for: HUTEBEHAE .
Bank interest income RITHIBIA (7,822) (10,966)
Finance costs = 139,379 131,447
Income tax expense PrisHEx 38,367 41,615
(Increase)/decrease in fair value of REMEZ A NE
investment properties () /b 17 (209,212) 71
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of financial BANE AT
assets at fair value through profit or loss THEEZANE
HL (g 22 86,130 (39,907)
Interest income from financial leasing RERMEREN
FEWA 6 (265,613) (229,180)
Effective interest income from REHERESZERA
rental deposits BUA 11 (277) (278)
Share of profit of an associate FEILHE AR RF 21 (51,400) (4,727)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEK
equipment BB EIRFE 1,714 3,098
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HERA B ABRE
value through profit or loss ZERMBEEZ WG - (3,922)
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E#H 20 447 -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y EN Y&k
equipment e 18 43,787 45,036
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREBENE 23 32,165 32,212
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME-BEREEZ
equipment VEAIEEEES 18 31,158 -
Dividend income from financial assets at fair @A REFABH
value through profit or loss ETHEEZRE
WA 8 (710) (580)
Allowance for expected credit losses on EWERR 2 TEIEERS
trade receivables B 26 2,226 276
Allowance for expected credit losses on MEHERKZ
finance lease receivables BHEEEERE 25 49,617 35,669
Allowance for expected credit losses on HhEW I > FEEAE
other receivables BElBEES - 2,329
Net exchange loss [ERIBRFEE 1,510 6,295

. 1 HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continuea)

2023 2022
—E-= TR E
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
My 5T BT BT
Operating cash flow before movements in CEESEFRLE
working capital RERE 47,402 51,952
Decrease in inventories E&5HD 1,346 368
Decrease in properties held for sale HEYERLD - 4,600
Increase in finance lease receivables REREEWEIEM (828,387) (1,037,645)
Decrease in trade and other receivables FE U BR 3 R EL 1 FE W R 1B
D 1,107 45,850
Increase in trade and other payables P BR N R Hth I 7R 1B
=)l 19,323 14,072
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income BT R ORizb) /0 (34,914) 18,123
Increase in deposits received from customers B UE IR &I 37,473 34,868
Cash used in operations REMHEE (756,650) (867,812)
Interest income from financial leasing received BEWRBERBEREMN
FIEWA 249,168 236,900
PRC tax paid BIHERE (46,578) (44,712)
Net cash used in operating activities REEHZRERNH
B (554,060) (675,624)
Investing activities REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEME BEKRRE 18 (234,928) (277,676)
Increase in time deposits with more than three R 7Z AR 22 H BB =1
months to maturity when placed Bz EHERUE (74,505) (139,652)
Dividend received from financial assets at fair BUWIZA B ABEZ
value through profit or loss THEEZERE 8 710 580
Dividend received from an associate BEWRBHENTZRE 21 35,299 -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow of acquisition of a WE—BFREZ
subsidiary BHE CRAL) /FA (4,400) 513
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~ HEZARE AETR
fair value through profit or loss SREEZFSIIE - 8,693
Uplift of pledged bank deposits BIRRIRITEMIRRN 17,759 324,462
Interest received BUWFIE 7,822 10,966
Net proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYZ - BERZEHEN
and equipment FTiSFIB 358 59 661
Payments for right-of-use assets FREEEMYHRE (62,403) -
Net cash used in investing activities BREESZ2RETLIFE (314,587) (71,459)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continuea)

aMpsikiiR @

2023 2022
ZEZ= TR E
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
My 5T BT BT
Financing activities MEES
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ~ JEIERRE T T E 1,089 115,402
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests MIFERERSARE (42,748) (28,814)
Payment of handling fee BEUFEE (5,266) (3,350)
Interest paid on borrowings EfNEHRHE 27(b) (62,462) (50,038)
Interest paid on convertible notes BENITBREEENE 30 (3,325) (3,325)
Repayment of borrowings BEEBR 27(b) (2,714,839) (2,382,794)
Proceeds from borrowings BEMBHIE 27(b) 3,461,210 3,532,239
Payments of lease liabilities HEAEMRITRIE 23 (36,800) (38,168)
Net cash generated from financing MEEBZRENASRE
activities 596,859 1,141,152
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRRTHER (L)
bank balances EBIFER (271,788) 394,075
Cash and bank balances at 1 January R—B—HZBR&x
IRITAE R 859,598 526,837
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes EXgEHmr e (20,252) (61,314)
Cash and bank balances at w+ZB=+—HZ
31 December RERIRITHER 567,558 859,598
Analysis of the balances of cash and bank R&RIRITERDTHEU
balances: TIEEHERMK :
Representing cash and bank balances as ERGREMHER IR
stated in the consolidated statement of 2IMRERK
financial position RITAEER 592,181 999,250
Representing cash and bank balances IERERHEERN
attributable to assets classified as EERENRER
held for sale HR1T 4 ER 189,534 -
Less: time deposits with maturity dates over & : ZIHAHBB =@
three months ZEHRER (214,157) (139,652)
567,558 859,598
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

*

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Glories
Holdings (HK) Limited, which was incorporated in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China (“Hong Kong”) and the ultimate holding company
is Guangdong Nanhai Holding Group Co., Ltd., which was
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

During the year, the principal activities of the Group are big
data business, civil explosives business, financial leasing,
hotel business, property investments and wellness elderly
care business. The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are described in Note 7.

The operation of industrial parks and property development
business is classified as discontinued operation during the year.
Details of which are set out in Note 11.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the

Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which are or
have become effective for the Group’s financial year beginning

on 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure of Accounting Policies
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has no material effect
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current or prior accounting period. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment is required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective. The Directors of the Group anticipate that the
application of these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
(Amendments) between an Investor and
Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
Related Amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)"

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants'

Supplier Finance Arrangement’

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 7 (Amendments)
and HKFRS 7

HKAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

8 Effective date to be determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting implications of
the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Government of the Hong Kong SAR (the
“Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”),
which will come into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”).

Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an employer
can no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived from its
mandatory contributions to mandatory provident fund (“MPF”)
scheme to reduce the long service payment (“LSP”) in respect
of an employee’s service from the Transition Date (the abolition
of the “offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect
of the service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately before the
Transition Date and the years of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published the captioned accounting
guidance relating to the abolition of the offsetting mechanism.
In particular, the guidance indicates that entities may account
for the accrued benefits derived from mandatory MPF
contributions that are expected to be used to reduce the LSP
payable to an employee as deemed contributions by that
employee towards the LSP.

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of the offsetting
the Group has applied the above HKICPA
guidance and changed its accounting policy in connection with
its LSP liability.

mechanism,

The directors of the Company anticipate that the abolition of
the offsetting mechanism did not have a material impact on
the Group’s profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2023 and the Group’s and the Company’s financial
position as at 31 December 2022 and 2023. In light of the
immaterial impact, the Group did not apply the change in its
accounting policy retrospectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), the collective term which includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values and
assets held for sales that are measured at fair value less costs
to sell as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical
cost are generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for assets.

Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair Value (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

114

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies to
be in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
have been eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

116

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Business combination

Acquisition of business, other than business combination
under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKS 16 Leases) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Business combination (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value if the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after the reassessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s

statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

AR MBrRRIE @

SEEEHEEK @&

EBEH (&

AEDUMMEEZ B ERIFHERE
I I A U 5 AR P 1 2 B R W BB 75 X
ERFAENREELDRERARE OA)
BY 48 AN B L P U8 BT 80 Bl B R P K
EEERKRERRNFENSOE-
A BERFEE  FRRBRI A E E
REFAEEBERIE B R FEBH
PREg BB A IFERER RIS
J R R WS UER A B
WiE S A RE WA) BB BB
HE DR N Em ik NS A ERE
BEEZWE-

BERSRMAREBoENEERERAE
ANERRIEPDEFRABZEERE
IR LD RIS R AR EHIFE
RIEDZEEREBLIHNEERE
NEEDERLIFE-SHERERT
BIAR 5 MIFHERE - KRR B IFE
REZHIZAREE-

HEERREBGHPEREZRNER
BRANEBRHEEZEENERE A
HARBRANBBEHRZ AR ES
B Wt AREBEHERZABEZ—
Lo -NEERBFTERBRBZ XA
REAREEEHETEMRE  HEHR
EEEFH A ERBBEBLSN 15
S/ (RA88 B R REst—
F)NEERRNKRBRNEFEZEE
RBERZBINENEEZBE-

RBARZRE

RBABAZREEMEREME
AR EBR S AR RBFFHIR K-

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 3% ¥ B A B 24 v)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4§ 117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

118

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill is described in note 19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Investments in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate is
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case
it is or the portion so classified is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Any retained portion of an investment
in an associate that has not been classified as held for sale
continues to be accounted for using the equity method. The
financial statements of an associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in an associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group'’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Investments in an associate (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount,
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when
the equity method is discontinued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Investments in an associate (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of the interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

i. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales
of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
relevant subsidiary after the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations (Continued)

i.

i,

122

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and investment properties which continue to
be measured in accordance with the accounting policies
as set out in respective sections.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also
occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the statement of profit
or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including property under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

i Hotel property

Previously, hotel property was stated at revalued
amounts, being fair value at the date of revaluation
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent impairment loss. Fair value was determined
with reference to appraisals by external professional
valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount did not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting
period. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation was eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount was restated to
the revalued amount of the asset.

MBS HRRNGE @

SEEEHEEK @&

REME

REMEDRBNEE R HEELFA
BEENMIFIAENYE (BEBEARE
WZERYE) - REVENTLEN
= (BEXZHE) 5TE R DH#ER
B REMENRAANEFE-ERE
MERAREEBEENBBENREE
MRt ABmA -

REMERHER > WAAFLEERZ
REMERBHLEZREYETS
7 A R AR AT ) 2 B BUH B 5% 0 BUM B
SRR EFMEENEAERS GRHERR
BRIEFPRAZEERAEZHANE
B H) sTABUE Y EHENET
Ao

ME- -BERRE

i. BEYE

M BEYERELSE B
EHEABRZAREBEREBRITE
RAERBBERRK JR - A nE
TSN E E G EME B SR &
TETZFEMERE  UERFRIEK
HEZRREHRKBUEEE
TERBERER -PREMAMNZ
R TETHEEEZBRE
BREHE MPEITEINEEE
ZEMEER-

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 3% ¥ B A B 24 v)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4§ 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

124

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

i.

Hotel property (Continued)

Any surplus arising on revaluation of hotel property
were recognised in other comprehensive income and
were accumulated in the properties revaluation reserve
in equity, unless the carrying amount of that asset has
previously suffered a revaluation decrease or impairment
loss. To the extent that any decrease had previously been
recognised in profit or loss, a revaluation increase was
credited to profit or loss with the remaining part of the
increase dealt with in other comprehensive income. A
decrease in net carrying amount of hotel property arising
on revaluations or impairment testing was recognised
in other comprehensive income to the extent of the
revaluation surplus in the properties revaluation reserve
relating to the same asset and the remaining decrease
was recognised in profit or loss.

Transfer of hotel property from owner-occupied properties
to investment properties

Transfer of hotel property from owner-occupied properties
to investment properties is made only when the use
of hotel property has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation. If hotel property become investment
properties, the Group accounts for hotel property in
accordance with the policy stated under property, plant
and equipment up to the date of change in use. Any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of the hotel property at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the hotel property, the relevant revaluation reserve will
be transferred directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

ii.

ii.

Property, plant and equipment (other than Hotel
property)

Property, plant and equipment (other than hotel property)
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than hotel property)
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:

2% to 10%
10% to 30%

Land and buildings

Furniture, equipment and leasehold
improvements

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

10% to 30%
15% to 30%

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost which includes capitalised borrowing costs less
any recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when it is completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit and loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses/revalued amounts,
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible assets, intangible assets other
than goodwill and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets, intangible assets other
than goodwill and right-of-use assets to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Impairment of tangible assets, intangible assets other
than goodwill and right-of-use assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continueq)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any interest earned
on the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables and finance lease receivables) which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, twelve-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and finance lease receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to twelve-month ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

AR MBrRRIE @

SEEEHEEK @&

EWMIA &
EHEE (B
THEERE

AERMIRBEBMHRSERFN
2@ TR AT RENTREERD
BIEEBENEREE (BEBYCR
MERBMEHERER -BHREEBRE
NWERNEREAMEN > URKREE
JR\ KR B V)R FE SR LAZR B B 8

EHREREEGEREEBIANRAR
STFEHANFER RN EHELENTR
HEEHE R+ “ERRMEE
BRERGNRSAMET ZEAR
FIEBEEMNENEHELN AR
EEBEED FENRERAEREBT
EERAER ITMEFABERE
—REBERRAREREESAHZE
R IR 0 B R HRGR L TRR B ST (L (R 2 o

AER-ERBRERMKMEBER
WERRER 2 RHEER R -2ZFE
ENFEMEEBRENDMAERNEHN
FEUWBR FESTE RIS K SR A A
GEMAER VB EEREETERN G

MEMPAETLAMS  AEBFEERN
T ERREEEHENEKRERS FR
FEFERBREVREBLUIRES £
FoRIAEREDEHEMREEER
EERUEMAMEEREREINR
BEVGRERURELEENA M
SR EE LAl

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 3% ¥ B A B 24 v)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4§ 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

According to the changes of credit risk of financial instruments
since the initial recognition, the Group calculates the ECL by
three stages:

o Stage 1: The financial instruments without significant
increases in credit risk after initial recognition are included
in Stage 1 to calculate their impairment allowance at an
amount equivalent to the ECL of the financial instruments
for the next 12 months;

° Stage 2: Financial instruments that have had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but have no
objective evidence of impairment are included in Stage 2,
with their impairment allowance measured at an amount
equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the financial
instruments;

° Stage 3: Financial assets with objective evidence of
impairment at the financial reporting date are included
in Stage 3, with their impairment allowance measured at
the amount equivalent to the ECL over the lifetime of the
financial instruments.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continvea) 47 &M BRI EE @)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESIHEK &

(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continued) ERMTIAE

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (B
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) . EERBAEEN E

LHR FEEERRESKIE
EmEgERETIER !

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly.

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the Probability
of Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and exposure at
default. The assessment of the PD and LGD is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between a contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

ii.  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instruments level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Past-due status; and

° Nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
from hotel business and finance lease receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial assets (Continueq)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments or in which the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognised on its consolidated statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the transferred assets. In such cases, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

138

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes

The component parts of the compound instruments
(convertible notes) issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
When the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible notes, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity components are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation
at the end of each reporting period, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business,
net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sales of emulsion explosives, logistics income from
civil explosives business, income on explosives
engineering from civil explosives business,
operating income from big data business, industrial
parks and property development and wellness
elderly care business and other income from hotel
business

Sales of emulsion explosives, logistics income from civil
explosives business, income on explosives engineering
from civil explosives business, operating income from big
data business, industrial parks and property development
and wellness elderly care business and other income from
hotel business involve income generated from sales of
goods or providing services. Income generated from sales
of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed, while income generated from providing
services is recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

Service income from hotel business, industrial parks
and property development and wellness elderly care
business

Service income from hotel business, industrial parks and
property development and wellness elderly care business
are recognised on a straight-line basis over the scheduled
period of services.

Construction of platform regarding big data
business

Revenue from construction of platform is recognised
progressively over the contract period based on the
stage of completion method. The progress towards
completion of the construction of platform is measured
based on output method, which is to recognise revenue
on the basis of direct measurements of the value of the
outputs transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining outputs promised under the contract, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
platform.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Technical service income from big data business

Technical service income from big data business
includes income generated from providing business IT
management, design, implementation and technical
support services. It is under fixed-price contracts and
recognised in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered. For fixed-price contracts, revenue is
recognised based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion of the total
services to be provided because the customer receives

and uses the benefits simultaneously.

Where the service contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling
price.

Interest income from financial leasing

Interest income from financial leasing including handling
fees (if any) represents interest income from financial
leasing business, is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Consultancy service income from financial leasing

Consultancy service income from financial leasing is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income
Rental income arising from properties let under operating

leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the respective leases.

(viii) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ix) Dividend income

Dividend income from investment is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If the considerations (including advances received
from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a contract
liability for the difference.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income or a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated
statement of position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivables as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Government
grants relating to compensation of expenses are deducted from
the related expenses, other government grants are presented
under “other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangement, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
and over the lease terms of the relevant right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognised due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(“ORSO Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit
scheme are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Lease

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straightline
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B 3% ¥ B A B 24 v)
146 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4E#}t

AR MBrRRIE @

3. EEGHEHEE &

HE

HEZES

HEMMBERRERTFE—RBBA
ZERERBEERBNEN BIZEH
~HEERBEZEE.

MREREREBMBREERNF16
SEHRASZ BT L RERANEGNMS
FEERBEBYHFREENF165E
WERN B BRI UWE B (B
B AEeNEE s EENEgHE.
FBRIFENERMRIRERERES B8
BERGHIR AT EMTE

FEEEBEA-A

SEAIEE S AL A7

MESHEMEMRE D R—HAZIRER
SMEESIFREAMSONEHAMES
AERRBEEEHEMRBONEEET
B RIFFAEHEMNE DB I ERAE
BREMNEDEEZHEAEAMED

IR ENREEEEHRE

FEENERGBEEERA12EA
AUTETEEEEEZRNEER
FREEERSH® R HRKERRE
EEEEHERIHRE - EHAENKE
EBEEEEAENHEHENREREER
RNEERBERENR R AR BRAX



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as turnover.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the re-translation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ii)

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(ii)

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity, and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, time deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts or bank loans, if
any, which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of an enterprise’s cash managements are also included as
component of cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Estimated the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

MBS HRRNGE @

4.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 3% ¥ B A B 24 v)

EAREHEREFREE
FSEE 4N 20

EEETRANZIH T AEREHE

NMRNEER S EREE(FHH 8 G5
AR o (f 5t BB R R T IR | AT AL
B R HAth i SRR BRI R FH - BIRAS
REJEES AR ZF G

HEtREMBRREERFTESH -HE
sHEsHESTER EZ R AESTRE
BT At AR MR S ERT R R &2
BHRE AR SEESTHER
KRR HAEIRESD o

LVE RN R E S E

FEEETEYFE BERRENMGEH
R RRITE ST H - At ER M
BRNERENYE BERRENE
REEAMAPUEERtE - EEES
B R] 6 R ER A BB IR S i 5t RFIE 5T #
EXH g siiuR R mRENE
BERIHENIFREEE -

153

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4§
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-
of-use assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined with reference to the higher of fair
value of the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and right-of-use assets less costs to sell or the value-in-use
calculations. An impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the recoverable
amount. Where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss may arise. As at 31
December 2023, the Group recognised an impairment loss for
property, plant and equipment amounting to HK$31,158,000
(2022: Nil). Other than that, the Group reported no impairment
loss for intangible assets and right-of-use assets (2022: Nil).

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s other assets and
liabilities

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The qualified
external valuers establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Financial Controller reports the
qualified external valuers’ findings to the board of Directors
of the Company every semi-annually to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 5, 17 and
18 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of various assets and liabilities.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F#}

MBS HRRNGE @

4.

BEAREHAERGEEREE
AENEEKRIE @

ME - BERIBEREREEERE

WESHERERETBERYE BEM
REREAEEEZREESNET
WhEl+2E AIMZEEELETREST
o EBIHET2EYE - ME KK
BEREBEEEZ AABEREERA
REFEEMEPRSEMEE  ME
BAREERBEATKED B E
BErt2oMowosiE D RREE 8
PREEERERX R_E_=ZF1+_
B=+—H A"&EERIVE -BEK
BB R EB L BES31,158,0007T (=
T & ) ofRIE AN REE TR
EEFEERGRAREEZ REBRKL

(&

. A
L) o

SEHMEERGRZANE

AEENHIEEREBEDE LA AE
STEUARMBRRERN -

RGEFTEERERZAAER  A5&H
ERFIAMH RIS REHE e — R
ANERIR AEBGEEBE =158
B EMETAE - G BB INS L ERD
HEGBZEERMRERBAEB S
SREERBBANERBZREA #
HRESYFTFEODLARTIEFTEER
BERIIBEEMZATER

FEERBORBRUIFUTHERT SR
BRKREBEZBABERNZEERMMG
SAETHEERIAZARE M5
1ITRIBHINEERBREERBRZA
HERMBZEHERM BWABRER
BRZFREM-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimation of fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and hotel property

The Group’s properties were revalued as at 31 December 2023
based on appraised market value by independent professional
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimate of fair value, the
Group considers information from current prices in an active
market for similar properties in the same location and condition
and uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

During the year, hotel property transferred to investment
properties because of change in use. As the usage changed,
the hotel property was revalued using the fair value model and
classified and accounted for as investment properties at date
of transfer.

During the year, as the Group entered into the disposal
agreement to sell industrial parks and property development
business. Partial of investment properties were transferred to
assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2023.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31
December2023 was HK$338,172,000 (2022: the carrying
amount of investment properties and PRC hotel property were
HK$1,066,266,000 and HK$100,000,000 respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and finance
lease receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss allowance for trade receivables and finance
lease receivables by assessing the ECLs, which requires the
use of estimates and judgements. Assessing the ECLs requires
the use of a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, general conditions, internal credit
ratings and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions. The
allowance of ECLs is sensitive to changes in estimates.

The information about the ECLs and the Group’s impairment
loss allowance regarding trade receivables and finance lease
receivables are disclosed in Notes 5, 26 and 25 respectively.

Deferred tax asset arising from allowance for ECL on
finance lease receivables

The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
the Group’s assessment of ECL of finance lease receivables.

In cases where the actual assessment of ECL is less or more
than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of ECL assessment, a material reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal or further recognition takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Deferred tax asset arising from allowance for ECL on
finance lease receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, a deferred tax asset of
HK$27,038,000 (2022: HK$15,132,000) arising from allowance
for ECL on finance lease receivables has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position. Details of the
deferred tax asset are disclosed in Note 31.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or
fair value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, or changes in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash flows or
upward revision of discount rate, a material impairment loss or
further impairment loss may arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continuead)

Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$125,907,000 (2022: HK$127,284,000), (net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$NIl (2022: HK$Nil). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 19.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in the
PRC and Hong Kong and accordingly are subject to special
considerations and several risks.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s main operating income and costs are
denominated in RMB. In the business operation of the Group,
foreign exchange fluctuation in income and costs would be
mutually offset. However, as the Hong Kong-based Group
has injected substantial amount of current borrowings into
domestic wholly owned subsidiaries in the PRC and held a
huge amount of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in RMB, an exchange gain or loss would arise from the
appreciation or depreciation of RMB. The Management
expected that RMB will be immensely affected by deterioration
of Sino-US relations, fluid epidemic dynamics, USD interest
rate hike cycle and domestic economic recovery in the short
term, therefore the trend of RMB is unforeseeable in the short
term. In the long run, it is expected that RMB will remain stable
and will not expose the Group to significant and long term
adverse foreign exchange risk. Therefore, the Group currently
does not have any specific foreign exchange risk hedging need
for this matter.

Besides, parts of the Group’s bank balances and borrowings
are denominated in US dollars. The sensitivity of fluctuation
in US dollars exchange rate is considered insignificant as the
Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US dollars based on The
Linked Exchange Rate System.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Foreign Exchange Exposure (Continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:
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REBEHR ZEBLUMNESERNER
BEEKREREENREMENT

At 31 December

®W+-—BA=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= =

HK$’°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Assets ﬁE
Denominated in Renminbi RisiEsE 5,589,345 5,119,565
Denominated in US dollars %mu% 7,400 15,050
5,596,745 5,134,615

Liabilities aE
Denominated in Renminbi AR E45 5,488,308 4,857,099
Denominated in US dollars ETEHE 702,785 703,094
6,191,093 5,560,193

TRETARBRBEAE ZE%
decrease in RMB against the Hong Kong dollars. The sensitivity HERE DT - ZBURE DT EEELU
analysis includes only RMB denominated monetary items and AEBAENERIER RELKEEA
REXEFHwMAERRE - HAR
KR BEAE ZES% AHFEESR
mIIEENMT

The following shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase/

adjusts their translation at the year and for a 5% change in
RMB dollars rates. If there is a 5% increase/decrease in RMB
exchange rate against the Hong Kong dollar, the effect in the
profit for the year is as follows:

At 31 December

®W+=ZB=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET
Increase/decrease in profit or loss for the year FEEBZEIEM, D 7,875 2,323
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for equity holders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to equity holders, return capital to equity

holders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank loans, asset-backed securities and convertible
notes) and equity attributable to owners of the Company
(comprising issued share capital, share premium, reserves and
retained earnings).

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and will balance its overall capital structure
through issue of new shares as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

The Directors monitor capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated based on total debts dividend by equity plus
total debts. Total debts is calculated as total interest-bearing
borrowings and debt component of convertible bonds.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

AR MBrRRIE @

5.

HHEEREE =

EEARERE

FEENETEENRERELAEH
FEMEEEE UBRFREHREBRAHE
thERFAARHN D RFETRE
NWEAEBLUREESHE BT MR
WBEERER AEEETHREX
T FRENREBEE BRREDKNE
FREBEITHRIHEEELURER
7o

FEBZEXGEHEOEEE (BFRT
B BEXFESTRAIBRRKRER MU
RAEABRREGERD (BEESHTR
R @B HERFRER RN

ERBEEFBFFRTELRRBE - FIR
Sz—8D  EFEEZTRETMAE WK
BIBBTITR KRB ITMESFHEOEIR
BEEHBRFEHEREARRB

EFVEEARLEXREEGEER-
ZUERDBERERUEa kB EE
BZzMAE - BEBEANLEIFEBEERE
BINAIRESFNEEED -

RBEHR BEEGRBLEERNT

2023 2022
—E-=HF ==

HK$’000 HK$’000

ABETT BT 5T

Total debts (Note 1) BE4%8 (I5E1) 5,874,745 5,234,674
Equity (Note 2) #m (ffsE2) 980,032 1,013,031
Equity and total debts oAU REBEERE 6,854,777 6,247,705
Gearing ratio EESMELEE 86% 84%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contived) & & MBI EMsE @)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5.

Capital risk management (Continued)

Notes:

1) Total debts comprises of total interest-bearing borrowings,
including long-term and short-term borrowings, and debt
component of convertible notes as detailed in Notes 11, 29 and
30 respectively.

2) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of
the Company.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
floating interest rate from borrowings (see Note 29 for details
of these borrowings). The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to fair value interest
rate risk. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly arises from
the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with
variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a
balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

MBRRERE &
BELRBERE &)
MisE -

1) BEERSFESESENEE HaF
RAKREHERUKRATSRREENEG
EEb D Z R IBE D BB M EE11 29K
Mi=E30°

2) HmBEAAREAABGLAEESR
Fefetifh o

B

FrEEAAEBENXEAREZE FEH
KZEEAM REREZFBRFELSH
Mi5EE29) o A& BRI EE R E M7
EFTEANEHPHERZ ARERN R
ERgeAT EEERNERTEREE
HIMERFRER

AEBZREAENRER  TEHRE
AEBUARESHEZEBE FEEBZ
HRABBEERFLUIBFRTE U
A S EF R R E RIS

4% Bl 2 B A R B U T 87
TH B2 BN BB EREAEB@EE
RemBANRAR A EBEBESHE
ERTEAEERN D EES TR
R B o

AEBERNKESHREEN S
BRI T

2023 % of total 2022 % of total

HK$’000 borrowings HK$'000 borrowings

—EC= AN “E-CF ThEm

AT BEENL BETT REBEDLE

Variable rate borrowings EE-HIESEEN 2,438,698 43% 2,244,296 44%
Fixed rate borrowings EEFEER 3,279,796 57% 2,846,545 56%
5,718,494 100% 5,090,841 100%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

An analysis by maturities is provided in liquidity risk
management below. The percentage of total borrowings shows
the proportion of borrowings that are currently at variable rates
in relation to the total amount of borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2022:
50 basis points) increase or decrease in interest rate is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2022: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2023 would decrease/increase by HK$12,528,000 (2022:
profit decrease/increase by HK$11,221,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate borrowings.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with
the board of Directors. In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continvea) &7 &M BRI &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. MFERKRER &

Liquidity risk management (Continued) TBESREKRER (&

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into AEBZEHEBEREBERN T Z2E/HA
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period REPAREESNEHAEAMBREIE
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity PEETRDM -MTIRZEREHIRE
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BHARMIBZIRERENE

undiscounted cash flows:

2023
ZEIzE
Weighted Total Total
average On Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
i KRR E

RR=EES BER —EHA -Ez% MELE AENE ikt BREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR AR AR ARTR ARTT ARTR

Trade and other payables BRI
HitEAHE - 245,551 - - - - 245,551 245,551
Borrowings faa 4.41% 834,141 1,407,094 2,725,996 370,045 669,573 6,006,849 5,718,494
Lease liabilities HEAR 5% - 51,089 107,199 111,061 1,831,105 2,100,454 1,052,346
Convertible notes issuedon ~~ RZE—h&
23 May 2019 ER”+=H
BEfT
THRRE 10.64% - 166,232 - - - 166,232 156,251
1,079,692 1,624,415 2,833,195 481,106 2,500,678 8,519,086 7,172,642
2022
E-CF
Weighted Total Total
average On Within Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
i KERRE
R EER —ENR —E=fF NERF BENE nERE REEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT LR LR BT BT BT AT
Trade and other payables EERRR
HitEMFIE - 215,913 - - - - 215,913 215,913
Borrowings B} 4.84% 868,077 1,312,184 2,299,658 491,224 676,694 5,647,837 5,090,841
Lease liabilities HEERE 5.00% - 51,910 104,311 111,428 1,924,037 2,191,686 1,062,634
Convertible notes issuedon ~~ RZB—NE
23 May 2019 TAZ+=H
BEfT
ThREE 10.64% B 12,419 153,813 - - 166,232 143,833
1,083,990 1,376,513 2,657,782 602,652 2,600,731 8,221,668 6,613,221
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Liquidity risk management (Continued)

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause as at 31
December 2023 are included in the “on demand” time band
in the above table. The carrying amount of the borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$785,784,000 (2022:
HK$799,124,000) as at 31 December 2023. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position and assets pledged
for the borrowings, the Directors did not believe that it was
probable that the lenders would exercise the discretionary
rights to demand immediate payments. The Directors believed
that the borrowings would be repaid in accordance with the
repayment schedules set out in the loans agreements. The
total cash outflows for the principals and interests of the
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$834,141,000
(2022: HK$868,077,000). Details of which are set out in the
table below:

MBS HRRNGE @

5.

MBRMRER @
RBESAREE (@)

W _EBE_=H+_A=+—H EE
KREBEIVERETA LRTEER]
EOEBHEN - R _E-_=F+_81
T+ —H ERNEEEAN B
785,784,000 0 (ZE - —&F : B
799,124,0007T) ° 5t M ARE B FAK R
EAEEERFRNEER EFLAF
RAEEBRANGTERAEREZRIAE
R EBRERABRMETREREBEDRR
EAMHZERKRER ZEERZ K
IRIBEMEBEEE AL A 834,141,000
Tt (CTE 4 1 B¥#868,077,0007T) ©
FEIBEN TR

Maturity Analysis - Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause

HEAAT-ERERHNRERERRRNER

Total Total

Within Over undiscounted carrying

1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years 5 years cash flows amount

RERRE

—ENR —-E=F MELE AENE MERE BEREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR  BETR  BMTR  BWTR  BETR  BETR

As at 31 December 2023 “ZTF+ZR=1-H 43,426 752,175 26,699 11,841 834,141 785,784

As at 31 December 2022 “ZTZE+ZR=1-H 85,552 752,629 4,373 25,523 868,077 799,124
Credit risk EERR

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties equals to the carrying amount of respective
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade receivables and finance lease receivables.
Credit risk on other receivables is limited because there was
no historical default record has been made during the year and
the Directors expect that the general economic conditions will
not significantly changed for the 12 months after the reporting
date.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F#}

N_EBE_=ZFR_ZF__F+°-AH
=t+—H FAEEERREARSHTF
REBTEEMEMRAEREEM BIEXL
WEReEERBRESENGEEMBRR
RFFPIANEREMEENREE &
EEZEERREEZRBBIERRK
MEBRERKR -AFLEELENT
BREFAPERSHHRIZEAR
REER IR AGEEEREE BE
AEMBYRENEERREAIR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continueqd)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determining of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the management of the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable at the end
of reporting period to ensure that adequate allowance for
ECL is made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The Group applied the simplified approach to measure ECL
on trade receivables, including trade receivables from big
data business, civil explosives business, hotel business,
wellness elderly care business and industrial parks and
property development and finance lease receivables. Under the
simplified approach, the Group measures the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

To measure the ECL on trade receivables, based on forward-
looking economic information through the use of industry trend
and experienced credit judgement as well as past experience
including historical credit loss experience and current
expectations, the Group has collectively used a provision
matrix with 5% ECL rate on total carrying amount of trade
receivables from hotel business, while used provision matrices
with different ECL rates separated based on different customer
segments or past due status on total carrying amount of trade
receivables from big data business, civil explosives business,
industrial parks and property development and wellness elderly
care business.

To measure the ECL on finance lease receivables, finance lease
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The Group has collectively applied provision
matrix with different ECL rates, which classified the credit risk
regarding finance lease receivables into 4 grades. ECL rates of
the Group’s finance lease receivables, which represent internal
credit risk ratings, are based on qualitative (such as lessee’s
operating conditions, financial positions, usage of finance lease
assets, etc.) and quantitative factors (mainly include past due
information of the finance lease receivables). The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit risk of
finance lease receivables and the provision matrix showing the
ECL as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

AR MBrRRIE @

5.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 5.

166

Credit risk (Continued)

SFABIRRINEE &

HEREEIE »

EERK @)

31 December 2023

—E_=5+"HB=+—H

ECL rates Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FEHREE
BEX F—BE SR F=ERBE 45t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000
BT AT ABABETT ABETx
Internal credit ratings 215 & 4R
Grade 1 - Low risk F—R—EER
— Government related — i (f¥5E1)
(note ) 0.5% 1,947,109 - - 1,947,109
Grade 2 - Low risk FIHR—ERER
- Others (note II) —Hfth (f$5E2) 1.83%-3% 2,337,147 - - 2,337,147
Grade 3 — Medium risk S5 = 4~ A
(note 1) (F35E3) 10% - 376,088 - 376,088
Grade 4 - Default FIOR—ELN
(note IV) (F5E4) 10%-100% - - 64,650 64,650
4,284,256 376,088 64,650 4,724,994
Less: allowance for B TEHREER
expected credit BEE
losses* (38,711)  (37,120)  (32,322) (108,153)
Net carrying amount IRMEFE 4,245,545 338,968 32,328 4,616,841
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

AR MBrRRIE @

5. MFERKRER &
EERE (&)

31 December 2022
-+ _"FB=+—H

ECL rates Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
TEHEE
BEEX FMEE FIRE  E=EE Hast

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT  BMTR  BMTR  BMTR

Internal credit ratings PRI EB15 & 34K

Grade 1 - Low risk F—HR—EER
- Government related — i (F¥5E1)
(note 1) 0.5% 1,963,454 - - 1,963,454
Grade 2 — Low risk B —ERR
— Others (note II) — =2 (ff5E2) 1.3% 1,995,288 - - 1,995,288
Grade 3 F =4
— Medium risk (note Ill)  — AR
(fF5E3) 10% 29,969 - - 29,969
Grade 4 FE AR
— Default (note IV) —E# (5E4) 100% - - 23,717 23,717
3,988,711 - 23,717 4,012,428
Less: allowance for A TEHREEE
expected credit BRE
losses™ (37,008) - (23,520) (60,528)
Net carrying amount IRMEFE 3,951,703 - 197 3,951,900

*

The allowance for expected credit losses is calculated after
deducting finance lease interest receivables received and finance
lease deposits received.

Notes:

Grade 1 category is finance lease receivables which are
government related customers. Such customers are determined
to have low credit risk and related lease receivables have no past
due.

Grade 2 category is finance lease receivables which are the
customers without government relationship. Such customers are
determined to have low credit risk if the related finance lease
receivables have no past due.

Grade 3 category is the finance lease receivables with
customers’ credit profiles are acceptable.

Grade 4 category is the finance lease receivables that are past
due.

* BEHREEBREREERINGEWRER
BEMEERERMNEVRERE 2%
ﬁo

MisE -

1. B—REEAHEBFEENEFR
EHERWR  ILEE R BRI HE
EERBRMEEMNEERERER
RERE B W REHT

2. FBIBETERFBUTERMHNZTRHR
BERERWR - LR E PR A
EEREMEEERNBERE BN
HERHRE R ARBH -

3. FIRETAMEEERERTIERE
REBRRABAIER -

4. BRI AR ERE BRI
HERREEEEH-
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5.

Credit risk (Continued)

Movements in the accounts related to ECL in respect of trade

receivables, other receivables and finance lease receivables are

MBS HRRNGE @

MEBERRERE @

EERK @)

BRABYUERR S Hth R WRRIE R B E R
ERBMNEREEGREZ ZFHAL

summarised as follows: (I
Finance
Trade Other Lease
Receivables  Receivables Receivables Total
RMEHE
FEERT  HtEkRIE eI ek
(Note 28) (Note 1) (Note 26)
(fyzE27) (B zE1) (Fyzx25)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI BRI BT
Balance as at 1 January 2022 A _E""F—HF—H 762 41,533 28,058 70,353
Allowance for expected credit losses R EAEERE 276 2,329 35,669 38,274
Exchange difference [ERER 67) (8,307) (3,199) (6,573)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 and ~ WZZ_-_"F+_A
1 January 2023 =+-HAKZE_Z&
—R—H 971 40,555 60,528 102,054
Allowance for expected credit losses BHEEHE 2,226 - 49,617 51,843
Transfer to assets classified as held for ~ BEERZERIHEEEE
sale (1,679) (2,200) - (3,879)
Exchange difference fERER (42) (1,116) (1,992) (3,150)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 R _=4
+-B=+—H 1,476 37,239 108,153 146,368
Note: B 5

In 2020, allowance for expected credit losses was recognised
in other receivables, which represents consideration receivables
amounted to RMB33,850,000 in relation to the disposal of
the Group’s 25% equity in Guangdong Financial Leasing Co.,

Limited* that management consider was uncollectible in full.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fair value

BB HAREE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. HWHEREEE @
RRE
i)  Fair value of financial assets i) ETHEEZAALE
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREIIN T EREBUARRNE
assets that are measured at fair value subsequent to HEZEREEZDN LD
initial recognition, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the B ABBZIBREDER
degree to which the input is observable: E=M
As at 31 December 2023
RZEZ=5+-H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B— -t FEZHR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT AT AT
Recurring fair value BEMAREHE:
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value BRAREFABRZ
through profit or loss: THEE:
Unlisted equity investment FELEMRHOBEE - - 3,787 3,787
Option granted for selling R —ENB AR
the 72% equity interest HEFIFERER
in a subsidiary to 72% R HERI HR #E
non-controlling interest = = = =
- - 3,787 3,787
As at 31 December 2022
R_E2__F#+"HA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R S B4R it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Recurring fair value BEMAREHE:
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value BAREFABRZ
through profit or loss: THEE:
Unlisted equity investment FELEMRHOBEE - - 1,977 1,977
Option granted for selling BT —ERB AR
the 72% equity interest HEFIEERER
in a subsidiary to 72% 8% FERI HR HE
non-controlling interest - - 89,898 89,898
- - 91,875 91,875
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and RAEEER > E—R - FHRESH
Level 3 during the year. =Rz T o
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RO MBrRRIE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cContinued) 5. MBEMBERE @
Fair value (Continued) ARE &
i) Fair value of financial assets (Continued) i) ZTHEEZAALEE
The Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value REREHFR AEBZEME

at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair value of the
financial asset is determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

ERAREFE - TREIERRM
NHEEEMEEAABLER
HERMRATHRARNEARE -

170

Fair value  Valuation technique and Significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy key inputs inputs
EHMEE RUTEENARE ARESFE HERTREEBARE Ek*‘]&ﬁﬁ?ﬁ)\%ﬁ%
2023 2022
—E=g TE2fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BB
Unlisted equity
investment
FEETRNEE
- Financial asset A 3,787 1,977 Level 3 Income approach - discounted - Discount rate: 13.20%
—ERMEEA B=M cash flow analysis (2022: 13%)
WAE-BRBERENT - Discount for lack of
marketability rate: 30%
(2022: 30%)
— BEIRE 113.20%
(ZBZZF 1 13%)
— BREmmmmTEER
30%
(ZEZ2%:30%)
Option granted for - 89,898 Level 3 Binomial pricing model - - Volatility, determined by
selling the 72% B this approach, certain reference to historical

equity interest
in a subsidiary

parameters determined by
management are input into

volatilities of companies
operating in the same

to the non- the binomial model to derive industry
controlling the valuation of the option.  — HiE> K2 EREBITF
interest TIEAEERE MBS BEE
B —HNBAE EEEEENET289H
HEFIFER AZIEAER DUERHARE
R 72%RE 1 Afl (&
BYEARE
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Certain parameters include:
- Risk free rate: 2.17%
(2022: 2.37%)
- Volatility: 26.71%
(2022: 42.05%)
ET288%5E:
EmERFIE217%
(ZEZZTHE 1 2.37%)
KIE D 26.71%
(ZZITTH 1 42.05%)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value (Continued)

0

Fair value of financial assets (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

MBS HRRNGE @

5. MFERKRER &

ARE #E)

) EZHBEEZAALE(E

BEZRAAEAEZHER

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

AT T BT

As at 1 January BR—B—H 91,875 63,055

Disposal HE - (5,184)
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of FABmZEMEES
financial assets at fair value through NAE CRZL) /12m

profit or loss (Note a) (fiF5Ea) (86,130) 39,907

Exchange difference fER =% (1,958) (5,903)

As at 31 December R+-_B=+—H 3,787 91,875

Note: Bk -

(@)  Total fair value changes of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$86,130,000 (2022:
HK$39,907,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year, which the fair value
loss attributed to Level 3 financial assets amounted to
HK$86,130,000 (2022: fair value gain of HK$39,907,000).

@ MRRERAAESABRZZERE
EZAABEHEEABIE
86,130,0007¢ (CE - —4F . /&
#39,907,0007T) ERAFEZ
FEERRABERAR EAQ
NEBEESERENRE=HR=2
BhE E A& 78 1£86,130,0007T (Z
EZZF I AABHREEE

39,907,0007T) °
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172

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as recognised at the end of the reporting period are

MBS HRRNGE @

5. MFERKRER =

RENBNZEMEERAAHRE

FEERGEHRIZEMEERE
BEREERZUTERNE D -MTH

categorised as follows. See Note 3 for explanations about DEHHBHEZ X ERBAU2EMN
how the classification of financial instruments affects their 5$30
subsequent measurement.
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
AEBTT BT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABRLZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 3,787 91,875
Financial assets measured BEIEM A EZ
at amortised cost: STHMEE !
Rental deposits HE®E 5,788 5,668
Trade and other receivables R U BR R R EL A
FEW R IE 186,403 166,623
Finance lease receivables RETEEEW 4,616,841 3,951,900
Pledged bank deposit BIRHIRITER 7,197 24,956
Cash and bank balances RERIRTTAER 781,715 999,250
5,601,731 5,240,272
Financial liabilities ERMAaRE
Financial liabilities measured at HEE AT EZ
amortised cost: THMEE
Convertible notes EEE 156,251 143,833
Lease liabilities HEa® 1,052,346 1,062,634
Trade and other payables & BR AR E A
ANEQE] 245,551 215,913
Borrowings EEN 5,718,494 5,090,841
7,172,642 6,513,221

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contived) & & MBI EMsE @)

6. REVENUE 6. WA

Revenue represents the gross amounts received and receivable WATHIEFNBHARBIRER - RAEIF
for revenue arising on big data business, civil explosives REBCBIEER WELERANERE
business, hotel business, property investments and wellness BEEV AEERIINAREFRHESR
elderly care business, goods sold and services rendered by the AR AR5 00 PR IR B R 0 LUK 78
Group to outside customers less return and allowances and W ABBEMRMEE 2 SRR EIR Z U
gross rental income, interest income generated from financial ABZE -HREEEFREE ZFBWRA
leasing and consultancy fee income received from outsiders K Ao RN B AR TS B 2 WA o

during the year.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised FREERATEINZSBEEER
during the year is as follows: NEZEWT :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT
(Restated)
(&B7))
Continuing operations FERE X
Revenue from contracts with RE—RERBEREHN
customers recognised at a ZURATERD

point in time:
Construction of platform and operating ABBEEXRBRETLAKRE

income from big data business FEAL N 16,440 2,034
Consultancy service income from MEHEEEHRBULA
financial leasing 87,023 101,305
Income on explosives engineering from EREERERBRE TR
civil explosives business WA 61,430 15,418
Logistics income from civil explosives ERBIEREBERIA
business 9,352 9,552
Operating income from wellness elderly AEEEEEFEENRA
care business (Note i) (%) 70,954 56,229
Other income from hotel business BIEEMMERUWA 2,361 2,130
Sales of emulsion explosives THE A b VEEE 194,968 170,168
Sales of properties held for sales HEFEMERA - 4,180
442,528 361,016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6.

174

MBS HRRNGE @

REVENUE (continued) 6. WA
2023 2022
—E=F —_E-
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT 7T
(Restated)
€]
Revenue from contracts with RE—FERKEEREHN
customers recognised over time: ZUR A TERD
Service income from hotel business BEEEWA 6,268 2,804
Service income from wellness elderly care KEEEEZZEBFRIEWA
business (Note i) (B i) 86,487 66,229
Technical service income from big data REIEZEBE MRS A
business 4,541 11,014
97,296 80,047
Revenue from other sources: HRARE :
Rental income from hotel property BIE & WA 6,369 4,796
Rental income from investment properties 8B ¥ REEMETAS
and properties held for sale WA 9,617 10,292
Interest income from financial leasing REREAENFEUHA 265,613 229,180
281,599 044,268
821,423 685,331
Notes: MIEE -
It includes medical care service income, operating income from () HPhaEBEERFWRA - BEERBF
elderly care services platform and others. AEEWRAMEM-

ii. It includes management service income, nursing care service
income and service income from elderly care services platform.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION SEEE

»EEBRR AEERFE D /NEL
EEBOHB-RBEES RREIF®

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised

into six operating divisions — big data business, civil
explosives business, financial leasing, hotel business, property
investments and wellness elderly care business. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary
segment information.

Principal activities are as follows: FEEHNOT .
Big data business — industrial internet platform REBERE — TEREETS
construction, smart city B B2
construction and big data MR R A
operation and management BEZSEIE
Civil explosives — manufacture and sale of emulsion EREER - FLAEYEEEE EA
business explosives and explosive T HE RIEH T
engineering =2
Financial leasing — provision of finance lease consulting MEMRAE — RAERERE
services and financing services in MHEE AR
the PRC KBRS
Hotel business - hotel ownership and management BIEER — BIEHEE B
and leasing of hotel property BRHEAE
ES
Property investments - holding investment properties MERE — HBEREME
Wellness elderly care — comprehensive elderly care services KEREE — BEGRAR
business T
For the property investments, the management reviews the MMEREMs  AEEEEEERE
financial information of each property investment, hence each EREMENTHERN WEBEREY

property investment constitutes a separate operating segment.
However, the property investments possess similar economic
characteristics, and are with similar development and selling
activities as well as similar customer bases. Therefore, all
property investments are aggregated into one reportable
segment for segment reporting purposes.

Industrial parks and property development business is
classified as a discontinued operation during the year. The
segment information reported below does not include any
amount for this discontinued operation, which is described in
more details in Note 11.

B -MEMAE

VBIEEB MERE

MARREEXG -AEBBUILESES

BREEZRAEEDMER -

ERBRBILEE DT AT REW*
BERBELNEERE BERKIHER

BRCO BERERIFESE - EIL
REVEARES —ERS DI

DEE2MZA -

g
LU

EXERMELZREZREFANED

BEBRIEEE
ERTTLIERILEE
HEFBEEIEIN W -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

7.

176

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information about these continuing operations
presented below:

Segment Revenue

SFABIRRINEE &

DEER @

EMZEREFBEEZEB 2N
BEREZ5WTF

Segment result

DEBURA DEEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EZ= BT F ZEZ= g =S
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BAETT BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (E5)
Big data business REIEER 20,981 13,048 1,092 7,751
Civil explosives business RERRIERER 265,750 195,138 38,744 11,882
Financial leasing MELE 352,636 330,485 118,311 127,447
Hotel business FIEEH 14,9908 9,730 (1,734) (7,507)
Property investments MERE 9,617 14,472 (1,557) (695)
Wellness elderly care business AEEBEEER 157,441 122,458 (10,854) (14,631)
Total 4t 821,423 685,331 144,002 124,247
Bank interest income RITFEUA 7,822 8,213
(Decrease)/increase in fair value SAABGZEMEBEEY
of financial assets at fair value ARE CRL) /180
through profit or loss (86,130) 39,907
Finance costs (excluding interest MHTH FEERE
on lease liabilities) BEZAE) (65,729) (52,480)
Net central administration cost PR TERL AR 5 (27,154) (36,212)
Net exchange loss FERIBLFEE (2,458) (6,296)
Professional fee HEER (8,003) (4,799)
Share of profit of an associate FELEE QB RBA 51,400 4,727
Profit before taxation FRA% Al 2 A 13,750 77,307
Income tax expense F8mmEZ (37,001) (37,253)
(Loss)/profit for the year from BEREZAEE
continuing operations (B518) /&BH (23,251) 40,054

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There was no intersegment
sale in the current year (2022: Nil).

Segment result represents the profit generated by each
segment without allocation of bank interest income, (decrease)/
increase in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, finance costs (excluding interest on lease
liabilities), net central administration cost, net exchange loss,
professional fee and share of profit of an associate. This is the
measure reported to the Group’s management for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.

Note: Certain reclassification have been made to the prior year to
conform with the presentation of the segment result for the
current year.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SFABIRRINEE &

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEBEE &
Segment assets and liabilities DEEERERE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT 7T
(Restated)
(%)
Segment assets DPHEE
Continuing operations FHRBRREZE
Big data business REBEER 29,813 25,577
Civil explosives business RARIERER 408,567 417,423
Financial leasing MERE 4,688,050 4,002,208
Hotel business S TS 102,351 118,965
Property investments MERE 280,980 285,596
Wellness elderly care business KEBEEER 284,124 113,435
Total segment assets MoIEE 5,793,885 4,963,204
Pledged bank deposits BIRFIRITER 7,197 24,956
Cash and bank balances & KMIR1T4EER 592,181 753,903
Interests in associates REE AT 2w 519,077 517,219
Financial assets at fair value BAREFAB®m S
through profit or loss THMEE 3,787 91,875
Unallocated assets KXOBEEE 66,773 69,113
6,982,900 6,420,270
Assets relating to discontinued operations B IS EE I BE 2,772,809 2,649,315
Consolidated assets EEEE 9,755,709 9,069,585
Segment Liabilities DEEE
Continuing operations FRERE XK
Big data business REURET 14,713 10,285
Civil explosives business ERABIFRES 121,101 128,282
Financial leasing MERE 3,887,563 3,367,952
Hotel business EE TS 3,617 2,097
Property investments MERE 225,637 84,348
Wellness elderly care business RKEEEEZER 267,822 110,682
Total segment liabilities moIadE 4,520,453 3,703,646
Convertible notes AR EE 156,251 143,833
Borrowings & 1,095,844 969,060
Unallocated liabilities XPEEBE 56,303 55,771
5,828,851 4,872,310
Liabilities relating to discontinued BARIEREEE
operations aE 1,807,561 2,104,490
Consolidated liabilities mEAaf 7,636,412 6,976,800
HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B3 2 45 B 24 ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continvea) &7 &M BRI EE &

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEEM =
Other segment information HihazpEs ikl
2023 —E-=
Continuing operations FHEIRE 2%
Wellness
Civil elderly
Big data explosives Financial Hotel Property care
business business leasing business  investment business Total
RRBER KRR
AUBEEH £% HMEHE BEEH NERE BEEH st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTT EBTR ARTR ARTR ARTT ARTT ARTT

Amortisation of intangible assets BT BE&H 447 - - - - - 447
Depreciation of property plant and M1 \BR RRETE

equipment 1,170 15,576 977 6,972 2,694 5,707 33,096
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FEHEENE - 378 - - - 1,208 1,586
Additions to property, plant and L BERRERE

equipment 46 4,51 50 39 3,229 113,356 121,291

Additions to property, plant and KE-EHEL
equipment upon acquisition of MERE R f%m

a subsidiary 21 - - - - - 21
Loss on disposal of property, HENE - BER
plant and equipment REZBE - 1,619 - 90 - - 1,709
Allowance for expected credit losses BIER BRI
on finance lease receivables BHEEHREE - - 49,617 - - - 49,617
2022 (Restated) T2 F (EY)
Continuing operations SERE X
Wellness
Civil elderly
Big data explosives Financial Hotel Property care
business business leasing business investment business Total
RAEBER AR
REBEE £% MERE BEER WERE BEEE st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BETR BETR AR

Depreciation of property plantand )% \BERZBETE

equipment 1,382 17,117 834 9,289 2,502 2,854 33,978
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EREBENTE - 67 - - - - 67
Additions to property, plant and NE BEREZERE

equipment 36 9,813 1,113 13 77 80,896 92,648
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HENE BRERZEZ B

and equipment - 2,437 - 37 646 - 3,120
Allowance for expected credit losses BiEREREUFZ

on finance lease receivables BHEEEEEE - - 35,669 - - - 35,669
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segments

The Group’s big data business, civil explosives business,
financial leasing, hotel business and wellness elderly care
business are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), other than Hong Kong.

MBS HRRNGE @

DEER =

CEHE S EBER
AEETAUBLE RABEDY
BORMERE EEXBTAREEE
I hEARLNE (hE) &
BIEE o

MERBEHIUR T KRES -

Property investments are located in both the PRC and Hong
Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of
operation and information about its non-current assets by
location of assets are detailed below:

AEBERBIIBER ZR@IIBEEN
BRI D RHFAHEEREENEE
DZER FHMT

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets*

SR P ZHE W E FEREEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EZ=HF “ETCHF ZEZ=HF g ;S
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T BT BB
(Restated) (Restated)
(871 (B71)
The PRC s 821,373 684,813 779,327 719,073
Hong Kong 58 50 518 18,503 18,504
821,423 685,331 797,830 737,577

Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued
operations, deductible value added tax, deferred tax assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, finance lease
receivables, goodwill, intangible assets, interests in an associate,
rental deposits, right-of-use assets and other unallocated non-
current assets.

Information about major customers

During the year, HK$192,595,000 out of the Group’s revenues
from continuing operations of HK$821,423,000 arising from
civil explosives business were contributed by a customer. And
the customer accounted for approximately 23% of Group’s
total revenue arising from continuing operations. There were no
other customers who contributed more than 5% of the Group’s
total revenue.

* FERBEEASERERLEEE X
BERNEE FIRNEER BT
MEBEBEE -BARBSABmZ /M
EE - MEBERBR -BE -BTE
E-BERRZzEDm HERE ER
REEREMADEIFABEE -

TERFREH

RER > REEERS821,423,0007T
REFEBREEBNEIEXHEIK
AFBERRERBIEREBNEL
192,595,000t WA KRB EE — U FE
FrMREZEFEENKRAMGAER
TEEBAL2I% T REHMELE
EENAEEEEE 5%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

8. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income included the following items:

8. HfthiEEIA

MBS HRRNGE @

HitnEZ W ABENTES !

2023 2022
—E=8F -
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(&7))
Continuing operations FERE X
Bank interest income SRITH B WA 7,822 8,213
Compensation and government subsidies B U #8518 & BT # Eh
received
- Direct government grant — B EEER 5,684 18,887
— Recognition of deferred income —RIREW R R 977 8,958
Dividend income from financial assets at A AEFF ABH Z 27
fair value through profit or loss BEEZREWA 710 580
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HEZAAETAEBEZ
value through profit or loss STHMEEZ WG - 3,714
Income from early repayment on KEMEHEREEEZ
finance leases g 4,371 3,336
Income from lending of emulsion matrix REBHEILBEERTE
and industrial detonation cords BIRRERENKA
production capacity 4,741 5,499
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MFHBXH
2023 2022
—EC=F ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations FBREZER
Handling fee FEE 1,317 -
Interest on (Note): TEEBEZHE (i) !
- Bank loans —iR1TE®R 38,826 27,851
— Convertible notes — AR R 15,743 14,614
— Lease liabilities —HE&aE 109 4
- Loan from immediate holding company —EIZFIZER AT ZE®R 4,603 4,603
— Loan from a non-controlling interest —FERED ZE™M 1,315 1,382
— Other loans —HthEam 3,925 4,130
64,521 52,484
65,838 52,484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10.

O M BImRRNEE @

FINANCE COSTS (Continued) 9. MHBXZH @
Note: Bk -
Interest expenses under finance costs is arrived at after deducting FHRTEBEBTHNANESE T EERNRER
capitalised interest of approximately HK$1,533,000 (2022 (Restated): 2R B HA B 230,225,000 (ZF
approximately HK$1,125,000) and cost of borrowings from financial T & (FF) : £9781£204,212,0007T) £&£40
leasing included in costs of sales and services of approximately PREAREH B 4B 11,533,000t (ZE
HK$164,171,000 (2022 (Restated): approximately HK$150,603,000) F (F7))  498181,125,0007T) Kt AHE
from total interest expenses recognised in the year of approximately REREMAZKEMERE NG RLEL
HK$230,225,000 (2022 (Restated): approximately HK$204,212,000). BH164,171,00070 (ZE - —F (FY) ' &9
7 15150,603,0007T) BTG H o
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FAIIEHRAX
2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
(Restated)
(E75))
Continuing operations FERE X
Tax charges comprise: RIBMAZ B
Current tax: RERIF
Provision for PRC Enterprises R 2 PSR B
Income Tax (48,256) (46,901)
(Under)/over provision in previous year: BEEE EERR B
RERE
PRC Enterprises Income Tax FRE PSR (1,017) 692
Deferred tax (Note 31): FIEFIE (FYEE31)
Temporary differences arising REZHREER
in current year 12,272 8,956
(37,001) (37,253)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year, except for the first HK$2,000,000 of a qualified entity’s
assessable profit which is calculated at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%),
in accordance with the new two-tiered tax rate regime with
effect from the year of assessment 2018/2019.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 3% ¥ B A B 24 v)

REEMBFERREFNEEFER
i E16.5% (ZET°F 1 16.5%) &
BOEREZZS— N\ ZE-NRREF
ERRBENNTSRMAT > &%
F A E A #2,000,0007T FE R 47 i
1%8.25% (ZZ2 T4 : 8.25%) M X5t
HERIho

HRAEEHE_ZT_=F+2_A
S+ —HLEFETEREEAEBERR
mA A E R AR E BN SR ER
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181

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at
25% (2022: 25%) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

BB HAREE

10. FRrEIREAX @)

%Zj:_v:_fﬁ—i—_ﬁ:—i——Eﬂ:fE

ERPEBMERRT%25%

_7

TTF 1 25%) ZIREREMPEEERR

B

R G ED

s REMEERTDE FR

MIAST HP] B A A AR > WHEHMWMT

2023 2022
—_E_=F =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
(Restated)
E=270)
Profit before taxation BRAR AT B F) 13,750 77,307
Tax at the rates applicable to profitin the IRBEMBERMEFBEES
countries concerned MEAEZRIE (3,369) (18,033)
Tax effect of share of profit of an associate FELEIE AT &I
MBETE 8,164 1,003
Tax effect of non deductible expenses ENCIE A h (37,683) (19,877)
Tax effect of non taxable revenue JEEZFRUBA R E 1,051 10,089
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised FERMBEEE
WMBEEE (10,288) (13,598)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to PRC ~ EFHEWBAT 2
subsidiaries MEER 6,141 2,471
(Under)/over-provision of previous year BEEEZ BELRR S
BERR (1,017) 692
Tax effect for the year rFEEZMRBLE (37,001) (37,253)
11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND 1. BALERE 2 EB RFET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED HHEEEKRER
AS HELD FOR SALE
Profit for the year from discontinued operations BRIEEEZEH ZEFERF
2023 2022
—E-= =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT 7T
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) for the year from: KEEEF (FF#8)
Industrial parks and property development EXERVIEZREER
business (Note) (B3 5E) 179,187 2,773
T-BOX® business T-BOX®%ETS - (3)
Profit for the year from discontinued ERIEKRE 2 EE
operations REERF 179,187 2,770
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED
AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Note:

On 6 December 2023, CIH Finance Investments Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”) and Guangdong
Nanhai Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (EEmEZEKREBERLET), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability and the controlling
shareholder of the Company (the “Purchaser”) entered into the disposal
agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell,
and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire, 72% equity interest
in Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd. (“Sino Rock”)
at a consideration of RMB972,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,063,000,000).

The disposal of 72% equity interest in Sino Rock is expected to be
completed within a year from the reporting date. Upon completion,
Sino Rock and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Sino Rock Group”) will
cease to be subsidiaries of the Company and the financial results of
the Sino Rock Group will no longer be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group. Accordingly, the Group will cease to engage
in the business of the Sino Rock Group, representing the entirety of
the Group’s industrial parks and property development business upon
completion.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s industrial parks
and property development business was classified as a discontinued
operation and the assets and liabilities attributable to the industrial
parks and property development business were classified as assets
and liabilities held for sale, and were presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The financial results of the Group’s industrial parks and property
development business, which is a discontinued operation included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2023 are set out below.

The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash
flows have been restated to present the Group’s industrial parks and
property development business as a discontinued operation.

For identification purpose only

RO MBrRRIE

1. BRILEE 2 EZHRIHEA

HEEEEREGEHE®

i}

Ef%

R_ZE_=—F+"AAHE HEHEXERH
BREZERABRAS (—EREB MR
BIRAT AEATANZEWBAR) (&
F)) BERMESERERRRAR (—ER
FERIZINARAT BEATHIERKRER)
TE5)) T RERSE  KRIL BHBERNY
FAERHE MEFERGRRBEBERYS
ZRERBRAE (HEHRR) 72%5KH#
REBEA ARII72,000,0007T (FHERLHE
#1,063,000,0007T) ©

REPERRT72%REMN I Z BRI R
STHR—FATEM - HETRE  PEHRF
REMBAR (MBTHERRER)) KT
BRERBANMEBAR HEREENM
BEBRIBRAEENYHFRERES
oA THWEE  AEERIBRSE
FERMEENES AEENEREESR
ERMEERES

BHE_Z_=—F+"A=Z+—HILEEE XK
ERNEXERYEZRERDEAER
IEREXE URGEBREXBERNELE
(¥BNEENSGEEPEARFAIHEE
HBERBBEINGHPBERIREBIIR

rEEBEGERNEE_SE _=ZF+_H4
=+ —HEFENGcEaREMEEK
mERMURGFERERER BREK LS
(¥BNEXRERMESREBR VB XA
FUE T o

FEeEmkEMEERaRUARGERE
MEBRPNLERHEFEEY IREEERN
EXERMELEREBFENZ27IH/ERLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED

AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

SFABIRRINEE &

1. B LERE 2 B RIF(ET
HHEBEEREGRE @

Note: (Continued) MzE . (&)
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
(Restated)
(&B5)
Revenue A 95,710 82,301
Cost of sales and services HE KRR A (60,021) (48,411)
Gross profit EFH 35,689 33,890
Other operating income HfhE WA 82,671 97,812
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHFE 412) (860)
Administrative expenses THRAX (42,258) (44,033)
Increase/(decrease) in fair value of SEMEZ NAEE
investment properties #an, Gelzb) 209,562 (711)
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME-BERRKRHZ
equipment EAIEE=ES (31,158) -
Finance costs (Remark) M ZH () (73,541) (78,963)
Profit before taxation FRIR AT &R F] 180,553 7,135
Income tax expense FTi8MAYx (1,366) (4,362)
Profit for the year for industrial parks and EXxERMEERER
property development business KEERF 179,187 2,773
Profit/(loss) for the year for industrial parks EXERYMEREERZ
and property development business TEERF (BB &8 -
attributable to:
Owners of Company KABHEB A 122,566 (7,893)
Non-controlling interests JEIERE 56,621 10,666
179,187 2,773
Remark: HEE

Interest expenses under finance costs is arrived at after deducting
capitalised interest of approximately HK$12,634,000 (2022:

MBEXHETHREZHHFNERZ
MR B B4 B1682,226,0007T (ZE 22

approximately HK$13,328,000) from total interest expenses recognised
in the year of approximately HK$82,226,000 (2022: approximately
HK$88,941,000).

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED
AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Note: (Continued)

Profit for the year from industrial parks and property development

RO MBrRRIE

11. BERIERE 2 EBRIFEA
L¢H=.§J§7S’Zﬁ1§0§)

MizE (43

EXERMELEREHB ZAFERNE

business has been arrived at after crediting/(charging): A GARR) -
2023 2022
—EI=F - ——
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Auditor’s remuneration TZ 20 Em BN & - -
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade  fEWRERR Z FEHAE BB R HE
receivables (1,690) -
Depreciation of properties, plants and equipment ¥)% B KRR HiTE (8,198) (8,557)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREBEINE (30,579) (32,145)
Effective interest income from rental deposits REREREZERMERA 277 278
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value HEZARDE AT
through profit or loss ETREEZ NG - 208
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEYME - BERKRHZ
and equipment 5187358 (3) -
Net exchange gain PE R UL R 2B 948 1
Operating lease charges RERERS (36) 9)
Cost of inventories recognised as expense MRARLZZEER K (5,457) (4,394)
Staff costs 48 TR A (7,836) (7,644)
Gross rental income from investment properties 12 &Y% 2 BFH S UL A 65,271 63,766
Less: W
Direct operating expenses from FRNEHRSWAZEKRENES
investment properties that generated HELERY
rental income during the year (934) (694)
Direct operating expenses from FREHESWAZEREYEZ
investment properties that did not HEKEME
generate rental income during the year (130) (138)
64,207 62,934

Cash flows from industrial parks and property development

business

EXERMEEREBNRERN

2023 2022
—ECC=F =2

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT T

(Restated)

(E%1))

Net cash inflows from operating activities KREEFHZIRERAFEE 30,809 341,661

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from RETHZRERAS

investing activities () %58 179,418 (611,992)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from METHZRS CRd) FHA

financing activities FEE (260,233) 294,388

Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be Crd) S mAFEE (50,006) 24,057
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11.

186

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED
AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Note: (Continued)

Considering that the fair value of the assets and liabilities attributable
to the Group’s industrial parks and property development business
less costs to sell as at 31 December 2023 assessed by the Directors
of the Company were higher than its carrying amount, the assets and
liabilities classified as held for sale were measured at their carrying
amounts. At 31 December 2023, the assets and liabilities classified as
held for sale comprised the following assets and liabilities after inter-

company eliminations:

SFABIRRINEE &

1. BRILEE 2 EZHRIHEA

HEEEEREGEHE®

MisE (48

ERINRZF=F+ZR=+—H0 %2
BERTENAEREXERMERRE
BRLEEREENAABRLERETS
REREE FEIHEENEERSER
HIFEEBEAE R 2 =F+"A=+—
B HEIHEENEEREBESEUTE
NEINEIEEENEERER :
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2023
—g—=

Notes HK$’000
B 5 BT

Assets classified as held for sale FIEaHUEEE
Investment properties LB 17 1,406,887
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERKRFZE 285,010
Rental deposits HERE 5,788
Right-of-use assets FREESE 23 850,234
Inventories EFa 852
Trade and other receivables JRE U BR Tk R LA FE WS =R 1B 34,504
Cash and bank balances BE KMIRTTAERR 189,534
2,772,809

Liabilities classified as held for sale FHERItHE B E
Trade and other payables & 1 BR 30 e EL At & 1 7R 1B 34,340
Tax payables FEMNIR & 1,293
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 1,047,323
Borrowings &R 564,585
Deferred income I SIE U 7 34 160,020
1,807,561



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contived) & & MBI EMsE @)

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. ZEERF
2023 2022
—E2-= -2
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(&B7))
Continuing operations FERE X
Profit for the year has been arrived at after XEERBFIEst A
crediting/(charging): (#0BR) -
Auditor’s remuneration Z BN &
Audit service EEHIRT (1,900) (1,900)
Non-audit service JEEF RS (1,205) (100)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEE (447) -
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -BEMRREBEITE
equipment (35,589) (36,479)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERAREENE (1,586) (67)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE -BELEEZ
equipment E518 %48 (1,711) (3,098)
Net exchange loss fE R IR R EE (2,458) (6,296)
Operating lease charges KEHERS (1,597) (988)
Allowance for expected credit losses on FEWBER 2 TEHRE B8
trade receivables e (536) (276)
Cost of inventories recognised as expense MR ABEY 2 FE A (247,472) (218,504)
Cost of properties held for sale recognised MR ARY ZHE
as expense EI TN - (4,600)
Total staff costs “E TR
Directors’ remuneration (Note 13) ZEEME (I5E13) (5,050) (9,246)
Other staff costs HME T A (175,056) (175,557)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  Hth& T Z BKEF] 5+
for other staffs ElRE (17,692) (11,055)
Termination benefits #BIEEHER (17) (31)
(197,815) (195,889)
Gross rental income from investment KREWMEZBHETWA
properties 9,617 10,292
Less: A
Direct operating expenses from FREBHEWAZKE
investment properties that generated MEZBEKZESHE
rental income during the year (292) (318)
Direct operating expenses from FREHREWAZKRE
investment properties that did not MEZBERKERE
generate rental income during the year (1,582) (2,012)
7,743 7,962
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contived) & & MBI EMsE @)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

13. EEREIM=

EEME

a. Directors’ emoluments a.

[SENE I a2 G —
TR EFEAZBMENT

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven
(2022: ten) Directors were as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fees e BT BT T
Executive directors WiTES
Mr. He Xiangming GIEEEE S - -
Mr. Fu Weigiang FFEREY: - -
Mr. You Guang Wu BERTE - -
Mr. Huang Zhihe mEMEE (K22 =
(Resigned on 1 April 2023) mAB—H &) - -
Ms. Wang Xin T Mzt MRZE=E—=
(Resigned on 1 April 2023) A —B&EE) - -
Mr. Cheng Weidong BERitE (RZEZ=
(Resigned on 1 April 2023) MEB —H &) - -
Non-executive directors JERITES
Mr. Shi Xuguang SPBAGEE (KT =
(Appointed on 28 June 2023) ANAZ+HN\BEZD - -
Independent non-executive BIEMITES
directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai PR 2 5 120 120
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BREERSE (W2
(Resigned on 23 June 2022) NAZ+H=HEE - 60
Mr. Deng Hong Ping WRFEEE (RZEZ=
(Resigned on 28 June 2023) A~AZ+NBH&ED 60 120
Mr. Lin Junxian MEELZtT (WZEZ=F
(Appointed on 28 June 2023) NAZ+N\BEZD 61 -
Mr. Peng Xinyu ZHARE (W2
(Appointed on 23 June 2022) NAZTH=RHEZD 120 63
361 363
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continvea) &7 &M BRI &

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

13. EERETIME =

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) EEME &
2023 2022
—E—-= —_E-
HK$’000 HK$’000
Salaries and other benefits Fr & R HMEF BT T BT
Executive directors WiTES
Mr. He Xiangming GIEEEE S 400 600
Mr. Fu Weigiang fFEREY: 400 600
Mr. You Guang Wu BEERTE 400 600
Mr. Huang Zhihe mEMEE (R
(Resigned on 1 April 2023) MmA—H&E) 75 420
Ms. Wang Xin F Mzt (RIEZ=
(Resigned on 1 April 2023) mA— B &) 75 420
Mr. Cheng Weidong BERAE (RZ2Z=
(Resigned on 1 April 2023) mB—HEE) 75 420
Non-executive directors EHITES
Mr. Shi Xuguang FeHEE (RZIEZ=
(Appointed on 28 June 2023) ANAZ+HN\BEZMD - -
Independent non-executive BIFRITES
directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai ok R 28 5 — -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BREEREE (RZE
(Resigned on 23 June 2022) NAZ+H=HED - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping HrFid (2=
(Resigned on 28 June 2023) ~AZ+NH ﬁ%&) = -
Mr. Lin Junxian MEEZT (WZEZ=F
(Appointed on 28 June 2023) NAZ+HN\BEZMD - -
Mr. Peng Xinyu ZHAaRE (M2
(Appointed on 23 June 2022) ANAZ+=HEZMT) - -
1,425 3,060
HING YIP TIOLDINGS LIMITED B3 P4 B 24 7l B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

13. EERETIME =

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) E5iE (@)
2023 2022
—E—-= —_E-

Performance-based or ¥BRAWH HK$’000 HK$’000
discretionary bonus IS Mz TE4T s T o S T
Executive directors WiTES
Mr. He Xiangming GIEEEE S 715 936
Mr. Fu Weigiang fFEREY: 715 936
Mr. You Guang Wu BEERTE 715 936
Mr. Huang Zhihe mEMEE (R

(Resigned on 1 April 2023) MmA—H&E) 134 655
Ms. Wang Xin T &zt RZZZ=

(Resigned on 1 April 2023) mA—HB&T) 134 655
Mr. Cheng Weidong BERitE (RZEZ=

(Resigned on 1 April 2023) mB—HEE) 134 655
Non-executive directors EHITES
Mr. Shi Xuguang FEHEE (RZIEZ=

(Appointed on 28 June 2023) ANAZ+N\BEZMD - -
Independent non-executive BIFRITES

directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai Bk R 28 5 — -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng FEMSTE (W22

(Resigned on 23 June 2022) ANAZ+=H&M - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping HrFid (2=

(Resigned on 28 June 2023) ~AZ+N\H ﬁ%&) = -
Mr. Lin Junxian MEELZ+T (WZEZ=F

(Appointed on 28 June 2023) NAZ+HN\BEZMD - -
Mr. Peng Xinyu = vic sl 0

(Appointed on 23 June 2022) ANAZ+=HEZMD) - -

2,547 4,773
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continvea) &7 &M BRI &

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

13. EERETIME =

a. Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a. EZEME @)
2023 2022
—E—-= —_E-
Retirement benefits scheme HK$’000 HK$’000
contribution BRAEF 5B R BT T s T
Executive directors WiTES
Mr. He Xiangming GIEEEE S 201 197
Mr. Fu Weigiang fFEREY: 201 185
Mr. You Guang Wu BEERTE 201 197
Mr. Huang Zhihe mEMEE (R
(Resigned on 1 April 2023) MmA—H&E) 38 160
Ms. Wang Xin T MRzt RZZZ=
(Resigned on 1 April 2023) mA— B &) 38 160
Mr. Cheng Weidong BERitE (RZEZ=
(Resigned on 1 April 2023) mB—HEE) 38 151
Non-executive directors EHITES
Mr. Shi Xuguang FeHEE (RZIEZ=
(Appointed on 28 June 2023) ANAZ+HN\BEZMD - -
Independent non-executive BIFRITES
directors
Mr. Chan Kwok Wai ok R 28 5 — -
Mr. Chen Da Cheng BREEREE (RZE
(Resigned on 23 June 2022) ANAZ+=H&M - -
Mr. Deng Hong Ping HrFid (2=
(Resigned on 28 June 2023) ~AZ+NH ﬁ%&) = -
Mr. Lin Junxian MEEZT (WZEZ=F
(Appointed on 28 June 2023) NAZ+HN\BEZMD - -
Mr. Peng Xinyu ZHAaRE (M2
(Appointed on 23 June 2022) ANAZ+=HEZMT) - -
717 1,050
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

192

EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include their
services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group. No Directors waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year ended 2023 (All
of the executive directors waived their directors fee of
HK$720,000 for 2022). Save as disclosed above, no
other emoluments were paid or payable to any director.

During the year ended 2023 and 2022, no emolument
had been paid by the Group to the Directors or the five
highest-paid individuals referred to in (d) below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ material interests, transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance
to which the Group as a party and in which a director
of the Group had material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors

No loan, quasi-loan and other dealing in favour of
directors of the Group or body corporate controlled by
such directors, or entities connected with such directors,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. EERETME =

EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

d. Five highest-paid individual d. LZERSHFMAL

RER AEB=Z2HI_F
T ETE+ AT+ HILEEER
SHMATTAES HilSR®
MisE13am Mo BR T ES 290 —
LETIHEMARSHMAL &
LEREHMALTHEOT

During the year, the three individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 are directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 13a. Other
than the directors, two employees are included in the

highest-paid individuals. The five highest-paid individual
emoluments are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT 5T

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 5,304 8,196
Retirement benefits scheme BROKERIFTEER

contributions 741 1,049

6,045 9,245

The number of the highest paid employees who are not

HMNFAUATHEENIFESTHNRSH

the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell MEEABWT :
within the following bands is as follows:
2023 2022
=F== =
No. of No. of
employees employees
BT A BTA#
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 711,000,001 T2
7 1&1,500,0007T 2 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14.

194

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme which is available to Hong Kong permanent employees
under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance. This
retirement scheme is administered by independent trustees
with their assets held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions under the staff retirement scheme for each
year are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.
The total contribution to the scheme amounted to HK$126,610
(2022: HK$114,689) for the year and has been charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Forfeited employer contributions in
respect of former employees from the staff retirement scheme
before vesting period may be used by the Group to reduce
its ongoing employer contributions. There is no forfeited
contribution utilised during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no balance of
forfeited contributions available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

Since the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has also participated
in an approved MPF Scheme with Bank Consortium Trust
Company Limited effective 1 December 2001 to provide an
MPF Scheme to all employees. The contributions borne by the
Group are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages (monthly
contribution is limited at 5% of HK$30,000 for each eligible
employee) as calculated under the MPF legislation. During
the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the MPF Scheme and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$193,759 (2022: HK$186,065).

Employees who have completed certain years of services with
the Group are entitled to LSP. The Group’s net obligations
in respect of LSP are the amounts of future benefits that
employees have earned in return for their services in the
current and prior years, calculated in accordance with the
applicable laws in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14.

15.

16.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (continuea)

Effective from 1 May 2025, an employer can no longer use
any of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
contributions to MPF scheme to reduce the LSP. For detail,
please refer to Note 2.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
make the required contributions under the schemes.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

() From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share is based on the profit attributable to the owners
of the Company of approximately HK$26,930,000 (2022:
loss of approximately HK$21,535,000) and on the number
of 1,712,329,142 ordinary shares (2022: 1,712,329,142
ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

MBS HRRNGE @

14.

15.

16.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 3% ¥ B A B 24 v)

lEERAEE =

202558 1HE  BEF I B EH
BECHERFMHIAEENREHE
A D REBRBEE EMAR RN
20

TENE AR ZEERSTHABMNEE
BEREERKEF BB E - PE
WMEABEZHE T EMEN—ELLA
AR RER GBI LB BB RIEH - A&
B RINEMNFEHNE -—SERRE
ZPTREBIHRETE o

ERTESREHFE_T _=F
=t+—HLEAARE (T2

sREF (B8

() REFECEEBRORILEE
27

SREAREBERA (BB) b
RIEBEAABDEBEABRGEEAFER
&9 781£26,930,00070 (B - —
F | EB5E4E21,5635,00070) &
KEEBE171,712,329,142E &
B (-4 :1,712,329,142
BiER TE-

195

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

(i) From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

SFABIRRINEE &

16. FRREF (B5i8) @
(i) REBEQST %%

AABDHEAENBEZERELRK
BEBBZFAENDERTIH

following data: ®:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT T BT
(Restated)
E27)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to FEE=RF, (B518) BB
owners of the Company NEVEB A 26,930 (21,535)
Less: W
Profit/(loss) for the year from FRERIEREERS
discontinued operations BF) (5518) BB
RABHEB A 122,566 (7,893)
Loss for the purpose of basic BREEFEREERE
and diluted loss per share from SREAREEREIE
continuing operations (95,636) (13,642)
Number of shares RIPEE
2023 2022
’000 000
T T
Number of ordinary shares for the BERsEEREKRBIE
purpose of basic loss per share ZEREE 1,712,329 1,712,329
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

From continuing operations (Continued)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both the basic and diluted loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
was no dilutive earnings/(loss) per share as the exercise
of the convertible bonds would have an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic earnings/(loss) per share.

From discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
for the discontinued operations is HK7.16 cents (2022
(Restated): loss per share HKO0.46 cents) per share,
based on the profit for the year from discontinued
operations of HK$122,566,000 (2022 (Restated): loss
of HK$7,893,000) and the number of 1,712,329,142
ordinary shares (2022: 1,712,329,142 ordinary shares) in
issue during the year.

MBS HRRNGE @

16. ERREBF (F18) =

(ii)

(iii)

REFEREZER (B

FRERZ N BE EXFREFHEER
BAREEFRERER -

BE_ZT_="FRIZT_Z
+TA=+—HLEFE -UES
R@gEas, (BB EREH
THREIBMREBEREERELR
Rl (B18) EEREELE-

REBRILESER

ERIEKEEESRER #
ERMNASK716EMWL (ZF
“ZHF (EY]) SKEIB0.46
B  HREFAERILER
EEBRTAB122,566,0007T
(ZEZZF () - B&EE
#%7,893,00070) A FE BT
1,712,329,142&8BKR (ZE ==
F11,712,329,142E 5@ /R) st & o

2023 2022
—F_= -
HK cents HK Cents
Al =R
(Restated)
(&B7))
Basic and diluted loss per share from 15#E& = > #5581
continuing operations AR EE 18 (5.59) (0.80)
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per DR ILEE 2 2555518
share from discontinued operations ~ E 7K ##
BH,/ (F8) 7.16 (0.46)
Total basic and diluted earnings/(loss) Z~A T # & iTH AEN
per share attributable to the equity ~ SRABERKEE
holder of the Company &BF (B58) 1.57 (1.26)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17.

198

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

SFABIRRINEE &

17. IR EYE

In the PRC  In Hong Kong

held under held under
medium-term medium-term
leases leases Total
AR EU NEEU
PR ANEE FERFRAFE Ha%E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E5) €2
FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT REMEZARE
PROPERTIES
As at 1 January 2022 wW_E__#—H—H 756,054 18,500 774,554
Transfer from property, plant HYE -BEX
and equipment (Note 18) HEEE (HE18) 361,643 - 361,643
Decrease in fair value recognised in RERRBERZANE
profit or loss D (711) - (711)
Exchange differences fER =L (69,220) - (69,220)
As at 31 December 2022 and W&
1 January 2023 +ZB=+—Hk
—E”_=f—HA—H 1,047,766 18,500 1,066,266
Transfer from property, plant and HYE BEX
equipment (Note 18) S EERE (WEE18) 502,438 - 502,438
Increase/(decrease) in fair value REERBIRZANE
recognised in profit or loss @m, Geib) 209,562 (350) 209,212
Transfer to assets classified as EBEERFEIHHE
held for sale (Note 11) BE (fHsE11) (1,406,887) - (1,406,887)
Exchange differences [ERERE (32,857) - (32,857)
As at 31 December 2023 RZIEZ=H
+-B=+—H 320,022 18,150 338,172

All of the Group’s property interests held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

During the year, the Group added an investment property
through transferred from property, plant and equipment
amounting to HK$502,438,000 (2022: HK$361,643,000) during
the year.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cContinued)

The Group leases out hotel property located in PRC under
operating leases with rentals receivable monthly during the
year. The leases run for an initial period of 15 years. As the
usage changed, the hotel property was revalued using the fair
value model and classified and accounted for as investment
properties at date of transfer by Associated Surveyors &
Auctioneers Ltd., an independent firm of professional valuer.

Investment properties were revalued at their open market value
at 31 December 2023 by Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers
Ltd. The valuation gave rise to a revaluation surplus of
HK$209,212,000 (2022: deficit of HK$711,000), which has
been recognised in profit or loss.

Associated Surveyors & Auctioneers Ltd is a member of
the Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which
conforms to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

As there are relatively few cases of market transactions or
leasing transactions of similar assets in the business district
where the some of commercial unit located in PRC, it is not
appropriate to adopt the market approach or the income
approach in valuing as a whole. The valuation method was
changed to the depreciated replacement cost method.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in the prior year except for the commercial units in PRC. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s investment properties were classified under level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.

The carrying amount of investment properties amounting to
HK$296,357,000 (2022: HK$363,438,000) have been pledged
to secure general banking facilities and mortgage loan granted
to the Group.

wRE BRI RE

17. REME »)

AEERAFRECEHEHHETER
RAEZBEYX S E%BWE -8
AR+ FE - BERNARNE  BEY
FREEOBBEULE X EM RS
BERRABETUAABEXET G LD
BRARIEREYE-

BEYER B -_=F+-_/A=+—
Bt &ERASETEMGESR-
RAFESHRBEFE209,212,0007T
Bt ARG EREX (CEI2E BE
%38 16711,0007T) °

WM EEREETARARD S EEM
EMREEE UHEEABERKAL
HRERt e GERUNEZ LR -F
FREENERERLGEERN RS2 ER
LMERZHERERE

HREDUN R EEEMURERD
BHRLUNEETSRZABERZHE
Pl MABERBHH AR W@ A
HHEHERETGHE -GESENATE
BEEMARE

BRRPEZEEEMN FEEERZM
BARNEAFRARBELY -EHEWEN
ARER BRIERNENRSRRE
R

FEBZREVERDERANESE
BB MR-NEANLBEAEANE
HE=M-

KEYE 7 IREE %A 1296,357,000
7T (ZE T £ : A1363,438,0007T)
BIRRUEREBEFEAER L —RIET
B IR RR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

= 200

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are

RO MBrRRIE

17. IREYE »)

e —

categorised as Level 3 based on the degree to which the 55 —#ke

inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

TERARBEUANERENEZAR
BEHN FREEERERERZEA
B) URRBEAARBHEUEREED
BERARESETHEHRAAESREE

Fair value Valuation Relationship of unobservable
Hierarchy Techniques Significant unobservable inputs  inputs to fair value
RABEER CEVES TERNBR 2 YR BUBRZHBEAARENRRG
Commercial unit Level 3 Direct comparison method Estimated market unit sale price The increase/decrease in the market
located in Hong Kong per square feet unit sale price would result in an
increase/decrease in the fair value of
the property
R EBZBEEEM F=R BE#EEBE G mBEMETARER miBBHEEREN,/HDTER
MEARBEN/HD
Commercial unit Level 3 Depreciated replacement Estimated cost of construction Observed condition or obsolescence
located in PRC cost method/direct per square metre/Estimated market ~ would result in an increase/decrease
comparison method unit sales price per square metre in the fair value of the property/The
increase/decrease in the market
unit sale price would result in an
increase/decrease in the fair value of
the property
R AREZ BB B=R WEEBEMAL/ EEEEHRBERE /BT BEMEGHRAIECRATERNE
BRELEE BUBTHREE ARBEM/ AL/ THBEMHEE
BRI,/ RO ERNENAE
B,/ wl
Industrial units Level 3 Income capitalisation Estimated market unit rent The increase/decrease in the market
located in PRC method per square metre unit rent would result in an increase/
decrease in the fair value of the
property
IR REz THE( E=R WABEREZ EEt R EAST A KHEE mBBMAREEN /AL ERE
AREEM/ D
Hotel property in PRC Level 3 Direct comparison method Estimated market unit sale price The increase/decrease in the market
per square metre unit sale price would result in an
increase/decrease in the fair value of
the property
RPREZBEYE B=R EEEBE EEHEEMNETHREE B BAHEERIEN,/HDTER
MERQAMEEM D
HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED 52 3% ¢ A BR A )
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4E#



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continvea) &7 &M BRI &

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ME -BER=E
2023 ===
Furniture,
Land and equipment
Hotel buildings and
property inHKand  Construction leasehold Plant and Motor

in the PRC the PRC in progress  improvements machinery vehicles Total

REER R
ReEREZ HEREZ RER BER
BENE THRIET ERIE BFRE W& HE wem
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERTR ARTT ARTT ERTR ERTR AR AR

COST AND VALUATION F§ &R {h{E

At 1 January 2023 RIBZZF
—B—H 100,000 488,276 548,149 94,930 63,896 10,956 1,306,207
Additions RE - - 193,250 39,887 - 1,791 234,928
Addition upon acquisition I EE— i B
of a subsidiary NEBZRE
(Note 36) (Ft:£36) - - - 21 - - 21
Transfers/Reclassification &% /B4 - 5,841 (7,955) 1,808 306 - -
Transfer to investment ~ EEZRENE
oroperty (Note 17) (#z17) (88,202) - (402,438) (9,564) (16,367) - (516,571)
Disposals and write off /& R ifiek - (252) - (1,622) (2,854) (103) (4,831)
Impairment loss AERK - (31,158) - - - - (31,158)
Deficit on revaluation EfhEE (11,880) - - - - - (11,880)
Transfer to assets BREEREIR]
classified as held for HEZE
sale - (124,006) (168,141) (6,226) (7,657) 211) (306,241)
Exchange difference ERES 82 (11,086) (13,641) (2,736) (1,759) (299) (29,439)
At31 December 2023 RZZZ=F
+-B=1+-H - 327,615 149,224 116,498 35,565 12,134 641,036
Comprising: 25
At cost [N - 327,615 149,224 116,498 35,565 12,134 641,036
At valuation - 2023 fhifE
B =F - - - - - - -
- 327,615 149,224 116,498 35,565 12,134 641,036
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2023 RIBZ=ZE
—B—H - 47,646 - 48,044 17,194 4,866 117,750
Provided for the year FERE 3,659 17,190 - 15,239 6,021 1,678 43,787
Eliminated on disposals 7 & R HIRE
and wiite of sk - (29) - (896) (2,064) (69) (3,058)
Written back on REMEHHE
revaluation (3,659) - - - - - (3,659)
Transfer to investment ~ BEZRENE
property (Note 17) (Hzx17) - - - (5,543) (8,590) - (14,133)
Transfer to assets BERERETR
classified as held for HEZE
sale - (15,667) - 4,272) (1,091) (201) (21,231)
Exchange difference ERES - (1,013) - (1,268) (513) (130) (2,924)
At 31 December 2023  RZZZ=f&
+-B=1+-H - 48,127 - 51,304 10,957 6,144 116,532
CARRYING VALUES  RE®(E
At 31 December 2023 RZE_=%
+ZB=1t-H - 279,488 149,224 65,194 24,608 5,990 524,504
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continvea) &7 &M BRI EE &

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ME -BERHE @
(Continueqd)
2022 _EFE__
Furniture,
Land and equipment
Hotel buildings and
property in HK and Construction leasehold Plant and Motor
in the PRC the PRC inprogress  improvements machinery vehicles Total
REBR Bl
RPEREZ HEREZ FER BRR
BEME THRET TEIR BFEE e RaE ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT EETT ARTR ERTR EETT BB EBT T

COST AND VALUATION Fi AR {&(E

At 1 January 2022 RIBZZE
—A—H 110,000 509,541 714,464 95,617 69,144 10,688 1,509,454
Additions RE - - 269,237 6,373 382 1,684 277,676
Transfers/Reclassification &% /B4 - 13,517 (21,360) 3,763 3,996 84 -
Transfer to investment ~ EEZREYE
property (Note 17) (Pzx17) - - (361,643) - - - (361,643)
Disposals and write off ~ HE Kk - (825) - (3,598) (4,225) (709) (9,357)
Deficit on revaluation EfRE (10,000) - - - - - (10,000)
Exchange difference ERER - (33,957) (52,549) (7,225) (5,401) (791) (99,923)
At 31 December 2022 ~ RZF_Z#
+-B=+-H 100,000 488,276 548,149 94,930 63,896 10,956 1,306,207
Comprising: g
At cost BES - 488,276 548,149 94,930 63,896 10956 1,206,207
At valuation - 2022 &
St St 100,000 - - - - - 100,000
100,000 488,276 548,149 94,930 63,896 10,956 1,306,207
DEPRECIATION &
At 1 January 2022 RZE-"%-R
—H - 32,106 - 40,375 13,334 4,206 90,021
Provided for the year FEERE 5,116 17,614 - 12,814 7,847 1,645 45,036
Eliminated on disposals 7 & R HIRE
and write off ik - 92) - (1,999) (2,804) (703) (5,598)
Written back on REMEHHE
revaluation (65,116) - - - - - (5,116)
Exchange difference ERER - (1,982) - (3,146) (1,183) (282) (6,593)
At 31 December 2022  RZZ__&
+-B=1+-H - 47,646 - 48,044 17,194 4,866 117,750
CARRYING VALUES  IRE%(E
At 31 December 2022 ~ RZEZ"&
+-B=1+—-H 100,000 440,630 548,149 46,886 46,702 6,090 1,188,457
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 45 &MBHRFRMEE @)

19. GOODWILL 19. HE
HK$'000
BT T

cosT e

At 1 January 2022 R F—HF—H 136,530

Addition (Note (a)) g (i Ek(a) 1,462

Exchange difference ERE%R (10,698)

A —
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 B\ —E-ET-A=t—HK
—_E_=F—AF—H 127,284

Addition (Note (b)) g (fFEE(0)) 2,085

Exchange difference ERER (3,462)

At 31 December 2023 RIE_=%F+"A=+—H 125,907

ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT REtiFE

At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 E’\\:;‘::E—E—El .

and 1 January 2023 g+ "BA=+—HkK
= ——ﬁi H E -

Impairment loss recognised MR ABEEK -

At 31 December 2023 RIE_=%F+"A=+—H -

CARRYING VALUES REFE

At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=F+"A=+—H 125,907

At 31 December 2022 RIE_ZHF+-A=+—H 127,284

Notes: M EE -

(@ In May 2022, the Group’s non-wholly owned subsidiary, @ WRIEBE__F#RAB AATZIkEE
Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited (“Tiannuo”) EERHNBLAEAERKXERERR
acquired 51% equity interest in Zhaoqging Huaxin Blasting 2B (TX##E) UMRERBHOARE
Engineering Co., Limited* (“Huaxin”) at cash consideration 7,399,000t N IBEE T EFIEH T
of approximately RMB7,399,000. By considering the non- RAERRE (MFEEF)) Z251%KE1E
controlling interests at fair value of Huaxin of approximately EEEGEZIIEFEREGAABARE
RMB5,911,000 and the total identifiable net assets at fair value 5,911,000t MEEF R A REZ AT #H
of Huaxin of approximately RMB12,063,000, the goodwill AP EEMBEAREK12,063,0007T
arising on the acquisition of 51% equity interest in Huaxin was AWEBEGEIBREMEENEES
approximately RMB1,247,000 (equivalent to HK$1,452,000). AR 11,247,000 (FEERL B

1,452,0007T) ©

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19.

W 204

GOODWILL (continuead)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  In June 2023, the Group’s non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Guangdong Sinsing Technology Ltd (“Sinsing Technology”)
acquired a 51% equity interest in Guangdong XRIS Technology
Co., Ltd. (“XRIS”) at consideration of approximately
RMB8,437,000. By considering the non-controlling interests at
fair value of XRIS of approximately RMB6,251,000 and the total
identifiable net assets at fair value of XRIS of approximately
RMB12,757,000, the goodwill arising on the acquisition of
51% equity interest in XRIS Technology was approximately
RMB1,931,000 (equivalent to HK$2,085,000).

For the impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business
combinations was allocated to individual business segments
that management considers representing the Group’s separate
cash-generating units (the “CGUs”), which are the big data
business and civil explosives business.

The recoverable amount of the civil explosives business
CGU was based on its value in use and was determined
with the assistance of Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuer. The calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period, and at discount
rate of 13.2% (2022: 13%). Cash flows after the five-year
period were extrapolated using 2% (2022: 2%) growth rate in
considering the economic condition of the market. The growth
rate used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the five
year period do not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the industry.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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19. B2 »)

Mz (&

b) MRIZEZ=FRA ZxREIZIFkE
EERNBAERSEMNEAIR
A (THEERE ) UMREHOARE
8,437, 000t NIBERHHEZR
EERRA (MRS %) 251%
B EERFHRERTZIFEZERER
NaEARES,251,0007T M3 15 2
ZRAABZAHRNFEELEA
e #12,757,0007% » (KUK BE #7 B 28 22
S1%REMEENBEANARE
1,931,0007T (18 1 4978 152,085,000
7T) ©

FRERARMS  BEEBSHWERN
HEENEEEEERARRELAEER
BEMNREEESEM - BIABEBEXES
REBIRIFRER) NEMEEFH DL

EEUSEXHEMERIHERAE
W T RBBFREHR 2 REESES
AR W Bl %E 2 511t TH iR EAE
BZHHEMETE ZAtEFERANES
MERARRBELESMZRERF
B FEEEL3.2% (ZE - & .
13.0%) BITIREHE - AFHUEN
BEMNR2% (CE - _F12%) 12
EHE LIS RERIELS KR =115
EER - AFHAUBNRERETBEM
FRAZEREFAGBRITENRITF
HIg R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amount of the big data business CGU was
based on its value in use and was determined with the
assistance of Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent
firm of professional valuer. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and at discount rate
of 18.4% (2022: Nil). Cash flows after the five-year period were
extrapolated using 2.2% (2022: Nil) growth rate in considering
the economic condition of the market. The growth rate used to
extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the five year period
do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
industry.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows which include budgeted sales
and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the industry
information and management’s expectation of the market
development including the fluctuation in the current economic
environment.

Management determines that there is no impairment of the
goodwill at the end of the year since the value in use of the big
data business CGU and the civil explosives business CGU are
both higher than their carrying amounts.

AR MBrRRIE @
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WM T  REBEHZREELEBMUN
e sz G IREEREEZ
STEMEE ZBEEANRERER
ARRECESHLREL TN
BEBEL18.4% (ZTE-"F 1 ) K
REGE AFHURNERE AR
22% (CTEZZF IE)BEREXER I
BERDRBELENSNVEREAN -1
FHNENREREREMRERZ1E
BRI GBBTENRMTFHEERX-

HtARGEEREENEIZREY
REEHERBERENNREERAE
b A ERTEEAREEE
HHBEENRE aEEACEIRE
TBYRE

BEERS AR ABBEEBNREE
TENARRBEBIEREBNERESES
BlAizERABESNEKREE HIt-
BEEFRTFERERSK

205

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20.

21.

= 206

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SFABIRRINEE &

20. ELEE

Purchased
Software Trademark Total
ShEEER 1 51 wzE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT AT
COST N
As at 1 January 2023 A _E_=F—HF—H - = =
Addition upon acquisition of a subsidiary WE—EHBAT%E 2
(Note 36) 110 (Ki3536) 2,005 2,459 4,464
Exchange difference bR = %E 37 46 83
As at 31 December 2023 ATEC=F
+ZA=+—H 2,042 2,505 4,547
AMORTISATION i
At 1 January 2023 RN_E_=F—H—H - = =
Amortisation provided during the year 55 & (126) (321) (447)
Exchange difference bR ELE 1 2 3
As at 31 December 2023 R_BEZ=F
+ZB=+—H 1,917 2,186 4,103

All intangible assets have finite useful lives and are amortised
on a straight-line basis based on their estimated useful lives as

follows:
Trademark 5 years
Purchased software 10 years

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

The movements in the Group’s interests in an associate
(including goodwill), during the year are analysed as follows:

FREBTVEENRERERERASH 1R
LU ast el AU ERE D # -

G} 54
N 104
21. RE AT 2 ¥=m

AEBRAFEMGHEQAD ZBm
(BEEE) EFHOMNT

2023 2022
—EZ= -

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETIT BT

At 1 January rR—RB—H 517,219 556,026
Share of post-acquisition profits K ERET 51,400 4,727
Distribution from post-acquisition profit WiE®R Z R EDEC (35,299) -
Share of exchange difference EIEERERR (14,243) (43,534)
At 31 December “+ZA=+—H 519,077 517,219
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

21. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

SFABIRRINEE &

21. RGBT 2 ¥R @)

RBSHREERBRZEATFBUWT

Principal Class of Proportion of
Form of Place of place of shares ownership interest held Proportion of voting rights Principal
Entity Name the entity incorporation operation held by the Group held by the Group activities
&R
PSR IE SEBEME
BB BREA sE 2k TEEEMY FROER A LA TEEH
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEC= e CZEIZE C"T_CF
Nanhai Changhai Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC Paid up capital 31.875% 31.875% 31.875% 31.875% Generation and sale
Power Company of electricity and
Limited* (Note (a)) heated steam
BEREEE B AvA FEAR FEAR BRERE BEMETREN
BRAF HANE HMNE fitfe
(M)
Notes: BIsE -

(@)

On 18 March 2019, the Group entered into a capital increment
agreement with another existing investor in which the registered
capital of Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* (“Nanhai
Changhai”) would be increased from USD31,132,460 to
USD32,235,446. The transaction was completed on 11 October
2019. The Group did not subscribe for additional shareholding
and accordingly, the equity interest held by the Group in Nanhai
Changhai decreased from 32.636% to 31.875% after completion
of the transaction. Deemed disposal of an associate amounted
to HK$3,993,000 is recognised in the Group’s interest in Nanhai
Changhai as at 31 December 2019.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associate is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s

financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited*

AZE—AE=A+\BAEE
MHEEEEEEERAR (HEE
$51) 2 M E AL EE1,182,460%
741 582,285,446 7T 8 53 — (B2
BRI I T A bR
S—AETAT—BRMAEED
HREBAMGE SN UL R UL 52 52 52 PR
> AEENEEREMTEZRE
FH32.636% NPEE31.875% X8 A
781153,993,0007T A48 7 t £ — RS B
BRABN - S—NETA=+—
A2 A HE R s 582 BT LR

=3
e ©

ERTEBZBEARN ZHYBENE
SHEINM T - UTHHEMEZE5]
MERTZMBREZEEH BHRE
B BREERRS

ABRBEERRAH

2023 2022
—E-= =S

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BT T

Current assets MBNE E 1,074,233 888,737

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,935,791 2,143,584

Current liabilities mEEE (588,491) (523,265)

Non-current liabilities ERBERE (793,046) (829,675)

Net assets BESFE 1,628,487 1,679,381
* For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

21.

= 908

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited* (Continued)

AR MBrRRIE @

1. REZE AT 2R &

EERBEEERAR (@)

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEFR EHTR

Revenue LYON 2,021,400 1,692,547

Profit for the year KEERF 161,797 15,920

Exchange difference bR (43,572) (132,348)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FE2E W@

for the year (FIs2) 4B 28 118,225 (116,428)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in an associate recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

REEMBREPEIBRE AT ZE
mZAREERE EAM B ER SRR

2023 2022
—EZ=F =S
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT T
Net assets of the associate BMERRZHERER 1,628,487 1,679,381
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AERREERE
interest in Nanhai Changhai Power LEARRRAZ
Company Limited* RS PTG
[EPaES 31.875% 31.875%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ZF%E?EE‘?’@%?@
in Nanhai Changhai Power Company LBAMRAF
Limited* (Note) w2 BREE
(B3 519,077 517,219
Note: gs:
On 22 March 2019, the Group’s shareholdings in Nanhai Changhai RIZZE—AF=ZBEZ+ZH x&EER

Power Company Limited* decreased from 32.636% to 31.875%.
There was undistributed profit due to the dilution of the Group’s
shareholdings in Nanhai Changhai Power Company Limited*. It
is therefore the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Nanhai
Changhai Power Company Limited* as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
cannot be directly calculated by multiplying its net assets with the
proportion of the Group’s ownership interest.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

AR MBrRRIE @

22. g’z}ﬁﬁéﬂ\?ﬁEZﬁﬁﬂﬁ

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Analysed as: baRiiv= I
Non-current JER B
Unlisted equity investment (Note a) JELMRMEE (H5ta) 3,787 1,977
Option granted for selling the 72% EY—HEREAEIHE
equity interest in a subsidiary to FIEERER72% A% 1
non-controlling interest (Note b) BIRARE (Fi5Eb) - 89,898
3,787 91,875

Movement of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BAREHAANBGZEREEZES

is analysed as follows: wr
2023 2022
—E-= =2
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T
At 1 January t—H—H 91,875 63,055
Disposal during the year FRHE - (5,184)
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of financial st ABBHZ S RIE E
assets at fair value through profit or loss Z’z}ﬁ@ GRiZD) /180 (86,130) 39,907
Exchange difference REXE (1,958) (5,903)
At 31 December K+Z—A=+—H 3,787 91,875
Notes: igs:

The fair value of the financial assets was approximately HK$3,787,000
(2022: HK$91,875,000) as valued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited,
an independent firm of professional valuer.

(a) The unlisted equity investment represents the equity interests
issued by an unlisted entity in the PRC.

On 31 August 2020, the Group acquired an additional 2%
equity interests in Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited
(“Tiannuo”), an associate of the Company. Upon the completion
of acquisition, the Group obtained to have controlling power
on Tiannuo. Thus, Tiannuo became a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Tiannuo held 7.16% equity interest
in Guangdong United Civil Explosives Co., Ltd.* (BB &E
IREPR/AT]), a company established in PRC and engaged in
agent services for the sale of emulsion explosives and industrial
detonating cords. As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of
the equity investment was approximately HK$3,787,000 (2022:
HK$1,977,000).

For identification purpose only

SHEEZ AAEHBIIFEEGEMEES
LB RA B GEA B 13,787,0007T (&
— & 1 7191,875,0007T) °

a. RFLHROREERENEREIF
EHZBRETHREES

N_E_EFENB=+—H8>&EE
Llﬁzﬁ%fFEﬁE?M“TP%%a%&éﬁ
BE’&T( 1) BBIN2 %P HE o SEAR

RS R 1% 0 AN &2 [ VIS K 3R RV 4
7f&ol¢t9€;ﬁﬁk%¢@15’]3?%i§?§
BHBAB XEFEEERH &R
BBERAR (—REFBEAMIL S
REHEATLIEEREIRRNAE)
7TA6%NEAER BEZZT =
+=ZB=+—8" meff&ﬁﬁzﬁﬁfé
A K AR 787,000 (B -
1,977,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

23.

= 210

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  This represents the Group’s has the right to sell the partial or all b.
of the equity interest in the Company’s subsidiary, Guangdong
Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Limited* (B & RRHER
BIRAT), to the non-controlling interest. On 18 January 2024,
the resolution proposed at the first special general meeting
was passed regarding the proposed disposal of 72% equity of
Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd. Following
the resolution passed, the share option was deemed to be
expired on the same date. The Group recognised a fair value loss

E &

MizE (3

MBS HRRNGE @

22. BARESAEmZEME

EEErERERARERRFERED
HEXRABZWBRABERTERE
BRABRBZEBOAEERE T
TETME-B+NABETZE R
REFNARE LREZAERZNEH
BEHEERTERMERARAT
T2%REEEENRBE AEEBB
BolREABRRASERIM -AEH
A R ERK A 1E88,006,0007T °

amounting to HK$88,006,000. As at 31 December 2023, the fair BHE_E_=F+"-_B=+—H"

value of the sale option was HK$Nil (2022: HK$89,898,000).

Details of the fair value measurement of the financial assets for
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 5.

PEREZ ARERBBST (T

— 4 : #1%89,898,0007T) °

HE_Z_—F+_B=+—HLH
EtMEEZANETEZEBHY

FABIEES ©
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 23. FRAEEEREEA®RE
LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets FREEE
2023 2022
—EC=HF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
At 1 January =Rl = 906,186 1,016,208
Additions Hrig 67,218 668
Depreciation provided during the year FRFHRITE (32,165) (32,212)
Early termination IERI# I - (54)
Transfer to assets classified as held EERREHEUEE
for sale (Note 11) BE (HsE11) (850,234) -
Exchange difference PERE%R (25,150) (78,424)
At 31 December B+__B=+—H 65,855 906,186
The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to FTRAREEREALEEARBELERNESR

use underlying leased premises under operating lease
arrangements over the lease terms, which are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease

liabilities.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

MBS HRRNGE @

23. FREEEKREEGRE &=

Lease liabilities HEeEas
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Maturity analysis EHR M
— Contractual undiscounted cash flows: — B REIRIRE
E
Within one year R—FR 823 51,910
Over one year but less than two years i —F BN mE 1,171 52,035
Over two years but less than HBiEmEEDR=F
three years 1,007 52,276
Over three year but less than five years Bim=FBLIORESF 2,079 111,428
Over five years HBiEhF 693 1,924,037
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at the  RERZRHIBERE
end of the year B E4REE 5,773 2,191,686
Less: total future interest expenses B RRFE R ARER (750) (1,129,052)
5,023 1,062,634
Analysed as: DER
Current E 823 51,910
Non-current JERE 4,200 1,010,724
5,023 1,062,634

The Group recognised rental expenses from short-term leases
of approximately HK$1,633,000 (2022: HK$997,000) during

the year.

RER REBRREHEEZHEH
#4978 151,633,0007T (ZE - " F | B

#997,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

HERE (&

SFABIRRINEE &

23. FREEEREEGRE @

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of R E B R RAERZ LEE
financial position
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
At 1 January n—B—H 1,062,634 1,135,788
Additions during the year FRHIG 4,815 668
Interest charged to profit or loss SFABRIFE 51,048 53,505
Payment during the year KEBMNMR (36,800) (38,168)
Early termination IERI# L - (54)
Transfer to liabilities classified as BESSEOHEE
held for sale (Note 11) afE (fisE11) (1,047,323) -
Exchange difference PERE%R (29,351) (89,105)
w+ZB=+—H
At 31 December 5,023 1,062,634
Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit PRirSBmREME H K R ERZ
or loss and other comprehensive income E]
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Interest on lease liabilities HEsEZHE 51,048 53,505
Depreciation e 32,165 32,212

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED 82§22 1% £ PR 2\ 7]
= o2 a7

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4F#




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contived) & & MBI EMsE @)

23. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 23. FHEEERHEESE @
LIABILITIES (continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEaE #E
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of BB RETEXRBRZEEE
cash flows
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Total cash outflow for leases MEZRES ML 36,800 38,168
24. INVENTORIES 24. 78
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Raw materials R4 44
Chemicals for manufacturing emulsion HAEVFRERBIRR
explosives and industrial detonating YEREERN
cord 2,208 2,975
Fuels IR 65 30
Finished goods oA
Emulsion explosives and industrial IEVFEREIRER
detonating cords 585 2,430
Food, beverages and hotel supplies B R ROBEIE
HFE & 55 829
Health smart devices RS R 52 245
Medical supplies BEH R 1,675 982
Pharmaceuticals & & 1,699 1,278
6,339 8,769
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in HE_ZE_=—F+_"_HB=+—HIL=F
cost of sales amounted to HK$252,929,000 for the year ended E HmB3sZIlst A BRZEFEMK
31 December 2023 (2022: HK$222,898,000). A5 929 0007 (ZE - _F . B

#222,898,0007T) °

The Directors considered the provision for inventory EERAEBANBHENEESIREE
obsolescence is not required. (2022: Nil). BECEZITHE &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

25. FINANCIAL LEASE RECEIVABLES

=214

SFABIRRINEE &

25. EHE RN

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T BT 7T
Analysed as: DEA
Current Ve 1,424,881 1,067,858
Non-current JETRE 3,191,960 2,884,042
4,616,841 3,951,900
Minimum lease Present value of
payments lease payments
RIEFAELR REHEMRZIRE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC=EF TECTFE —E=F TECCF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT AT BT
Finance lease receivables comprise: ~ BIEHEEIRREIE
Within one year R—ER 1,703,104 1,296,733 1,426,869 1,067,858
Over one year but less than BE—FERBBME
two years 1,433,020 1,244,705 1,261,409 1,076,433
Over two years but less than BEWMFEFBBRF
five years 2,038,844 2,005,456 1,873,626 1,868,137
Over five years BERE 174,681 - 163,090 -
5,349,649 4,546,894 4,724,994 4,012,428
Less: unearned finance income L RBREGR B U A (624,655) (534,466) N/A N/A
Present value of minimum lease W RERECTHRZRE
payment receivables 4,724,994 4,012,428 4,724,994 4,012,428
Less: allowance for expected B RHEEEERE
credit losses (108,153) (60,528) (108,153) (60,528)
4,616,841 3,951,900 4,616,841 3,951,900
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

25. FINANCIAL LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continuea) ~ 25.

Movements of allowance for expected credit losses on finance
lease receivables are as follows:

AR MBrRRIE @

FIEREREWER @

MERAERKRZEMEERRER
REFMT :

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MEE B B o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Allowance for expected credit losses ~ TEHA{E SR & E AETT AETT AT BT
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—HF—H 37,008 - 23,520 60,528
Movement within stages: P ER R RV B
Move to stage 2 BEE_ (5,146) 5,146 - -
Move to stage 3 (Note) BEE= E“Ex (22 (593) - 593 -
Charged for the year KEGHE 8,478 32,221 8,918 49,617
Exchange difference ERELB (1,036) (247) (709) (1,992)
At 31 December 2023 -
+ZB=+—H 38,711 37,120 32,322 108,153
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—ME B B st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Allowance for expected credit losses ~ FEHAfE ER5ERHE BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2022 RZE__&—HA—H 28,058 - - 28,058
Movement within stages: MR ENEE
Move to stage 3 (Note) BEF=FEE (15D (337) - 337 -
Charged for the year AEFHE 11,464 - 24,205 35,669
Exchange difference ERER 2,177) - (1,022) (3,199)
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZ#&
+-B=+—H 37,008 - 23,520 60,528
Note: This was caused by worsening credit-impaired receivable from iz : WWhHMEEAEREFNEEERE

the finance lease customers.

All leases are denominated in RMB. The term of finance leases
ranged from less than 1 year to 7 years (2022: 1 to 5 years).
The effective interest rates of the finance leases ranged from
4.90% to 12.75% per annum (2022: 4.98% to 11.30% per

annum).

EWRZEEBIEmE-

Fﬁﬁ%ﬂ SHUARESE-FTIIRMEMN

EZHEBRNFOR—FELE CF
TTHI—ERF)  oMEEEZER

F . ENELI8%ET11.30%) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

25.

= 216

FINANCIAL LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection with
finance lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements
that needed to be recorded as at the end of the reporting
period.

The finance lease receivables are secured by the leased assets,
mainly plant and machinery. The Group is not permitted to
sell or repledge the collaterals of the finance lease receivables
without consent from the lessee in the absence of default by
the lessee.

Estimates of fair value of collaterals are made during the
credit approval process. These estimates of valuations are
made at the inception of finance lease, and generally not
updated except when the receivable is individually impaired.
When a finance lease receivable is identified as impaired,
the corresponding fair value of collateral of that receivable
is updated by reference to market value such as recent
transaction price of the assets.

As at 31 December 2023,
receivables amounted to approximately HK$3,580,931,000
(2022: HK$2,782,574,000).

the pledged finance lease

Security deposits received from customers represent finance
lease deposits received from customers, which will be
repayable at the end of the lease period of the respective
finance leases. As at 31 December 2023, deposits of
HK$204,966,000 (2022: HK$167,493,000) have been received
by the Group, in which deposits of HK$12,230,000 (2022:
HK$2,715,000) were classified as current liabilities and the
balances were classified as non-current liabilities, based on the
final lease installment due date stipulated in the finance lease
agreements. All deposits are non-interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, eight of the finance
lease receivables with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$32,322,000 was past due. Such finance lease receivables
are categorised in stage 3. Details of impairment assessment
for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 5.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The Group allows an average credit period of
90 days to its customers.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade and
other receivables after deducting the impairment loss allowance
presented based on invoice dates at the end of the reporting

A BIRRMNEE @

26. FEUSARTR B E fth FE U "R IR

PR E P EERBRARIN RERA
BERZRZHREEUGEEET RE
B THEFTHO0HZEEH-

AERRRESPARBBEEZARZS
2 & S BR RR R L A W R TR AS 40 TR AR
EEBEERZRERIONNT

period:

2023 2022
—EC=8H ==

HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
0-60 days 0ZE60H 58,680 51,634
61-90 days 61Z90H 4,759 7,148
91-120 days 91E120H 1,611 5,175
Over 120 days #BiB120H 21,946 15,140
Trade receivables FEURBRZX 86,996 79,097
Other receivables (Note) Hahpezra (M) 64,903 87,526
151,899 166,623

Note: It mainly includes deductible value added tax of HK$593,000
and interest receivables from financial leasing business
of HK$43,403,000 (2022: deductible value added tax of
HK$24,505,000 and interest receivables from financial leasing
business of HK$26,305,000).

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances except interest receivable
from financial leasing customers.

At as 31 December 2023, trade receivables over 90 days
amounted to HK$23,557,000 (2022: HK$20,315,000) were
past due but not impaired as the related debtor had good
subsequent payment records.

MizE: LZEQFEARNEERBIE
593,000t R REMEREER
B FE UK FI) B8 #43,403,0007¢
(ZEZZH . J\NKERSE
124,505,000t R BREE R E
EBE B EW A S B 126,305,000

JT) ©

REBMREREEERFHNEBEFE
S REBIWEMZEEFTE TR
HRAEMAEEERT

A _E_=F+_"_HA=+—H B8
Q0B WY FE WL AR FR <& BB & 1523,557,0007T
(ZZE & #1%20,315,0007T) &
B ERPREREEABREFNERER
TRGE &R > B R VR R(E ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26.

ST

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

An aging analysis of trade receivables that were past due but
not impaired:

O M BImRRNEE @

26. FEWNARAA R LM FEYSFRIE (2

BHRBARIRE Z R ARRBIBRES IO T ¢

2023 2022

—EC-=fF —E=E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT T FEHE T 5T
91-120 days 91FE120H 1,611 5,175
Over 120 days Bi®120H 21,946 15,140
23,557 20,315

The Group’s largest trade receivables balance amounted to
HK$30,522,000 (2022: HK$20,093,000) at the end of the year.
Moreover, the Group’s five largest trade receivables balances
amounted to HK$49,319,000 (2022: HK$43,049,000) in total at

the end of the year.

REFR > NEBEZ &AM UWER SR
#8130,5622,000c (ZE "% | B
#20,093,0007T) ° khoh» REFRAE
BBARLEERIRREGHEEALSS
#49,319,000c (ZE -4 | B

Movements of allowance for expected credit losses on trade
receivables are as follows:

43,049,0007T) ©

BUWERZEMEEBEERENES

mr:

2023 2022
—_EgE”= —_FT°T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Balance at the beginning of the year R ER 4S8R 971 762
Allowance for expected credit losses MR EREERERE

recognised 2,226 276

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale $%ﬁ§ HEAHHEEE (1,679) -

Exchange difference FERZE%E (42) (67)

Balance at the end of the year RERLGEER 1,476 971

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are
set out in Note 5.

As at 31 December 2022, none of the other receivables was past
due. Allowance for expected credit losses on other receivables
amounted to HK$2,329,000 was recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2022. For the year ended 31 December
2023, such allowance for expected credit losses on other
receivables was included in assets classified as held for sale.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

26.

27.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continueqd)

As at 31 December 2023, none of the other receivables
was past due. No allowance for expected credit losses on
other receivables was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2023.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

(@) Cash and bank balances comprise:

MBS HRRNGE @

26.

27.

PR LSt Bl R e LAt FE W vk T 4

R_ZE_ZF+_B=+—H HME
WHRIBREELEAR C S =5
N ERDEMERREBE BREE
EiERE o

RERRITHERLERFIR
1T

(a) RERRITHEREE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT 5T

Cash at bank and on hand R RIBELEER 599,378 1,024,206
Less: pledged bank deposit B BIRIFIRITER (7,197) (24,956)
Cash and bank balances REKRIRTTA R 592,181 999,250

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at bank and on
hand held by the Group and bank time deposits.

Bank balances are interest bearing at respective saving
deposits rate in the Hong Kong and PRC, and the
effective interest rates of the Group’s bank balances
range from 0.01% to 5.53% per annum in Hong Kong
and from 0.01% to 4.50% per annum in PRC. (2022:
0.01% to 5.00% per annum in Hong Kong and 0.25% to
3.80% per annum in PRC).

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Deposits amounting to approximately HK$7,197,000
(2022: HK$$24,956,000) have been pledged to secure
a bank borrowing and is therefore classified as current
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (continued)

= 220

(a)

(b)

R MBs R MEE @

27. B2 RIRITHEF KR EEFIR
TEM @

Cash and bank balances comprise: (Continued) (a) REKRIBITHREE: (&
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are RERBITEGNRASEAUAT
denominated in the following currencies: FIEHEEE -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT
Hong Kong Dollars B 26,657 28,768
Renminbi AR 565,241 962,391
United States Dollars E7T 283 8,091
592,181 999,250
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and bank AE =+ "H=+—H">
balances with an aggregate amount of approximately REFERERBITHARBIELY
HK$575,341,000 (2022: HK$968,539,000) were which A& 575,341,00070 (Z 2=
is not a freely convertible currency in the international F 1 B1968,539,0007T) A IEEH
market. The government of the PRC has implemented BR1E PO EBEHEMNEE o
foreign exchange control and the remittance of these B EEImINEE S > s
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions L 5 08 AR [ 78 38 <P R U
imposed by the government of the PRC. B R BE R R o
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RMEIBMELENEEHIR
activities
Interest from  Convertible Lease
Borrowings borrowings notes liabilities Total
&M RS, AHRRERE HEAR am
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2023 N _E_=F—HF—H 5,090,841 18,168 143,833 1,062,634 6,315,476
Changes from financing MERSREE !
cash flows:
Proceeds from borrowings EBRAERIE 3,461,210 - - - 3,461,210
Repayment of borrowings BERGR (2,714,839) - - - (2,714,839)
Interest paid BAFE - (62,462) (3,325) - (65,787)
Interest element of lease BNHEEREZ
rentals paid FEHS = - - (36,800) (36,800)
5,837,212 (44,294) 140,508 1,025,834 6,959,260
Other changes: Hitneg:
Additions i - - - 4,815 4,815
Exchange difference ERELE (118,718) - - (29,351) (148,069)
Interest expense FIERZ - 61,404 15,743 51,048 128,195
At 31 December 2023 RZIBZ=F
+-B=+—H 5,718,494 17,110 156,251 1,052,346 6,944,201
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT (continued)

(b)

activities (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

MBS HRRNGE @

27. RERIBITEHGREIRIFIR
TEFH®

(b) REZBFREENGGEHEK (&

Interest from Convertible Lease
Borrowings borrowings notes liabilities Total
EES EESIIS! EE et HE&E ng
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT AR
At 1 January 2022 W_E__&—HA—H 4,236,119 8,128 132,644 1,135,788 5,612,679
Changes from financing MERETEE .
cash flows:
Proceeds from borrowings BRFTERIE 3,532,239 - - - 3,532,239
Repayment of borrowings BERET (2,382,794) - - - (2,382,794
Interest paid EffHE - (50,038) (3,325) - (53,363)
Interest element of lease BNHEEREZ
rentals paid FEHH - - - (38,168) (38,168)
5,385,564 (41,910 129,319 1,097,620 6,570,593
Other changes: Hith#
Additions i - - - 668 668
Early termination REL&IE - - - (54) (54)
Exchange difference ERELE (294,723 - - (89,105) (383,828)
Interest expense FIER% - 60,078 14,5614 53,505 128,097
At 31 December 2022 = ——S
+-BR=+—H 5,090,841 18,168 143,833 1,062,634 6,315,476

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The credit period granted by the Group’s suppliers range from

30 days to 90 days.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

28. FEfIARTR B H fth FE {4 7RI

AEERTHEBZEEHRN FI0H
F90H-

AEERBEHRR REROHRETZ
EARMZRE DMT

2023 2022
—_E_=% =B

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BT T

0-60 days 0ZE60H 19,328 18,376
61-90 days 61Z90H 1,318 935
91-120 days 91ZE120H 896 389
Over 120 days #BiB120H 5,500 13,025
Trade payables FEfTBRER 27,042 32,725
Other payables HhpE I8 184,169 183,188
211,211 215,913
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contived) & & MBI EMsE @)

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continuec) 28. AR R ELth & FRIE (2
Other payables included the following items: HiENHRIESE TNYIER !
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Contract liabilities (Note c) a8 aeE (izc) 121 289
Deposits received from customers BWEREE 14,934 26,866
Receipts in advance FEWER R 24,872 22 411
Other tax payable (Note a) HMEMKRE (fizta) 33,626 35,831
Staff salaries and welfare BT #HETKER 49,269 50,962
Provision for termination benefits BIEENEN B E 6,177 8,350
Others (Note b) HA (MF5Eb) 55,170 38,479
184,169 183,188
Notes: BosE -
(a)  Other tax payable mainly includes value added tax payables. (@) HMENMRBEFZEGIEELIEER-
(b)  Others include interest payables, accrued expenses and other by HMSEECHE -EBNERREM
temporary receipts. =R o
()  Movements of contract liabilities are as follows: () BHEEZEWT:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 January w—HB—H 289 588
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FAERUWERER
recognising revenue during the year that saHaERD
was included in the contract liabilities at the REVISt AE AR
beginning of the period (441) (638)
Increase in contract liabilities during the year ~ FREH & E BN 279 377
Exchange difference BERERE (6) (38)
At 31 December ®»+ZBE=+—H 121 289
Typical payment terms which impact the amount of contract liabilities HERIACAABESEBRNTEN—RXT
recognised are as follows: R
The Group receives advances from certain customers in connection AEBRAREEEEBRBERADET
with the service income from wellness elderly care business. These E9S ”yﬁyﬁﬁf\"ﬁ%@?ﬂﬁg%%‘éﬁgﬁ’
advances are recognised as contract liabilities until the performance BEEMREITEERLE

obligations are completed.

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to FEEEHIEMTRERERBR > U
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe. RATE B RIRE N EEHRASZ T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

29. BORROWINGS

29. &=

MBS HRRNGE @

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Asset-backed Securities (Note a) EELFES (H5ta) 75,197 339,367
Bank loans (Note b) RITEE (Fisto) 4,639,202 4,003,204
Loan from immediate holding company BEEERRABIZER
(Note ¢) (MFzEc) 136,000 136,000
Loan from non-controlling interests JEERERER
(Note d) (FFzEd) 28,483 29,260
Other bonds (Note ¢) HifEs (fiste) 198,020 339,366
Other loans (Note f) Hh & (f5Ef) 77,007 243,644
5,153,909 5,090,841
Secured iR 3,945,794 4,092,658
Unsecured miKE 1,208,115 998,183
5,153,909 5,090,841
Carrying amount repayable: FEEZEREE
Within one year R—ERN 2,092,804 1,923,318
Over one year but less than two years Bia—FEEREE
ks 1,553,845 1,273,783
Over two years, but not more than B M EEREE
five years hE 1,168,891 1,283,068
Over five years B A F 338,369 610,672
5,153,909 5,090,841
Analysed as: DER
Current Vi) 2,092,804 1,923,318
Non-current JEmE 3,061,105 3,167,523
5,153,909 5,090,841

RNAER AEBCEEBRNABIE
2,714,839,000c (Z&E_—_F+_H
=+—H : #&2 382,794,0007T) °

During the year, the Group settled borrowings amounting to
HK$2,714,839,000 (31 December 2022: HK$2,382,794,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

B 904

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2023, Asset-backed Securities (“ABS”)
amounted to HK$75,197,000 (2022: HK$339,367,000) are fixed
rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates of 4.20%
(2022: from 6.05% to 6.07%) per annum.

At 31 December 2023, bank loans amounted to
HK$1,802,606,000 (2022: HK$2,170,767,000) are variable-
rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates ranged
from 2.98% to 6.77% (2022: 1.25% to 5.75%) per annum. The
remaining bank loans amounted to HK$2,836,596,000 (2022:
HK$1,832,437,000) are fixed rate borrowings which carry
effective interest rates ranged from 3.40% to 5.40% (2022: from
3.55% to 5.50%) per annum.

At 31 December 2023, loan from immediate holding company
amounted to HK$136,000,000 (2022: HK$136,000,000) are fixed
rate borrowings which carry effective interest rates ranged from
3% to 4% (2022: from 3% to 4%) per annum.

At 31 December 2023, loan from non-controlling interests
amounted to HK$27,503,000 (2022: HK$28,280,000) are
variable rate borrowings which carry effective interest rate of
4.75% (2022: 4.75%) per annum. The remaining loan from
non-controlling interests amounted to HK$980,000 (2022:
HK$980,000) are interest free (2022: Nil).

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continvea) 47 &M BRI EE @)

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

29. f&Fk @)

Notes: (Continued) Mizk : (#8)

(e)

At 31 December 2023, other bond amounted to
HK$198,020,000 (2022: HK$339,366,000) is fixed rate
borrowing which carries effective interest rate of 6.5% (2022: 6%
to 6.50%) per annum.

At 31 December 2023, several loans of other loans amounted
to HK$44,004,000 (2022: HK$45,249,000) are variable-rate
borrowings which carry effective interest rate of 5.23% (2022:
5.23%) per annum. The remaining loans of other loans amounted
to HK$33,003,000 (2022: HK$198,395,000) are fixed rate
borrowings which carry effective interest rates is 4.75% (2022:
from 4.75% to 6%) per annum.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain borrowings of
the Group are secured by investment properties, property,

plant and equipment, pledged bank deposit, pledged lease

receivables, pledged paid-up capital of a non-wholly owned

subsidiary, pledged equity interest in an associate and future

rental receivables. For the details of the pledge of assets,

please refer to Note 39 to the financial statements.

The

Group’s borrowings denominated in the following

) MRIZEZ=F+ZA=+—H>Hf
&% #1#198,020,0007 T (Z2==
£F © A18339,366,0007T) A E EFX
BFO HEBBREANEXA6.50E (ZF
T F I 6EE6.50E) o

(f) RN _E_=F+_FB=+—8Hft
B2 5 B 7B #44,004,0007T
(ZZ 4 : B1845,249,0007T) &
ARG HBREFNEH523E
(ZEBE -4 :523E) c EthEHRH
2 R iR & # B 1633,003,0007 (ZF
— T4 B18108,395,0007T) AEE
FEEZ HBBRENEA475E (Z
BT THFEATSEEGE) o

RIE_=ZF/x_TE__F£+_-H1
=t+—H AEEETERUELEY
=\ ME -BMERXRE BRFRTE
FoBEARERERI  BIERIE
EWNBRABIZERER BIEFR—
B EANB 2 RAE DS kR REUWAE
o RMEBERTEZHE B2RUE
HFKRMIFE39©

FEBZEMUM THERSHE !

currencies:

2023 2022
—E-=% —E-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT TT

Hong Kong Dollars gt 219,980 233,010
Renminbi AR 4,231,144 4,154,737
USD ETT 702,785 703,094
5,153,909 5,090,841
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

30.

B 226

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 12 March 2019, in accordance with the terms and condition
of the 2014 CB, the Company entered into the extension deed
with the holder of the 2014 CB, Prize Rich Inc. (“Prize Rich”)
to extend the maturity date of the outstanding 2014 CB in
the principal amount of HK$166,232,000 by 5 years from 13
October 2019 to 13 October 2024 (the “Extended CB Maturity
Date”), with all the terms and conditions of the outstanding
2014 CB unchanged. On 23 May 2019, after passing the
ordinary resolution to approve the extension deed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting, the extension
deed became effective. The 2014 CB was redeemed and new
convertible notes with the same terms and the Extended CB
Maturity Date (the “2019 CB”) was issued.

The 2019 CB in the principal amount of HK$166,232,000
(of which its fair value at the issuance date is approximately
HK$109,616,000) bears coupon rate at 2% per annum and is
convertible into shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.76 per share at any time following the issue date up
to the maturity date. At any time prior to the maturity date of
the 2019 CB, the Company is entitled to redeem in whole or in
part of the 2019 CB. Unless previously redeemed, converted or
purchased and cancelled, the 2019 CB will be redeemed on 13
October 2024. The 2019 CB carries interest, which is payable
annually in arrears or upon the conversion or redemption of the
notes

The convertible notes contain two components, liability, and
equity components. The equity component is presented in
equity under heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The
fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined at the issuance of the notes.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Movements of liability component of the notes for the year are

set out below:

30. ARG

EiE @®)

AR MBrRRIE @

REEEMONEFZEB ST -

HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January 2022 N B HF—HB—H 132,644
Interest charged at an effective interest rate of RBEBEFF10.64EFEZFERZ
10.64% 14,514
Interest paid BAFE (3,325)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZZE-"F+"A=+—Hk
—E_=%—HA—H 143,833
Interest charged at an effective interest rate of RBERFIZF10.64EstEZF BRI
10.64% 15,743
Interest paid BENFHE (3,325)
At 31 December 2023 RZE_=%+"HA=+—H 156,251
2023 2022
—EZ= =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Analysed as: DER
Amount due within one year show under  RBI&E FFARM
current liabilities —FRNEPAZE%E 156,251 -
Amount due after one year shown under  JERBIEEIE TR
non-current liabilities N—FE®EHZ
& %A - 143,833
The fair value of the liability component of the convertible notes MR EEERS 222 EUR
is calculated using cash flows discounted at market interest 10.64E (ZE - % 1 10.64/E2) 2 HI5

rate of 10.64% (2022: 10.64%).

FEFF WS REAE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Y

The following are the deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

SFABIRRINEE &

1. EERIEBERE  (BR)

UTRAREMKRBEFEEREIZE

prior years:
Addition
upon  Recognised
acquisition in the
of consolidated
As at  asubsidiary statement of Exchange As at
1 January (Note 36) profit or loss difference 31 December
e B — R I 1
NEBZEM REEEEER i
®—B—H (Hizk36) 2 ERER =+-H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2023 —EZ=E
Deferred tax assets: RERBEE
Allowance for expected credit MERERKGZ
losses on finance lease receivable BHEERBRE 15,132 - 12,404 (498) 27,038
Deferred tax liabilities: FIERBEE !
Undistributed profits of an associate BE ARz R DEERT (14,896) - (875) 415 (15,356)
Revaluation, net of related B MNRARITER
depreciation and amortisation B (38,757) (370) 743 1,055 (37,329)
(53,653) (370) (132) 1,470 (52,685)
(38,521) (370) 12,272 972 (25,647)
2022 g
Deferred tax assets: BEEREEE
Allowance for expected credit MERERKZZ
losses on finance lease receivable BHEERBRE 7,014 - 8,917 (799) 15,132
Deferred tax liabilities: RIERBEAE !
Undistributed profits of an associate BE ARz RDERA (15,162) - (944) 1,210 (14,896)
Revaluation, net of related BEMMNBRARTE
depreciation (43,073) - 983 3,333 (38,757)
(58,235) - 39 4,543 (53,653)
(51,221) . 8,056 3,744 (38,521)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continueqd)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

AR MBrRRIE @

31. RIERIBEE . (B8B) &

LUT 73 MR SE AR TR AL R 2 0 AT LAPE 4 75
R :

2023 2022
—_E=% =B
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT T BT 5T
Analysed as: DER
Deferred tax assets R IEE E
Non-current JETRED 27,038 15,132
Deferred tax liabilities RILRIBEEE
Non-current JER BN 52,685 53,653

No deferred tax has been provided in respect of the valuation
surplus relating to the hotel property for the year as the
carrying amount does not exceed the total investment cost
and the Directors considered that there is no taxable flow of
economic benefits to the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$41,152,000 (2022: HK$54,392,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, dependent
upon the nationality and domicile of the foreign investors, a
5% to 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement has become
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rates range
from 5% to 10%.

AEETERAEMERRZGER
BRETIRIEIER IR T ABE Y B RE
BEITEBEBREERESTIAHL
EEMS LERE LAVEEE -

RZEZ=F+ZB=+—H &&£H
FBRIBEIEABE41,152,0005T (=
=T T 1 A 54,392,0007T) B i 5
KI G BN KR C%EEU*X i FJ
B\ IR IBAIBRIELRIE
BE-

RIFPEPEMERE RINEKRES
B FE s P EHRER I ERE
TPEAESMKFIIEZLEENRS S
HUWENZE10NEHMER -ZREB
“EENGF—A—HEMERBERARZ
EEtE+_B=+—HZRBF fHH
EHRIBENNCEEMB 2B AEEEE
SRR B RS MEABEEZENR
ME REBMNBAMREASNET10%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

31.

32.

H 230

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

With regard to the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong, as none of them is held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the investment
properties as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of its investment properties in Hong Kong.

P
f

A MR @)

VREREEREE (B8R @&

RETFETEMSREZ BZSTNEF
—RA—BiE> AR EWE A ST ERE
BANEIkZREABMIEAINR - HINA
EEA G BRI R FRE > m
EREREEENAIBERZRRTE
BRIt ER GRS M B RERAR T
B Bff /3§ A B] 2 R 5t i 7 P FE (5 2 B By
MERARZEIERBFHER-

BRAAEEREBZREYFE ARKE
BB 0 3F LARE 2 B SR P B B KA B W
DEREREVERARSBRN -2
FRATHA MIFBBHE  ARE
EEHEERBEYEL RNFHEW
IS FEBTREINEEZRE
WE R R EREREAELERIE

SHARE CAPITAL 32. g7
Number of shares Nominal value
K& E & 4s
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EZ= - ZEBZ= BT F
HK$’000 HK$'000
AETT BT T
Authorised: AERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEBK0ITZ
ZER 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: EZFTRHERK .
At beginning of year and BIRAE
the end of year 1,712,329,142 1,712,329,142 171,233 171,233
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 26 April 2013
(the “New Scheme”).

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remuneration,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants
for their contribution or future contribution to the Group
and to strengthen the many long-term relationships that the
participants may have with the Group. Eligible participants
means any person falling within any of the following classes (a)
any employee; (b) any business associate of the Company or
any subsidiary; (c) any other group or classes of participants
which the board, in its absolute discretion, considers to have
contributed or will contribute, whether by way of business
alliance or other business arrangement, to the development
and growth of the Group. The Scheme became effective on 26
April 2013 and, will remain in force for 10 years.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10 per cent of the total number of shares in issues as
at the date of adoption of the New Scheme (i.e. 118,832,914
Shares of the Company) unless the Company obtain a fresh
approval from the shareholders.

No option shall be granted to any participant such that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to such participant under
the Scheme and any other option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
shall exceed 1 per cent. of the total number of shares in issue.

wRE BRI RE

33. BB T2
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StEEEMARBERMET T L A
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HAm UREREFREBEL L
RIFRZ B URBEE2RERAE
BzREZRABG RNEERSHREY
BEREER EEGREBHAUENE
RAetEZARRR AES2HEY
AEBZERIRKERKREEZS
HERAEEZ RPBHERZLOEME T
BERZHEZBRUTEM—ELEH
ZEAAL (QFEMRE ;(0)EREH
EEMBAR ZERMEBBEAN ()
EFELRENBERAR/ELABT BB
BEGHENEMET N EER
ZERRBRFLEMZEMEMAE
BlEEER 2 EE SRR T —=FW
BZ+RBEX ERZAE+ERNE
2 o

RIEHE AR 2 EBREMR Y Rk 2K
PIBE BRIFERSEARBIREBEAHE
BRT BEMBREENERS
BRAABINREMNZTEEH B ET
Ben 210% (BN118,832,91474 A 5 &
7)) BEBRETEIHEAERBAHRSH
EREMERERR—EBARESRE
EREERZBEzRE—HIE-

AEASEEREERE TERER
BERHAMR (B8FEZA) E+Z2EA
o REBEERES S RARTEMH
thEREABERTFTRFETFZ2 A
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RTEZ B E) BT M 1T R 3
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1%°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33.

o3

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Under the Scheme, where the Board proposes to grant any
option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or any of their respective associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to him or her under the
Scheme and any other option schemes of the Company in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant; (i)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1 per cent. of the total
number of Shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such proposed grant of
options must be approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting with all connected persons of the Company
abstaining from voting (except that any connected persons may
vote against the relevant resolution at such general meeting
provided that his intention to do so is stated in the circular
to the shareholders of the Company). Any vote taken at the
meeting to approve the grant of such options must be taken on
a poll.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the
option to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have
been granted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer, duly signed by the grantee with the number of
share in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated
therein, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company within 1 month from the offer date.

The subscription price of share options granted under the New
Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant in the offer letter and shall be at least
the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (b) a
price being the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (c) the
nominal value of a share on the offer date.

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33.

34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30 per cent. (or
such higher percentage as may be allowed under the Listing
Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

No option has been granted under the New Scheme since its

A BIRRMNEE @

33. BiRHEETE @

FEREMBERES ERAQEEAE
thEERES BT EME RTEZRA
BREETEMETZRNEE &Z
T RBBTRHERTRMOMBEI0% (N
EHRRBISEAEFZBRBAEDLL) ©

BEtB MmN R

adoption.
DEFERRED INCOME 34. IRIEUL 3
2023 2022
—E—-= ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BIET I
At 1 January w—A—H 215,049 214,154
Additions Hig 40,567 119,299
Addition upon acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WEE—RIMEB AT B2
(Note 36) 1 (MIEE36) 953 -
Recognised in profit or loss HR 18 7 P9 B 52 (75,481) (101,176)
Transfer to liabilities classified as held for B EIFIEAHHEERE
sale (Note 11) (fFsE11) (160,020) -
Exchange difference fEREER (5,666) (17,228)
At 31 December W+-_B=+—H 15,402 215,049
Analysed as: DEEA
Non-current JERH 15,402 215,049

Deferred income represents the government grants received
by the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in connection with
certain income-generating projects. There are no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attaching to these
grants. Deferred income of approximately HK$75,481,000
(2022: HK$101,176,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and included in “Other operating
income”.
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IRIE W s B IS F P E AL 3L B9 BT B A B
BN ESBRNE TRRMAEIWIE
BZBA#EE 2SI R2EMNHE
AxRmBENEENEMFIATIE R
JE N 7 49 78 1575,481,00070 (Z B - =
£ BK101,176,0007T) BERESIE
mERPER > WERR TEMKEW A
pqo

233

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

W 234

The table below shows details of the non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company that has material non-controlling

SFABIRRINEE &

35. JEEERR S

TR AR EBEANFERER
IR EZERNB AR ZFIE

interests:
Place of Total comprehensive
incorporation Proportion of Proportion of (expenses)/income
and principal ownership interests voting right held by allocated to
Name of place of held by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling Accumulated
subsidiary business interests interests interests non-controlling interests
R AL I AE R FERERRT FERED BERFERERN
WEARRE TEEEHE P R Al PR RELLA 2@ %) k& RiEERER
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
g "R "F CZB-Zf -F--F ZBI=Hf "F-"#F CZBI= ECCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BB BRI BT
Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco PRC 28% 28% 28% 28% 49,212 (16,543) 362,843 308,942
Construction Co., Ltd.*
ERPEENERBRAR hEAREFAE
Canton Greengold Financial PRC 48.17% 38.95% 48.17% 38.95% 33,703 10,139 574,021 583,414
Leasing Limited*
ERGERERERRAR hEAREAE
Guangdong Tiannuo Investments PRC 49% 49% 49% 49% 15,136 (10,331) 196,842 186,047
Co., Limited*
ERXFRERRAT hEARATE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Company’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests are
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts after fair value adjustments and before
intragroup eliminations.

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.*

MBS HRRNGE @

35. JEEERER @

BERPERHNERAMRAE (MhER

(“Sino Rock”) &1

2023 2022
—E-= BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT 7T
Current assets MBNE E 538,767 357,136
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,547,919 2,854,994
Current liabilities mENBE (118,261) (54,603)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,689,301) (2,048,794)
Equity attributable to owners KRBVEB A

of the Company = 920,970 798,288
Non-controlling interests JEZERER 358,154 310,445
Revenue** U A 95,710 82,555
Profit for the year KEERH 202,220 38,094

*

*k

For identification purpose only

In which revenue from external customers for the year amounted
to HK$95,710,000 (2022: HK$82,301,000).

- AEEREINSFRZHN A B
95 710,0007C (T == — 4 ; B
82,301,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contived) & & MBI EMsE @)

35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 35. JEIERGtEDR @)

Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd.* ERTERHNERERAR (MhER
(“Sino Rock?”) (Continued) () #&
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year attributable to: FERANES
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ N 145,599 27,428
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock RERMZIFERERD 56,621 10,666
202,220 38,094
Other comprehensive expenses, Httemx
net of income tax: FRint
Exchange difference arising on translation & BN EFERF
of foreign operations: EXCERELE:
Owners of the Company KNBEB A (22,917) (66,104)
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock RERMZIFERERD (8,912) (25,707)
(31,829) (91,811)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) FEZERWE (BI%)
attributable to: MR E .
Owners of the Company KRBIEB A 122,682 (38,676)
Non-controlling interests of Sino Rock RERBZIFER#ER 47,709 (15,041)
170,391 (53,717)
Net cash inflow from operating activities RETEIREMA TR 30,809 341,661

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing BREFHRESHA
activities Cmt) P28 179,418 (611,992)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing FEEEIRE ()
activities MARER (260,233) 294,388

Net cash (outflow)/inflow B& Chd) SRAFEE (50,006) 24,057

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Limited* (“Greengold

Leasing”)

MBS HRRNGE @

35. JEEERER @

ERGEMEVERRLE (MR

g))

2023 2022
—E—-= ==

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Current assets MBNE E 1,877,388 1,949,563

Non-current assets FRBEE 3,219,641 2,902,110

Current liabilities mENBE (1,241,314) (1,249,353)

Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,674,003) (2,212,061)
Equity attributable to owners of the KRBVEB A

Company FE(LHE 25 607,691 806,845

Non-controlling interests JEZERER 574,021 583,414

Revenue** N 356,366 335,737

Profit for the year KEERF 98,054 111,267

Profit for the year attributable to: FERANGEE

Owners of the Company KRABHEB A 46,866 61,053
Non-controlling interests of Greengold frEfEEZ

Leasing JEERR TS 51,188 50,214

98,054 111,267

For identification purpose only

*x

In which revenue from external customers for the year amounted

to HK$352,636,000 (2022: HK$330,485,000).

*k

FEEXRBIBELZHRBZ A B
352,636,00070 (ZE - —4F : Bl

330,485,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Canton Greengold Financial Leasing Limited* (“Greengold

35. JEEERER @

MBS HRRNGE @

ERGEMEVERRLE (MR

Leasing”) (Continued) &) #&
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Other comprehensive expenses, HthemMx
net of income tax: FRiR1E
Exchange difference arising on translation 88N 7565
of foreign operations: EEZERER:
Owners of the Company KRBIEB A (6,710) (35,348)
Non-controlling interests of Greengold efEZ
Leasing JEER R (17,485) (40,075)
(24,195) (75,423)
Total comprehensive income FEZEKTGE
attributable to: MR .
Owners of the Company KRBIEB A 40,156 25,705
Non-controlling interests of Greengold efEZ
Leasing SRIER 33,703 10,139
73,859 35,844
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A IR 2 (1~ B B 38,407 24,251
Net cash outflow from operating activities K& EBIRS AL B (282,009) (697,351)
Net cash inflow from investing activities KRERSIRERAFE 5,444 14,410
Net cash inflow from financing activities B REIRE MAFRE 33,383 798,651
Net cash (outflow)/inflow W& Rt THRAEEE (243,182) 115,710

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited*

(“Tiannuo”)

MBS HRRNGE @

35. JEEERER @

BERXFREARAE (TR

2023 2022
—E—-= ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Current assets MBNE E 157,461 125,402
Non-current assets EREMEE 231,823 249,543
Current liabilities mENBE (105,008) (75,139)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (16,093) (53,143)
Equity attributable to owners of the KRBVEB AEE#ETR
Company 131,203 122,171
Non-controlling interests JEZERER 136,980 124,492
Revenue WA 265,750 195,138
Profit for the year REEEF 37,352 9,876
Profit for the year attributable to: FERMES
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ =N 16,993 4,814
Non-controlling interests of XERBRBEZ
Tiannuo’s subsidiary JEER R 2,057 223
Non-controlling interests JEEER R 18,302 4,839
37,352 9,876
* For identification purpose only b TR EEEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limited*

(“Tiannuo”) (Continued)

35

MBS HRRNGE @

. JEEERER @

BERXHREARAR (TXH) (#@)

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Other comprehensive expenses, HthemMx
net of income tax: FRiR1E
Exchange difference arising on translation & BN EFEBEEE
of foreign operations: ZERERE
Owners of the Company PiN/NTEZZ =N (4,866) (14,985)
Non-controlling interests of KB AT Z
Tiannuo’s subsidiary JEERR R (114) (126)
Non-controlling interests JEEER R (5,109) (15,267)
(10,089) (30,378)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) 2EWE %)
attributable to: MAREERE
Owners of the Company KNBEB A 12,127 (10,171)
Non-controlling interests of XERBRBEZ
Tiannuo’s subsidiary JEER R 1,943 97
Non-controlling interests JEERE R 13,193 (10,428)
27,263 (20,502)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest B IEERERZ (G ZIRE 4,341 4,663
Net cash inflow from operating activities REFHHRESMAFEE 3,580 4,944
Net cash outflow from investing activites B EEBIRS AL B4 (1,003) (7,389)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing MEEHIRE
activities Cmd) /A BEE (9,916) 278
Net cash outflow B Mt BEE (7,339) (2,167)

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Guandong XRIS Technology Co., Ltd. as at the date of

acquisition were as follows:

36. £ a6

MBS HRRNGE @

ERFHEELERATDRWBERAZH
HABERBBENAABENT

Notes HK$’000
B = BT
Intangible assets BREEE 20 4,464
Trade and other receivables FEURBR =0 R HAth & 57 FE U =018 12,015
Cash and bank balances RERIBITAER 310
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERZE 18 21
Deferred income iR JE U 2 34 (953)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 31 (370)
Trade payables and other payables FETRR AR M FE FRIB (1,710)
13,777
HK$’000
BT
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEEzEE !

Consideration HE 9,111
Non-controlling interests JEER = 6,751
Less: Total identifiable net assets at fair value 8 : A RBEZ P # B EELEEE (138,777)
Goodwill e 2,085

Net cash outflow on acquisition of KEERAHESLEREERAR

Guandong XRIS Technology Co., Ltd.: WERE -

Consideration paid HEZNY 4,710
Less: cash and bank balances acquired B W 23R R IRTT AR ER (310)
4,400
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36.

37.

YY)

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Since the Acquisition, Guangdong XRIS Technology Co., Ltd.
(“XRIS”) contributed revenue of HK$3,528,000 and profit
for the year of HK$2,137,000 included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Had the acquisition of Guandong XRIS Technology Co.,
Ltd been completed on 1 January 2023, revenue for the
year of the Group from continuing operations would have
been HK$4,033,000, and profit for the year from continuing
operations would have been HK$498,000. The pro-forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2023, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the pro-forma revenue and profit of the Group
had been acquired at the beginning of the current year, the
directors of the Company calculated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment based on the recognised amounts of
property, plant and equipment at the date of the acquisition.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

From continuing and discontinued operations

The Group as lessor

The Group’s property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$81,257,000 (2022: HK$78,854,000). All of

the properties held have committed tenancies 1 to 18 years
(2022: 1 to 19 years).

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Contived) & & MBI EMsE @)

37.

38.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. SEMBENZE =
(Continueqd)
From continuing and discontinued operations (Continued) REFERERBRIEREZEE (&
The Group as lessor (Continued) KEFEZHHEN (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted REEH AEBCSRBEPIINZERE
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: REMREEWOT :
2023 2022
—E=HF S ——
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Within one year R—FR 73,553 72,593
In the second year REZ 55,705 66,187
In the third year RE=F 41,576 54,349
In the fourth year REmE 22,827 40,146
In the fifth year RERSF 13,732 16,252
Over five years EEMUE 67,278 60,616
274,671 310,143
The future minimum lease payments include the amount of FEEBRESHETHEBRER LK
HK$258,896,000 (2022: Nil) attributable to discontinued E 2 EB 4B 18258,896,0007T
operations. (B "F 8|
COMMITMENTS 38. K iE
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERERERIEREZER
2023 2022
—E—-= -
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Commitments for the acquisition of the BAVE - -BE KM
property, plant and equipment R KR 115,866 190,154
Commitments for the investment cost of B IL FA TR E R A&
establishment of subsidiary 2RI 30,175 46,024
Commitments for the investment cost of  ERERMMEXRZE
development of industry Park in Danzao Bl AR 2 A 572,891 183,578
The commitments include the amount of HK$572,891,000 AEFEEHEBERERLERE 2 %
(2022: Nil) attributable to discontinued operations. P REA B H572,891,0007T (Z &
== I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. PLEDGED OF ASSETS

40.

W 244

From continuing and discontinued operations

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged

AR MBrRRIE @

39. EEIKH

REFECERODEIEE ¥

BEEMNUTREENE ESBRMLUER

to secure general banking facilities to the Group or borrowings BIAERN—RBTHENAEER
of the Group (see Note 29): HEE (fisE29) -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Investment properties (Note 17) wEE FisE17) 296,357 363,438
Property, plant and equipment L EN =Y 341,893 402,749
Pledged bank deposit BIRRRITER 7,197 24,956
Pledged lease receivables IR FEREE S W 3,580,931 2,782,574
Pledged paid-up capital of a non-wholly BIEFIEE2EWE
owned subsidiary RNEIZEBER 223,322 229,638
Pledged equity interest in an associate BIEERBE AT
PN 99,002 -

Note: The future rental receivables from several properties are pledged

R

A)

for a loan facility of RMB285,000,000 in total from China
Development Bank.

ELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

On 5 December 2017, the Group obtained a three-year
loan amounting to HK$90,000,000 from the Group’s
immediate holding company, Prize Rich Inc., which
is unsecured and with a fixed interest rate at 3% per
annum. On 3 December 2020, the Group entered into
the Supplemental Loan Agreement (I) with Prize Rich
Inc., in which the loan repayment period for the loan
was extended by two years to December 2022. On 29
September 2022, the Group entered into Supplemental
Loan Agreement (Il) with Prize Rich Inc., in which the loan
repayment period for the loan was further extended by
three years to December 2025. Interest rates and all other
terms and conditions of the loans remained unchanged.
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40. FAEEZZ 5

A)

RZE—tF+ZHAHEB> ¢$
ERAEB2EBRZERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (continued)

A)

B)

C)

D)

(Continueq)
In October 2021, the Group obtained another three-year
loan amounting to HK$46,000,000 from Prize Rich Inc.,
which is unsecured and with a fixed interest rate at 4%
per annum.

The interest on loan from Prize Rich Inc. during the
year was approximately HK$4,603,000, which has been
included in the finance costs of the Group.

On 28 February 2019, the Group obtained a loan
amounting to HK$980,000 from a non-controlling interest,
T-Box Union (China) Financial Holdings Investments
Limited (“T-Box Union (China)”).

In 2021, the Group’s obtained a three-year loan
amounting to RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27,503,000) from a non-controlling
interest, Guangdong Nanhai Chemical Factory Co., Ltd.*
(“Nanhai Chemical Factory”). The effective interest rate of
the loan is 4.75% per annum.

The interest on loan from Nanhai Chemical Factory during
the year was approximately RMB1,187,500 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,315,000), which has been included
in the finance costs of the Group.

The Group’s non-wholly owned subsidiary, Foshan
Foshan Nanhua Logistics Co., Limited*, signed lease
agreements for office space and parking lot with Nanhai
Chemical Factory, with lease terms from December
2018 to November 2023 and from December 2022 to
November 2025 respectively.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION (continued)

B 946

E)

F)

*

On 6 December 2023, the Group and Guangdong Nanhai
Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (“Nanhai Holding”), a controlling
shareholder of the Group, entered into a disposal
agreement pursuant to which the Group conditionally
agreed to sell, and Nanhai Holding conditionally agreed
to acquire, 72% equity interest in Guangdong Sino
Rock Tyco Construction Co., Ltd* (“Sino Rock”) at
a consideration of RMB972,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,063,000,000). The transaction
constituted connected transaction under the Listing
Rules.

On 18 January 2024, the resolution proposed at the
first special general meeting was passed regarding the
proposed disposal of 72% equity interest in Sino Rock.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

MBS HRRNGE @

40. AR H @)

E)

F)

A ZEZ=F+ZHAH K&
EHEAERNERKRE-ERmS
BEREBRRRRE (TEEE
BBl B THERERRERR
BRBERRE (MPaEHil) 72%
R RIEZInE mEER
BERUREAREKI72,000,000
7t (FBE 49 78181,063,000,000
T WEEEBRRENRERRT2%
Rt R ZEA EMEA W
RAEZR 5 o

A ZEIWMFE—A+N\BR1T2
F—REREHFRNARG LIREZAR
EEVNEHARRLERESRZH
T2%PREBEIETL BB ©

FTEEBRASHMN

EFERHEMETEEEABRERN
ZFMT

2023 2022

—EZ=F =B
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Short-term employee benefits DHEEET 4,333 8,196
Post-employment employee benefits R K{EE1EF) 717 1,050
5,050 9,246

The remuneration of Directors and key management
personnel is proposed by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continved) &S MBI R GE &

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. TEMB AT
Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 KRB ZFERBRABIN - =
December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows: EZE-_H+-B=+—H2HE
Wwr:
Place of
incorporation or
registration/ Issue of shares
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
ARAIIER/ BETREZHE
MEARRE EE LR BHREA HEEMM ITEH
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
IBIZE St -3 Skt 3 Sl -3 - Skt 3 Sl -3
Direct subsidiary
China Investments Limited Hong Kong 200 200 HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
PEEXRAERAT &% #%1,0007 #151,0007 REnk
Indirect subsidiaries
HEHEAR
Canton Greengold Financial Leasing PRC N/A N/A RMB RMB 51.58 61.05  Financial leasing
Limited (Note 2) 964,645,944 1,193,042,475
BRESRERERRAT (M32) HE FER TER AEH ARKE HEHE
964,645,04477 1,193,042,47570
China Industrial Development Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK§2 100 100 Investment holding
PETXERERAT &k Alkor Elon KEkk
CIH Finance Investments Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1,031,144,004 4 HK$1,031,144,004 HK$4 100 100 Financial Investment
PEEXEREEERAT &k #1%1,031,144,00470 BT SRRE
Greenswood Property Limited Hong Kong 2 2 HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Property investment
BINEERAT &k Alkor Elon NERE
Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco Construction PRC N/A N/A RMB910,000,000 RMB910,000,000 7] 72 Investment in the
Co., Ltd* (Note 2) development and
construction of
industrial park
BRPERNREARAA (M32) HE FER TER AEH ARE BRERZELR
910,000,0007% 910,000,007 ZRE
Guangdong Sinsing Technology Limited (Note 3) PRC N/A N/A RMB5,000,000 RMBS,000,000 100 100 Big data business
EREEREERAT () E FER TER AE® AE# RS
5,000,007 5,000,007
Guangdong Yibaifian Comprehensive Health PRC N/A N/A RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 100 100 Comprehensive service
Technology Ltd" (Note3) elderly care
ERSARARRREERAT MH3) hE FER TER AE® N BERARE
10,000,007 10,000,007
Guilin Plaza Hotel (Note 1) PRC N/A N/A US$10,400,000 US$10,400,000 100 100 Hotel business
EHBRERE (H:H) e FER TER 10,400,000% 7% 10,400,000%7% BEEH
Jofra Company Limited Hong Kong 1,000 1,000 HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100 100 Investment holding
B #%1,0007 #151,0007 KEnk
Foshan City Nanhai Jia Shun Timber PRC N/A N/A RMB42,187,829 RMB42,187,829 100 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited" (Note 1) trading of medium
denstty fibreboards
BUREEEEAZERAE (1) e FER FER AEH ARKE RENZETERE
42,187,82970 42,187,829 R
Foshan City Nanhai Kang Sheng Timber PRC N/A N/A RMB142,104,656 RMB96,013,777 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited* (Note 1)
BURBEREAZERAE (1) e FER TER  ARE142,1046567  AR%96,0137777 KEnk
Foshan City Nanhai Canmanage Investments ~ PRC N/A N/A RMB54,289,600 RMBA54,289,600 100 100 Property investment
Holdings Limited* (Note 2)
BUTEREREERAR (o) e FER TER AE® N NERE
54,289,607 54,289,607

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED BUERERE A B2 7 24 .
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

W o4g

RO MBrRRIE

M. FTENMBAT @&

Place of
incorporation or
registration/ Issue of shares
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
ARALIER/ BETREZHE
HEAE4HE 2EHY (BiER) BaRRE REEMM IBEH
2023 2022 2028 2022 2023 2022
Bk BRI —8-c% BT ZgCCE ZEICE
Kingsgrand Developments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 10,000 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Property trading
BRERERAR &% 71100007 10,0007 HESEH
Natural View Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 10,000 10,000 HK$100,000 HK$100,000 100 100 Property trading
RREXERAE &k 7#15100,0007 7#1£100,0007 NEEE
Sabrina Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 1 Uss1 USS1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
AEERES/ 1£7 157 RELR
&%
Southern Limited Hong Kong 10,000 10,000 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding and
property investment
BAERAR &% #1510,0007 A%1000070 RERRENERE
Tally International Traders Limited Hong Kong 8,000 8,000 HK$800,000 HK$800,000 100 100 Property trading
AHERRRARAT B2 #15800,0007 800,007 FESE]
Zhong Chuang Xing Ke (Shenzhen) PRC N/A N/A RMB150,000,000 RMB150,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Investments Company Limiteds# (Note 3)
PRIER (R RBERAT (W) e TR TER AE® AEHE B
150,000,007 150,000,007
Guangdong Taoyuan Comprehensive Health PRC N/A N/A RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
QOperation Company Limited* (Note 3) care service
ERNGARREZEEERAT (3) 4& FER TER AE® AEH BERARE
50,000,0007 50,000,007
Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan PRC N/A N/A RMB100,000 RMB100,000 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Nursing Home Company Limited® (Note 3) care service
BUTEEBHERERERAT (H3) & TER TER B 100,007 AE100,00070 BERARE
Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan Welfare PRC N/A N/A RMB5,000,000 RMBS5,000,000 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Center Co., Ltd" (Note 3) care services
GBUnBERHERRTOERAS (H3) hE FER TER  AEB5000000%  AE50000007 EZLAME
Foshan City Nanhai District Taoyuan PRC N/A N/A RMB5,100,000 RMB100,000 100 100 Comprehensive elderly
Rehabilitation Hospital Co., Limited" (Note 3) care services
BUTEEEHERERERERAR (3s) & FER TEE  AEHS5,100,0007 AE100,00070 BERARE
Foshan City Xianhuwan Development Co. Ltd" ~ PRC N/A N/A RMB203,000,000 RMB203,000,000 73 72 Property investment
(Note 3)
BUBlHEEZERAR () HE FER TER AE® AR® NERE
203,000,0007 203,000,007
Guangdong Tiannuo Investments Co., Limted"  PRC N/A N/A RMB102,040,863 RMB102,040,863 51 51 Manufacture and sale of
(Note 3) emulsion industrial
detonating cord
ERXEREERAT (BH3)) e TER TER  ARE102,0408687% AR 102,040,863 HERBELLIEEN
T2EEZ
Foshan Nanhua Logistics Co., Limited* (Note 3  PRC N/A N/A RMB500,000 RMB500,000 51 51 Transportation and
carriage services
for general and
hazardous goods
BUELERERAT (H:3) e FER TER B 500,000 B 500,000 ERREREER
RENES
Guangdong Nanhong Ming Bao Co., Limted ~ PRC N/A N/A RMBS50,000,000 RMBA0,000,000 51 51 Manufacture and sale of
(Note 3) (formerly known as: Guangdong emulsion industrial
Nanhong Chemical Co., Limited") detonating cord
EFBURERRAT (H:3) HE FER TER AE® AR® RERBELIEET
(3118 BRELEIBRAE) 50,000,00077 50,000,007 T2EkE%

HING YIP HOLDINGS LIMITED B2 A B2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 45 &MBHRFRMEE @)

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41. TEBEMBAT @
Place of
incorporation or
registration/ Issue of shares
Name of subsidiary operation (Ordinary shares) Paid up capital Percentage held Principal activity
ARALIER/ BETREZHE
HEAE4HE 2EHY (BiER) BaRRE REEMM IBEH
2023 2022 2028 2022 2023 2022
Bk BRI —8-c% BT ZgCCE ZEICE
Foshan Xianhuwan Hotel Management PRC N/A N/A RMBS5,000,000 RMB5,000,000 72 72 Hotel management and
Co., Limited* (Note 3) services and catering
BULBEEEEERRAT (H3) HE FER TER AEH ARE BEEERENRE
5,000,00077 5,000,007
Guangdong Province Fu Neng Power PRC N/A N/A RMB8,000,000 RMBS,000,000 72 72 Generation and sale of
Co., Limited* (Note 3) electricity
ERAHEENERAT (1)) HE FER TER AE® AR® HERBEEN
8,000,0007 8,000,007
Foshan City Shangyi Intelligent Technology PRC N/A N/A RMB300,000 RMB300,000 51 51 Comprehensive elderly
Co., Limited* (Note 3) care services
Gum L ERENEERAE () HE FER TER B 300,000 AE300,000% EZLAME
Zhaoging Huaxin Blasting Engineering PRC N/A N/A RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 51 51 Chil explosives
Co., Limited* (Note 3) engineering
ZETECRRTIRERAT (W33 i TR TER  AEE10000000%  AR%100000007 BRIE

Note 1: The subsidiary is wholly foreign owned enterprise established
in the PRC.

Note 2: The subsidiary is registered as Sino-foreign equity/joint
venture company in the PRC.

Note 3: The subsidiary is wholly owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

Note 4: The subsidiary is foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

A

The subsidiary was set up during the reporting period

*

For identification purpose only

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

MEET (2B AR B PEKR I INEE
Bk

a2 ZM B AR N FEEMRAFIEE
Va1

M3  ZMB AR AR PEKRINBEN
FEEERLF-

et (2B AR AR PRI NS B
Bk

" ZNBRAERIRE AL

BB AR M EERN ERIFERE
ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁ%°

EERFAINEDNEZRREETEBZE
BNEEREEXEZARIWEL
Bl BERAFINEMMBAR ZER
RERRBAR TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

42,

= 250

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 January 2024, the resolution proposed at the first
special general meeting was passed regarding the proposed
disposal of 72% equity interest in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Guangdong Sino Rock Tyco
Construction Co., Ltd. Further details of the transaction are set
out in the circular dated 29 December 2023.

On 23 January 2024, Guangdong Taoyuan Comprehensive
Health Operation Co., Ltd.* (“Guangdong Taoyuan”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Luso
Structured Deposit Product Agreement with Luso International
Bank, pursuant to which Guangdong Taoyuan has subscribed
for the structured deposit product of RMB50,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$54,450,000).

On 25 January 2024, Canton Greengold Financial Leasing
Ltd.* (“Greengold Leasing”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
entered into finance leases with limited liability companies
incorporated in the PRC, independent third parties, to obtain
the ownership of the assets from these companies at an
aggregate consideration of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$54,700,000), which would be leased back to
these companies for their own use and possession for a term
of 5 years.

On 31 January 2024, Greengold Leasing entered into a
finance lease with a limited liability company incorporated in
the PRC, an independent third party, to obtain the ownership
of the assets from this company at a consideration of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$32,790,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its use and
possession for a term of 5 years.

On 2 February 2024, Greengold Leasing entered into a
finance lease with a limited liability company incorporated in
the PRC, an independent third party, to obtain the ownership
of the assets from this company at a consideration of
RMB35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$38,290,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its use and
possession for a term of 6 years.

*

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

42,

43.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
(Continueqd)

On 23 February 2024, Greengold Leasing entered into a
finance lease with a limited liability company incorporated in
the PRC, an independent third party, to obtain the ownership
of the assets from this company at a consideration of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$32,640,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its use and
possession for a term of 5 years.

On 6 March 2024, Greengold Leasing entered into a finance
lease with a limited liability company incorporated in the
PRC, an independent third party, to obtain the ownership
of the assets from this company at a consideration of
RMB85,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$92,395,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its use and
possession for a term of 6 years.

On 8 March 2024, Greengold Leasing, entered into a finance
lease with a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC,
an independent third party, to obtain the ownership of the
assets from this company at an aggregate consideration of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$32,610,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its use and
possession for a term of 5 years.

On 11 March 2024, Guangdong Taoyuan entered into the Luso
Structured Deposit Product Agreement with Luso International
Bank, pursuant to which Guangdong Taoyuan has subscribed
for the structured deposit product of RMB43,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$46,741,000).

On 21 March 2024, Greengold Leasing entered into a
finance lease with the lessee, to obtain the ownership of the
assets from this company at an aggregate consideration of
RMB75,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$81,525,000),
which would be leased back to this company for its use

and possession for a term of 5 years.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with the current year’s presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

A BIRRMNEE @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

MBS HRRNGE @

44. B ATMB R AR KR #E

2023 2022
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BT T BT 7T
Non-current asset ERENEE
Investment in subsidiaries RBABZIRE 23,607 23,607
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW T B A B T IE 1,551,716 1,341,005
Pledged bank deposits BIRRIRITER 7,117 6,959
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTA56R 1,168 8,293
Other receivables H g8 308 52
1,560,309 1,356,309
Current liabilities Pk R=N=d
Borrowings EEN 834,490 703,094
Convertible notes AR ERE 30 156,251 -
Other payables HMENIE 8,242 6,899
998,983 709,993
Net current assets REEERE 561,326 646,316
Total assets less current liabilities #EERTITAERG 584,933 669,923
Capital and reserve & 75 R & 48
Share capital &N 32 171,233 171,233
Reserves Eqi] 221,437 264,857
Equity attributable to owners ZiN/NETEZF =N
of the Company FE{L R 392,670 436,090
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Loan from immediate holding company EiZ#ZERAT ZER  40a 90,000 90,000
Loan from subsidiaries B B ZE™R 102,263 -
Convertible notes AR iR 30 - 143,833
192,263 233,833
584,933 669,923

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March
2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

HE XIANGMING
Al ER
Director

EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

45.

MBS HRRNGE @

44. AT BER AR EE =

Movement in the Company’s reserves TAGEEZEE
Convertible
Share note equity Accumulated
Premium reserve losses Total
AR R
B iR 8 R E B8 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2022 W_ZE__#—H—H 725,199 56,616 (473,842) 307,973
Loss for the year REEERE - - (43,116) (43,116)
At 31 December 2022 and nZ®=ZZ=
1 January 2023 +=ZB=+—8Bx&
—E-=%—H8—H 725,199 56,616 (516,958) 264,857
Loss for the year REEEIE - - (43,420) (43,420)
At 31 December 2023 RZIEZ=F
+ZRA=+—H 725,199 56,616 (560,378) 221,437

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

(i)

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share
and is not attributable but may be applied in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to the
shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus shares
or in providing for the premiums payable on repurchases
of shares.

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserve represents general reserve and
enterprise expansion fund which are set up by
subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC by
way of appropriation from the profit after taxation in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC. The rate of appropriation of the general reserve
and enterprise expansion fund is subject to the decision
of the board of Directors of the PRC subsidiaries, but
the minimum appropriation rate for the general reserve
is 10% of the profit after taxation for the each year, until
when the accumulated balance reaches 50% of the
total registered capital of the subsidiary. Pursuant to the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, if approvals are
obtained from the relevant government authorities, the
general reserve can be used in setting off accumulated
losses or to increase the capital, and the enterprise
expansion fund can be used to increase the capital.

45. EBZMEEREN

(i)

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

45. NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES
(Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Hotel property revaluation reserve

Hotel property is revalued annually based on independent
professional valuations on an open market value basis.
Changes in the values of hotel property are dealt with
as movement in the hotel property revaluation reserve.
If the reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation deficit,
the excess of the deficit is changed to the profit and loss
account.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the foreign subsidiaries of the Company
whose reporting currency is not Hong Kong dollars. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies of foreign currencies set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Convertible note equity reserve

Convertible note equity reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of convertible note
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy of Convertible note set out in Note
3 to the consolidation financial statements.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represented additional contributions made
by the shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries and,
in case of an acquisition of an additional non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary, the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the non-controlling interest acquired.

Other reserve

Other reserve comprises of gain on partial disposal of
interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Sino Rock.
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Five Years Financial Summary

TR B 22

Year ended 31 December
HE+-BA=+—HILLEE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
e S ;S —
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT BETT BT T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (7))
RESULTS A
Revenue EE3 161,065 293,555 520,846 685,331 821,423
Profit/(loss) for the year from — HELE Y KEEEF/
continuing operations (E548) 81,428 (65,508) 10,878 40,054 (23,251)
Discontinued operations BARILAEER
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERA/ (BB (1,516) (530) 9 2,770 179,187
Profit/(loss) for the year KEEANREAA
attributable to owners FEERF/ (5518) 68,612 (83,871) (15,500) (21,535) 26,930
Earnings/(loss) per share BB/ (5B
From continuing and REFESER
discontinued operations BRLEEE
Basic E=YIN HK4.01 cents  (HK4.90 cents) (HK0.91 cents) (HK1.26 cents) HK1.57 cents
Diluted B HK4.01 cents  (HK4.90 cents) (HK0.91 cents) (HK1.26 cents) HK1.57 cents
Year ended 31 December
HE+-_B=t+—-HLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
“E-hAE CEBZfRE B “EBE-"fF CZEZZ
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BT BT AETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEKEE
Total assets EEBE 5,147,666 6,105,371 8,299,701 9,069,585 9,755,709
Total liabilities =LEEE (3,441,696) (4,117,039) (6,107,245) (6,976,800) (7,636,412)
Non-controlling interests IS (600,764) (843,935) (1,003,167 (1,079,754) (1,139,265)
Equity contributable to owners ~ KAREE AELER 1,105,206 1,144,397 1,189,289 1,013,031 980,032

* The results for the year 2019 and 2022 have been restated for the  *

discontinued operations.

IS EEBETEY -
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Particulars of Major Properties FEYIEER

Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at 31 December R _ZE_=ZF+_-_HA=+—H ' &x&EBFH

2023 are as follows: ZEEMEERFMRUWT !
Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE TRHEZ B
&8/ At AEER i LEREmE  ERBR  TRER
(sa.m.)
(EHR)
Properties for own use
BRAYZE
Unit No.1, 14 & 15 on 5th Floor, 100 Medium Commercial 429 Existing N/A
Wing On Plaza,
62 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon.
NERYHE 100 GES 429 HAE TiER
B3t 586257
KR EI551E
1 14R16%E
12th to 13th Floor of 100 Medium Commercial 3,048 Existing N/A
Phase 1

Guangdong - Hong Kong
Finance & Technology Park
Guicheng Street,

6 Jinke Road,

Nanhai District

Foshan City,

Guangdong Province,

The PRC

hEERE 100 GES 3048 HAE TiEA
Il TR g R
ERAB e RE6R
BESRAREE
12-1318
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Particulars of Major Properties (Continued)

Effective
Name/Location % held
ERFE
218/ 8 BAL

Category
of lease

HESER

Type

#E

FEYEEER @

Total gross
floor area
on completion Stage
TEREZ
BEEmm  ERBR
(sq.m.)
(AKX

Expected year
of completion
L

SR EH

Properties for own use (Continued)

ERYE (%)

Block AB and F, 72
Xianhuwan Commercial Plaza

3 Yangguang Road,

Danzao Xianhu Resort Area,

Nanhai District, Foshan City,

Guangdong Province,

The PRC

mEERE 72
IR g R

FHEAH IR R &

5 % B35%

fllih 2 7 3 B S5AB K FEE

Zhen An Village, Luo Le Village, 51
Li Zhi Village,

Lian Tang Town,

Gao Yao District, Zhaoging City,

Guangdong Province,

The PRC

mEERE 51
EREE

LK - BON - HRA

Medium

P

Medium

P

Commercial

GRS

Industrial

I%

16,218 Existing

16,218  HE

466,165 Existing

466,165 HBHE

N/A

TEm

N/A
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Particulars of Major Properties (Continued)

FEYEEER @

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFA TREZ L
o8/ At HEER i BEEmm  ERBR  =HER
(sa.m.)
SN
Investment properties
REWF
17th Floor 100 Medium Commercial 112 Existing N/A
Sing-Ho Finance Building,
166/168 Gloucester Road,
Hong Kong.
Bt 100 GES 112 BE TiEA
ELITE
166/1685%%
ENHBAEITE
1st to 11th Floor of 100 Medium Commercial 15,818 Existing N/A
Phase 1
Guangdong - Hong Kong
Finance & Technology Park
Guicheng Street,
6 Jinke Road,
Nanhai District
Foshan City,
Guangdong Province
The PRC
hEERE 100 GES 15818 BE TiE A
IR g R

ERAE S BEeR
BESBRBEE
1-1118
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Particulars of Major Properties (Continued)

FEYEEER @

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE TREZ L
o8/ At HEER i BEEmm  ERBR  =HER
(sa.m.)
SN
Investment properties (Continued)
REWE (8)
Guilin Plaza, 20 Li Jiang Lu 100 Medium Hotel 29,746 Existing N/A
Guilin, Guangxi,
The PRC.
FR B B 7 AT R BR 100 HH iy 20,746  HAE NiEm
205 AR LB R
Block C, D and E, 72 Medium Commercial 12,335 Existing N/A
Xianhuwan Commercial Plaza
3 Yangguang Road,
Danzao Xianhu Resort Area,
Nanhai District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
hEERE 72 W GES 12,335 BE TiEA
IR g R
FHEAH IR R &
5 % B8 3%

flli# & 7 % F5C, DREE
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Particulars of Major Properties (Continued)

FEYEEER @

Total gross
Effective Category floor area Expected year
Name/Location % held of lease Type on completion Stage of completion
ERFE TREZ L
o8/ At HEER i BEEmm  ERBR  =HER
(sa.m.)
SN
Investment properties (Continued)
RENE (8)
C1-C10, D1-D16, E1-E9, Research 72 Medium Industrial 400,473 Existing N/A
Tower 1-2, and
Block 1-11 of Dan Qing Garden
8 Li zhong Road,
Danzao Logistics Center,
Danzao Town,
Nanhai District,
Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
hEERE 72 hH I% 400473  BAE TEA
Il TR g R
FHt &
FHERT O

TR BE8H
C1-C10, D1-D16, E1-E9, T #1£1-2,
LRBERE-ZET—RK
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